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2017 at easyJet Preperes

2017 has been a year of purposeful and disciplined growth to develop our
market positions at slot-constrained airports. We have grown our share in
a number of key airports, with our fleet up-gauging process also allowing
us to add capacity where our competitors cannot.

Our sustained focus on cost control and lean initiatives is supported
by our fleet development and increased use of digital to improve our
customers’ experience.

We moved quickly in response to the UK's referendum vote to leave the
European Union by establishing a new airline, easyJet Europe, in Austria.
easyJet Europe is now operational and will enable easyJet to continue to
operate flights both across and domestically within all European countries
after the UK has left the EU, regardless of the outcome of talks on a future
UK-EU aviation agreement.

We continue investing in innovation, which has already revolutionised our
customer offer and we expect to continue to harness technology to deliver
cost and reliability benefits as well as exciting improvements in customer
experiences that will keep easyJet a structural winner at the forefront of
the aviation industry.

easyJet’s customer proposition continues its positive development and,
backed by a strong balance sheet, will deliver long-term shareholder value.
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Investment case

INnvesting in our strengths

We continue to
invest in what
differentiates us,
strengthening
our long-term
proposition.

DISCIPLINED USE OF

CAPITAL

We have a clear capital structure framework and a
strategy intended to maximise shareholder returns

50"

DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

WELL-KNOWN
BRAND

We are respected for delvenng a
safe, relable and great-value
service to top destinations across
Europe and beyond

10R2

AIRLINE BRAND IN THE UK,
FRANCE AND
SWITZERLANDY

Image removed

{1} Asat 30 September 2017

{2) Before the impact of acquistions, at constant currency, performance from 2015 financial year compared to 2019 financia year at normai levels of disruption
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UNPARALLELED NETWORK

We have an mncreasing presence n the key markets, with frequencies and slots at
slot-constrained primary arrports that deliver choice and flexibility to our customers

97.6"

PERCENTAGE OF EASYJET CAPACITY
THAT TOUCHES AN AIRPORT WHERE
EASYJET HAS A NUMBER ONE OR
NUMBER TWC POSITION®

862

routes operated ™

LOW-COST MODEL

We are driven by our strong focus on cost control,
wiath @ commitment to mantaining easyJet s structural
cost advantage aganst its major competitors in each
of its markets

FLAT

TARGET FOR COST PER SEAT EXCLUDING
FUEL AT CONSTANT CURRENCY®!

STRONG BALANCE SHEET

We mantan a strong balance sheet to faclitate low funding costs and
operational flexibility, and to provide insulation from external shocks

‘3.6m 357w

LIGUIDITY PER 100 SEATSY NET CASHD

DRIVING REVENUE GROWTH

We have a clear focus on bulding strong relationstups
with customers to create more sustainable, long-terrm
revenues leveraging qualty, innovation and digital

23.0m

APP DOWNLOADS TO 30
SEPTEMBER 2017
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Chairman's letter

Delivering long-term value

Image removed

JOHN BARTON
Chairman

easyJet delivered a robust
financial performance
this year, with record
passenger numbers
and revenues growing
to more than £5 billion.
We continue to invest
for the future in order
to deliver sustainable
long-term value for
shareholders.

50%

DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

80.2m

RECORD PASSENGER NUMBERS
IN THE YEAR ENDING
30 SEPTEMBER 2017

DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY

Last year we reportad our intention to continue to mplemert
our purposeful growth strategy, which will deliver long-term
returns to shareholders As a result, easyJet grew capacity by
8 5% this year, focusing on reaching strong number one
posttions in Europe's primary arports Cost control was robust

and we invested N increased reslience which will deliver
long-term benefits to easyJet and its custorners We also
continue to ensure that we have a strong and flexible balance
shaet to underpin our plans for the future

RESULTS

As a result of this strategy we have been able to deliver a
robust performance this year Our passenger growth was
healthy, Increasing by 9 7% to 80 2 million, and revenue
increased to £5,047 milion, an increase of 81% Headline profit
before tax was £408 millon, despite the impact of £101 milicn
from adverse foreign exchange rates Reported profit after

tax was £305 millon
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We have achieved a headline return on capital emnployed
of N18% as we start to take deliveries of our new fleet order,
including our first A320neo arrcraft

We are confident in our abdity to deliver sustainable returns
to shareholders and in our dvidend policy As a result we are
recommending a dividend of 409 pence per share based on
our payout policy of 50% of headline profit after tax

BOARD

In July Carolyn McCall resigned to become CEO of ITV plc
After joining in 2010, Carolyn bult and led the management
team that transformed easyJet's performance in every
respect She put easylet's passengers and people at the

heart of the business, having first built a solid operational
pertormance This has seen both the number and loyalty of
easyJet's passengers grow as a result and has led to sustaned
and continuing financial success, which has been shared wath
sharehalders with @ more than trebling of easyJet's share price
and the payment of £12 billon in dividends On 10 Novermnber
2017 the Board announced the appointment of Johan
Lunclgren as its new Chief Executive Johan was previcusly
Group Deputy Chief Executive Officer of TUI Group He will

be joining the Company on 1 December 2017, with Carolyn
stepping down on 30 November

This yvear we welcormed Moya Greene to the Board as a
Non-Executive Director Moya brings significant transport and
logistics expertise as well as her expenence as a FTSE 100
Chief Executive At the same time Francois Rubichon decided
to step down after three years on the Board Keith Harmll also
incdicated that he would retire, but kindly agreed to remain

on the Board whilst we found a successor to Caralyn McCall
Frangols and Keith feave easyJet with our gratitude and

best wishes

PEOPLE

Once again | would like to thank all of our people, in particular
those on the (ront ine as they represent easyJet at its best in
scmetimes challenging situations We continue to invest in our
oiots and crew to delver excellent service and as we continue
to grow In addition, | would also like to thank those in support
funchions who have participated in the organisational review
durning the year, which creates a better platform for the future
with both of these communitios | believe that easyJet s
bulding a strong and sustainable advantage for the long term

'fo\w @au_,

JOHN BARTON
Non-Executive Charrman

www easyJet com 3



At a glance

- PURPOSEFUL
GROWTH

Our network strategy provides passengers with
a primary airport network and schedule that no
other airline can replicate. Our returns are driven
by strong network positions at primary airports
and we are building and strengthening our
number one and number two positions at key
airports, where returns are highest.

WE ARE GROWING AHEAD OF THE MARKET
IN MOST OF OUR COUNTRIES OF OPERATION

Image removed

Graph removed
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At a glance / continued

THROUGH A

DISCIPLINED
APPROACH

Our investment strategy is focused on our long-
term sustainability. The up-gauging of our fleet
through the addition of A320 and A32Ineos to
the fleet plan delivers a significant cost per seat
benefit, as weli as supporting an increase in
market share in slot-constrained airports.

GROSS CAPITAL EASYJET
EXPENDITURE (EM) FLEET MIX (%)
Graph removed Graph removed

overESbn 19‘22%

CAPEX SPEND OVER COST PER SEAT SAVING
THE NEXT THREE YEARS A32Inec vs A319

6 easyJlet plc Annual report and accounts 2017



INCREASING SHARE AT
KEY BASE AIRPORTS IN
THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

W
=
o
>
S
m
o
5}
]
m
b}
o
D
par]

Graph removed

DEVELOPING OUR FLEET

Image removed

Our new A320 and A32Ineo
planes will allow us to fly more
passengers than ever to ther
destinations, increasing
profitability and taking an
important step i reducing
our enwronmental footprint

WWW easy et com 7



Our business model

An efficient low-cost model to drive
sustainable shareholder returns

Our sustainable business model makes travel easy and
affordable and drives growth and returns for shareholders.

KEY RESOURCES
The success of our business depends on a number of key resources

Capital CREDIT RATING
easylet has a strong capital base, with market capitahsation of £5 billion!" and a net

cash position of £357 million at 30 September 2017 easyJet's credit ratings are +
amongst the strongest in the world for an arline a a

Aircraft

easyJet operates a modern Airbus fleet. using the A320 family of aircraft. and 13 2 7 9
nvesting in the new 186-seat, fuel-efficient A320neo arrcraft, as well as A3ZIneos

from summer 2018 This provides customer, operating and mantenance benefits to AIRCRAET
the Group

People OVER

easy.Jet has a dedicated workforce of over 12, 000 people, including 3,291 pilots and

7547 cabin crew mernbers, as at 30 September 2017 1 2 O O O
)]

PECPLE
Technology and insight
easyJet leverages its customer relationship management capabiities, driving I ' l
revenue by increasing custormer loyalty and implementing its wider digital strategy .
Our increasingly sophisticated use of data will enable us to continue to make travel APP DOWNLOADS
easy and affordable in the longer term
Relationships with stakeholders OVER

easyJet interacts with a number of stakeholders in its operatons, such as

customers, suppliers (iIncluding infrastructure owners and operators e g arports, arr
traffic control), regulators and national governments .

PASSENGERS
OUR VALUES
Safety Simplicity One team
We never compromise We cut out the things that Together we'll always
on safety don't matter to keep us lean find a way

and rnake 1t easy

SAFETY UNDERPINS EVERYTHING WE DO

(1) Based on a share price of £1217 at 30 September 2017

8 easyJet ple Annual report and accounts 2017




HOW WE DO IT

We build on our business through our strategic pillars.
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OUTCOMES
Creating value for
our stakeholders

Building and strengthening number one and two network positions

We fly from the main arrports in attractive catchment areas We are increasing our
presence in the nght markets, with frequencies and slots at primary arports that
delver choice and flexibility

Maintaining a lean cost advantage

easylet 1s committed to mantaining its structural cost advantage against
competitors in our markets We have low overhead costs, use our arrcraft efficiently
and have a lean approach to all areas of the business

Maintaining customer and operational excellence

People are attracted to the well-known easyJet brand and high-quality service
offering We make it easy to buy our low fares through our website and digital
platforms, which have on average over one milion visits every day

Continuing to leverage data and digital platforms

easyJet's award-winning digital platform continues to be a major enabler of revenue
and customer satisfaction easylet's app has been downloaded 23 C rmilion times at
30 Septermbper 2017 and as it becomes more established 1t 1s driving ncreasing
contribution to revenue

Grow revenue

We have a clear focus on bulding strong relationships with customers to create
more sustanable, long-term revenues, leveraging quality, nnovation and digitai
easyJet 15 looking to develop new revenue streams, leveraging its network, cost
focus and track record of innovation

The best people

It 15 our people who continue to deliver the strategy for the business and will drive
future success Internally, we continue to focus on recruiting the night people, helping
them to understand their rote and our values, and then giving themn the tools to
develop a high-performance culture

Turn to page: 19
for more detalls of Strategy

GENERATING HIGH RETURNS
FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS

50%

DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

VALY

CUSTCMER SATISFACTION

OPERATICNAL EXCELLENCE

/0%

ON-TIME PERFORMANCE

EMPLOYEE TURNOVER

/.4

Turn to page. 24
for more detalls of KPIs

http//corporate.easyJet.com
to read more about our values

Integrity Passion
We stand by our word and We have a passion for our
do what we say customers, our people ancd

the work we do

Pioneering

We challenge ourselves to
find new ways to make travel
easy and affordable

SAFETY UNDERPINS EVERYTHING WE DO

[de)

www Basylet com



Chief Executive's review

Bullding momentum

Image removed

CARCLYN MCCALL DBE
Chief Executive

Our planned approach of
achieving number one or
two positions at Europe’s
leading airports, friendly
and efficient customer
service and a continuous
focus on sustainable cost
control has put easyJet at
a strategic advantage
during a period when there
have been bankruptcies
and some airlines have
struggled operationally.

£5.0bn

REVENUE (2016 £4 7BN)

4 4y,

HEADLINE COST PER SEAT IMPROVEMENT
FROM THE 2016 FINANCIAL YEAR, RESTATED
AT CONSTANT CURRENCY

easyJet delivered a robust perforrmance in the 2017 financial
vear During the penod the arrine continued to make good
progress inits purposeful growth strategy, making disciplined
nvestments to mantain and grow Its market-leading positions
n Europe’s pnmary, slot-constrained arrports easylet’'s
focused capacity growth of 8 5%, includes & number of
time-sensitive apportunities in slot-censtrained arports such
as Amsterdam, which 1s now full Over seven millon more
passengers flew with easyJet this year, representing an
ncrease of 97%, at historically high load factors of 92 6%
This reflects the strength of easyJet’s netwark and

custormer proposition

The arling’s disciplined strategy will enable it to be a
structural winner within its chosen markets in the European
short-haul market

Total revenue increased by 81% to £5,047 millon
(2016 £4.669 milion)

Revenue per seatl 1s broadly flat at £58 23 (down 4 5% at
constant currency!"), driven by

+  The persisting low fuel pnce environment, resulting in high
levels of market capacity growth (7 4% growth in easyJet's
rmarkets)

« An aggrassive pricing environment which saw net ticket
revenue per seat fall by 7 8% at constant currency

«  Anciary revenuet? which grew by 17 8% to £986 million as
fugh load factors and consumer-focused nitiatives helped
to offset ticket pricing pressures

= Within this, non-seat revenue increased by 9 3% to
£89 million, supported by strong inflight sales of easyJet’s
enhanced product offenng

easyJet’s focus on ngorous cost control continues to deliver
excellent results and supported the nvestment in operational
resiience Headline cost per seat increased by 2 4% to

£5352 drven by an adverse headline foreign exchange impact
of £308 millon {£3 56 per seat) and the costs of disruption,
which remamns a major industry challenge At constant
currency the headline cost per seat decreased by 4 4% as
easyJet continued to benefit from its hedged fuel position The
overall cost performance 15 driven by

«  Fuel cost reduction of 19 2% per seat at constant currency
* Lean intiatives in

— awports and ground handling, leveraging easyJet's scale
across the network,

— engineenng and mantenance savings In the supplier
base, and

— reduced navigation charges

« Up-gauging of fleet with the delvery of an addtional 21
186-seat A320 and two A320neo aircraft and retrofitting of
49 existing 180-seat A320s to 186-seats

This helped to offset

A continued increase in the combined impact on cost from
disruption of £U 261 claims and an increasingly congested
European aviabion infrastructure

(1) Constant currency is calculated by comparnng the 2017 financial vear performance translated at the 2016 financial year effective exchange rate to
the 2006 financial year reported performance excluding foraign exchange gains and losses on balance sheet revaluations

(2

2

Ancilary revenue includes revenue trom the provision of checked bagaage, allocated seating and change fees, and also includes non-seat revenue

which anses from commissions earned from services sold on behalf of partners and infight sales

10 easyJet ple Annual report and accounts 2017



+  Investment in resihence including an additional hght arcraft
in Milan Malpensa, additional spare parts distnbuted across
the network and three weat leased arcraft to add flexiblity
N the schedule

+«  Additional ownership and financing costs that were
anticipated following investment in the long-term growth
of the arkne

+ inflationary cost increases such as agreed crew deals and
start-up costs related to the introduction of a new ground
handling company, DHL, at Gatwick

easylet remains on track to deliver flat headline cost per
seat excluding fuel at constant currency from the 2015
financial year to the 2019 financial year, assuming normal
levels of disruption and excluding Air Berhin

easyJet continues to prioritise its sector leading balance sheet
and dividend pohcy

« Cash and money market depositst™ at 30 Septernber 2017
of £1328 millon (2016 £269 milion) with net cash of
£357 milion {206 £213 millicn)

« Headline return on capital employed®™ at 119%, in ine with
easyJelt's long-term benchmark

¢« Dvdend payout ratic of 50% of headline profit after
tax delvering a proposed ordinary dividend per share
of 40 9 pence

easyJet s well prepared for the UK's exit from the
Eurgpean Union

« Following the successful award of its Ar Operator
Certificate (AQC) and arlne operating licence in Austria,
easyJet Europe arine will be operating with more than
10 arcraft by the end of 2017 and 15 in the process of
registening more arcraft over the next 12 months

«  Aresolution will be proposed at easyJet's AGM to update
easyJet’s Articles of Asseociation relating to shareholder
ownership controls to ensure comphliance with EU
ownership requirements

MARKET ENVIRONMENT

easyJet operates in the European short-haul aviation market,
with a focused business model that has enabled it to
consistently generate high levels of profitability As competitors
continue to struggle to restructure therr high cost bases or
operate with inadeguate financial resources, easyJet 15 well
positioned selectively to strengthen its market positions
Economic trends rermain favourable across Eurcpe with
continued GDP growth supporting spending in all easyJets
major countnes

The total European short-haul market™ grew by 59% year-on-
vear and by 7 4% in easylJet's markets This was driven by
easylet's own growth and competitor growth supported
primarily by a continued low fuel price easyJet delvered
particularly strong growth im France and Switzerland

STRATEGIC PROGRESS
easyJet 1s delivering through its six strateaic pillars

Purposeful investment to buld strong number one and two
network positions

2 A lean cost advantage

3 Customer and operational excellence
4  Data and digital

5 Fnhance revenue growth

6 The best people

(3) [xcludes restricted cash

PURPOSEFUL INVESTMENT TO BUILD

STRONG NUMBER ONE AND NUMBER TWO
NETWORK POSITIONS

egsylet’s strategy s focused on primary arports, serving
valuable catchrment areas that represent Europe’s top markets
by GDP? Thus helps to dnve both leisure and business travel
These are strong, existing markets, bult up over a penicd of
time by legacy carners easyJet's portfolio of peak time slots at
arports, where either total slot availability or avalabiity at
customer-friendly times s constrained, further reinforces its
competitive advantage

easyJet currently holds 18 number one market positions by
share of seat capacity and has identified a number of potential
targets for the next five yvears where GDP and passenger
volurnas are high, and where there 1s a weak incumbent and/or
where there 1s no clear winner today easyJet's network
decisions are not driven by cost but by the desrre to secure
strong, long-term, sustanable and profitable positions in key
airports, in order 1o secure long-term, sustainable returns for
shareholders Number one or number two positons to weaker
legacy incumbents in key arrperts enable the arline to offer a
better proposition to customers and higher, sustainable returns
for investors

w
4
=
>
e
m
o
o
o
m
h-
Q
Fel
3

casyJet will continue to pursue this strategy with clanty and
purpose Looking ahead, easyJet expects that its capacity
growth will be targeted at deepening existing number one
positions or converting number two positions nto number
one positions, as well as seeding new number one and

bwo positions

easylet takes a disciphined approach to capital allocation,
batancing its network by deploying arcraft to where it can
achieve the hughest returns easylet’s strategy achieves
this through

1 Bulding number one positions both at pnmary arports and
on its routes, which drives significantly greater contribution

— 98% of easylet’s capacity touches an arport where
it has the number one or number two position by
market share

2 Investing in scale

- Leading positions, route frequencies and multiple
destinations create flexibiity for customers, as well
as renforcing the easylJet brand to ensure that it 1s
top of mind’

3 Investing wath purpose

— easylet has a track record of generating above the
cost of capital returns from purposeful investrments
within a three-year period

easy.Jet regularly reviews its route network in order to
maximise returns and explot dernand opportunities in

the market During the 2017 financial year easyJet added

79 rautes to the network Reflecting the arlne's discipline,

it also discontinued 20 routes which either did not meet
expected return critena, or became secondary to a more
attractive route elsewhere During the year easyJet also took
the decision to close its base in Hamburg in March 2018, wath
greater returns avallable by redeploying those arcraft
elsewhere in the network

easyJlet has continued to focus on key markets, growing
market share in the UK, Switzerland and ltaly Growth in
rmarket share was maore robust in France and the arine’s
announcerment that it will launch a new base in Bordeaux 1n
spring 2018, will create the arline's sixth base In the country

(A4} Headine return on capital employed shown adiusted for leases wath leases capitahserd ar 7 rmes

(5) Capacity and marke: share figures trom OAG Size of Luropean market based anuternal easy let defiition tistoncal data based on 1.2 month penacd

trom Qcrober 2016 to Seprember 2007

www edsylet com 1



Chief Executive's review / continued

easylef also invested in high capacity growth in its city
strategy 1N Venice and Naples to improve its number one
posttions as well as mamtanng share in the slot-constraimed
Amsterdam arrport, where the arrport 1s now at full capacity
easylet's announcement regarding its purchase of parts of
Arr Berlin's operations 1s consistent with this strategy

Overall easy.Jet grew capacity by 8 5% in the penod, with its
market share for easyJet’'s markets up 0 8 percentage pomnts
to 316% Progress in easyJet’s main markets is as follows

United Kingdom

easylet has strong market positions in all of the UK's busiest
arports, with 10 number one arrports and two number two
arports This includes 47% share of short-haul capacity at
London Gatwick and 43% share at Luton At 30 September
2017, 146 arrcraft were based in the UK, with 93 at four London
arrports easyJet increased its capacity in the UK during the
yvear by 8%, with sigmficant growth targeted at maintaming is
share of the London market through Luton and Gatwick and
Increasing capacity at Edinburah, Bristol and Manchester
arrports i particutar

France

easyJet currently has a number one position In Nice, with
number two positions in Paris, Lyon, Toulouse and Bordeaux
At 30 September 2017, the arline had 30 arcraft based in
France easylet ncreased capacity in the year by 1%,
significantly ahead of the overall market, to consolidate its
presence in Pans and increase its share in the regions With an
overall market share at 30 September 2017 of 15%, easy et has
ncreased its share of the market in France over the last year
by almost one percentage pomnt

Kaly

easylJet has a number one position at Milan Malpensa, Naples
ang Venice At 30 September 2017, the arine had 31 arrcraft
based in ltaly easyJet increased capacity in the year by 7%
further increasing 1ts investment in Venice, where easyJet now
has 26% share, Naples (30% share), and consalidating its
position n Milan Malpensa (40% share)

Switzerland

easyJet has a strong posttion in Swatzerland and 1s number one
N both Geneva and Basel with 43% and 60% market share
respectively At 30 September 2017, the arrline had 24 arcraft
based in Switzerland easylet increased capacity in the year by
1%, increasing 1ts share in both Geneva and Basel, aganst
overall market growth of 8%

Germany

In Germany, easyJet has two bases, at Berin Schonefeld,
where It has a number two position, and Hamburg which it has
now decided to close from March 2018 At 30 September
20717, the arrline had 16 arcraft based in Germany easyJet
increased capacity by 7% in Germany during the period as it
nvested In mantaning Its strong market share of the Rerlin
market The transaction with Air Berlin will secure a leading
position at Berlin Tegel arrport and a number one overall
position n the Berlin market (Europe’s third maost popular
destination for overmight stays)

Netherlands

easyJet holds the number two position behind KLM at
Amsterdam Schiphol airpert, which 1s now at full capacity

AL 30 September 2017, the arling had eght arrcraft based

In the Netherlands, which has increased purposefully since
opening the base in March 2015 easyJet increased capacity
by 8% in the year as it began to annualise the tigh growth
from the previous two years, focusing on adding freguencies
Lo existing destinations and capturing first wave demand
from business passengers

12 easyJet ple Annual report and accounts 2017

Portugal and Spain

easyJet operates out of all fve major arports in Portugal and
fhes both international and domestic routes At 30 September
2017, the arrline had eight arcraft based in Portugal easyJet
ncreased capacity by 14% in the year as it continued to
establish its position in both bases (Lisbon and Oporto)

easylet operates at 20 arports In Spain and serves over 150
routes At 30 September 2017, the arline had seven arcraft
based in Span In March, easylet opened its first seasonal base
n Palma de Mallorca, a major leisure destination with a focus
on the summer market This has been a major success and

has the potential to be repicated elsewhere easylet grew
capacity In Spain by 13% In the year as it continued to build

its presence at both Palma and its base in Barcelona

A LEAN COST ADVANTAGE

easylet 1s committed to maintaning its structural cost
advantage in the markets where It operates, pnmarily against
the legacy arlines

Through its Lean programme which 1s embedded in the arline's
culture, easylet continues to identify both short-term
efficiencies and longer term structural cost savings, leveraging
its Increasing scale These savings enable the arrhine to offset
the aeffects of underlying inflation and bulld flexibility to belp
imitigate revenue pressure

The Lean programme has been able to deliver sustainable
cost reduction £400 milion of sawngs have been achieved
over the last seven years, with £85 milon saved this year, and
2017 financial year headline cost per seat, excluding fuel, at
constant currency 1s margmally lower than the 2015 financial
year This s despite the regulatory environment and current
inflationary pressures

As a result, easyJdet remains commutted to ts target of flat unit
headline cost performance between the 2015 financial year
and the 2019 financial year, at constant currency and before
the effect of fuel, assuming normal levels of disruption and
excluding Ar Berlin

Savings will be delivered in the following areas

Airport and ground handling

«  As easylet Increases in size, the arhineg will drive further
econoimies of scale from long-term deals with arports and
ground handhng operators Management continues to
work with arrports that will reward easyJet's commitment
and growth with attractive financial packages For example,
despite 80% of outbound arports being regulated, airport
and ground handing costs decreased by 13% per seat at
constant currency

«  20% of all easylet passengers now travel through an
automated bag drop area with further automation planned
to be rolled out across the network Automatic gates are
also being tnalled for boarding

Maintenance and engineering

s easylet s driving further efficencies from its contract for
mantenance and the provision of spare parts, which
started in October 2015

« easylet s using data science and its strong relationship
with Airbus to support predictive maintenance, which will
drive further long-term cost savings

«  Innovation contnues to drive down costs For example,
the BladeFix applcation determines the most efficient way
of replacing blades, resulting in savings of ¢ US$250.000
per year



Crew

+ easylet’s business model of employing crew across Europe
on local contracts delivers significant value in attracting
and retaning high gualty crew The arlne beleves this is
the best long-term and sustainable resourcing model in
the markets it operates in easyJet’s investment in this area
has driven structural benefits, including low crew turnover,
al less than 4% for pilots, and a strong pipeline of pilots
and crew

« easylJet s nvesting significant resources to iImprove
schedule and rostenng efficiency, which will improve
productivity and create a more stable working environment
for its crew

Overhead and IT

« easyJefl continues to implement its new organisational
design which will bring significant effictency to the business,
as well as the abity to leverage scale In overhead for future
agrowth This will deliver ¢ £15 million of annualised saving,
with a six to nine month payback on the investment

¢« Increasing investmeant into data and digital to increase
simplicity, enhance flexbility and drive efficiency

«  Continung end-tc-end review of the supplier base in all
areas of the business to reduce cost and drive Innovative
thinking about the way the arrline works in the future

Up-gauging and efficient fleet management

= Mowving from 156 seats on an AZ19 to 186 seats on an
AZ20neo arrcraft s expected to deliver a cost per seat
saving of arcund 1% to 13% This 1s being achieved by
increasing the proportion of higher gauge A320 arrcraft in
the fleet

- all new A320 deliveries will be fitted with 186 seats,
~ retrofitting the existing fleet of 180-seat A320s, and
- introduction of the 186-seat A320neo from June 2017

» The addition of A32Ineo arcraft to the fleet from July 2018
15 expected to deliver an 8% to 9% cost per seat saving
compared to an A3Z0neo, prnmarly due to ther 235-seat
configuration

* easylet has bult fleet flexibiity which means the arrine
15 able to either iIncrease or decrease the fleet growth
programme, allowing it to manage ownership costs in line
with external factors

Fuel

+ ecasylet continues to optirmise its commercial and
logistical fuel supply arrangements, working closely with
its fuel providers

Non-headline items

As indicated previously, easy et has incurred a number

of non-headine costs during the 2017 financial year These
costs are separately disclosed as non-headine profit before
tax iterms

« easylet transacted the sale and leaseback of 10 arrcraft
in December 20716 to de-nsk the exit from the business
of the ageing A319 fleet easyJet has ncurred a non-cash
charge of £16 milhion Of this, £10 million relates to a loss
on disposal, which reflects the timing of the transaction
and the specific arrcraft sold A further £6 millon relates
to a one-off catch up In the mantenance provision due
to the differences in accounting treatment between
owned and leased arrcraft The proceeds of the transaction
were US $144 millon and are reflected in the cash flow
staterment The next tranche of 10 has now completed
for proceeds of US $i37 million, which will result in a
non-headlne charge of approxmately £20 mihorn in
the 2018 financial year

»  As aresult of the UK's referendum vote to leave the
European Union, easyJet has established an arrline in
Austria This will secure the flying nights of the ¢ 30% of the
network that remains wholly within and between EU states,
excluding the UK This one-off cost, compnised mainky of
arcraft registration costs, 1s expected to total up to £10
milion over three years, with £2 millon incurred in the 2017
financial year

+ Expenses associated with implementing the organisational
revicw In the 2017 financial year totalled £6 milion
Approximately £3 milion 1s expacted in the final phase of
this process in the 2018 financial year Annualised savings
are expected to be £15 milien
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« Balance sheet foreign exchange gans were £2 million
and the tar value adjustrment associated with the bond
cross-currency Interest rate swap was a £1 milion loss

CUSTOMER AND OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
easylet continues to challenge itself to make things easier for
our customers and deliver good operational performance
during a challenging time for the industry We know that
arrport and arrspace congestion wili not change overnight, but
we are Investing in the tools to ensure better performance and
improve cur On-Time Performance (OTFP)

In the 2017 financial year, cancellations and delays decreased
by 4% to 7,047 (2016 7.357) but OTP decreased by one
percentage point to 76% The challenges of working at
Gatwick, where easyJet outperforms most of its direct
competitors on OTP, continue to have an impact on the rest
of the network, OTF excluding the UK was three percentage
points higher at 72% In particular, easyJet was affected by a
number of external factors

+ Severe weather at peak times of year

+ Strkes around the network including French Air Traffic
Control (ATC), ltalan Ground Handling and Berlin
Ground Handling

«  Reduced capacity as French ATC perform systems
upgrades in Bordeaux, similar to the Brest upgrades
last year

«  (apacity imitation events at Gatwick arrport such as the
disruption caused by a burst tyre on an Ar Canada flight
n July

OTP % arrnvals Full
within 15 minates Qi Q2 Q3 Q4 year
2006 Netwaork 82% B82% 74% 7% 77%
Network excluding UK 83% 84% 78% /6% B0%
2017 Network 9% 80% 78% 68% /6%
MNetwork excluding UK 82% 82% 80% 72% 79%
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Chief Executive's review / continued

easyJaet invested In a number of initiatives In the year to dnve
better On-Tirne Performance and improve operational
resilience

«  Engineening initiatives to increase awrcraft avalabiity
easyJet has set up an Arcraft On Ground Response Team
and added a second light arcraft at Milan Malpensa to the
one at Luton to ensure engineers can fix arcraft more
quickly, saving ¢ £6 millon in the summer, spare parts have
been distributed around the network to support a faster
response, guided by predictive maintenance analysis, and
predictive mantenance 15 also being used in scheduled
checks and 1s expected to reduce technical operational
nterrupbions by up to 20%

«  Gatwick North Terrminal consobdation since January
easyJet has been able to improve operations and customer
expenence at Gatwick, and 80% of stands are now
dedicated to easylet arcraft, enablng more efficient
ground handiing processes and consistent turn times

»  Customer communications easyJet has increased its push
notifications to customers, to manage disruption better,
technology 15 also supporting more consistent
communication between Operations Control, ground
handling teams and on-board crew to passengers, and
easyJet has now Introduced further automation to the
compensation clams process to improve customer
satisfaction and reduce processing costs

» Schedule and rosters easylet has introduced breaks to
its scheduie and increased block times {reducing asset
utilisation) to ensure it can deliver a more robust schedule
for its custorners In addition, three arcraft were wet leased
this summer to build fiexbiity and a further two spare
arcraft made avalable to add resihence

«  Employing new techinology increasing the use of digital
technology In recording aircraft mantenance and causes
of delays Addtionally, we are plloting the use of solutions
such as zero-emission electnc tugs to reduce noise and
poliution as well as drones to speed up the arcraft
mamntenance progcess

Over the last three vears easyJat has bean working with
Gatwick Aurport to create ifs Arport of the Future at the

North Terminal This has seen the introduction of moble
hasting, which pravides miformation on baggage and departure
belts for 55 milion customers, the introduction of the world's
largest Autcbag drop and upgrades to secunty resulting Iin
reduced walling trmes Following these upgrades, queue timas
at manual bag drop desks have deaclined with 90% of our
customers wating fewer than frive minutes The North Terrminal
now processes 600 passengers per lane per hour, up from

170 last year This has seen Custorner Satisfaction scores for
baggage drop wait ime increase by 22 percentage ponts
year-on-year Autobag drop has been rolled out to six further
arrports in totai since introduction at Gatwick

easyJet 1s also pleased to have announced a strateaic
partnership with DHL They are now working with easyJet to
transform ground handling at Gatwick airport with new deas,
innovation and a razor sharp approach to efficiency and
consistency
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Looking ahead, the next phase of the Arport of the Future will
focus on the boarding process, using facial recognition
technology and e-Gates to reduce queuing time, speed up
boarding and improve the efficiency of our turn arocunds Tnals
of these new innovations will commence in Gatwick and Luton
n 2018

DATA AND DIGITAL

easylet has been at the forefront of digital innovation in the
airine industry and 1ts digital strategy 1s a core part of easyJet's
wider strategy Its capability helps to buld customer loyalty,
drive revenue growth, secure cost savings and deliver greater
customer satisfaction easylet's increasingly sophisticated use
of data will enable the business to make travel even easer and
more affordable in the long-term

Customers are now making 27% of all e-commerce bookings
through mobile platforms, an increase of 54 percentage pomts
from 30 September 2016, as functionality and accessibility
irmprove further The ability to sirmplify transactions continues
to improve with technology such as Apple Pay seeing strong
adoption and representing 10% of all app bockings 24% of
passengers now use mobile boarding passes (9 5 percentage
points increase from 2016 iinancial year) and 40 arports
support real time data exchange for gate information and bag
drop easydet sent 116 milion "go to gate” push notifications
dunng the penod

Innovation and digital leadership

easyJet continues to innovate tc maintain its advantage,
improving the customer experience and increasing efficency
This 15 being delivered across the business, from the new
commercial platferm and easyJet Worldwide, within the lean
intiatives, in operations with the rollout of 1IPads in Palma for
our crew members, and In engineering where we are reducing
both fuel use and carbon emissions

The new website custorner interface, rolled out this year, 15 a
key point of differentiation and provicles a platform to release
new features and enhancements This has already delivered
ncreases N conversion and attachment rates as customers
find it easier to search for flights, compare routes, times and
fares and see more reievant wformation on seats and bags
Further opportunities for commercial optimisation are planned

easy.Jet has continued to enhance its app capabilities, bulding
on 1ts consistent 4 5 star rating, 23 milhon downloads and over
500 000 uses per day In addition to functionality that
improves the travel expenence and drives loyalty, such as
mobile boarding passes and the flight tracker, easyJet's app

15 Increasingly being used to manage disruphon, combiring
better communication with the ability for passengers to
self-handle, easlly rebooking therr fights and securing
pre-approved hotel accommodation

Through the app customers can also add bags, seats,
hotels, cars, nsurance, lounges, transfers and, most recently,
in-destination actwvities During the year, easyJet announced
mitiatives with its frst two Founders Factory portfolio
companies, Fllo and Lucky Trip, and will be integrating both
nto the easyJet travel app during 2018, delivering customer
benefits in arport expenence and travel expenence This
activity 1s already getting significant traction with mobile
customers, who are spending over 35% more than web-only
customers and n-destinabion mobile purchases are growing
250% yvear-on-year



Loyalty and data

easyJet continues to benefit from increasingly loyal customers
During the year 75% of seats were booked by returning
customers, representing an increase of nearly six milion
compared to 2076 easyJet has seen significant increases

In returming custorner loyalty in its core markets of the UK

(2 O millon customers) and Switzerland (14 milhion customers),

with strong increases also Iin France and Germany

easyJet is bulding increasingly strong relationships with its
customers through the use of personalised data easyJat's
Customer Relationship Management (CRM) database of
marketable customers increased by 5 6% dunng the year
to 27 7 milllon easylet’s loyalty scheme Flight Club 1s also
producing demonstrable benefits, driving higher retention
and higher satisfaction than non-members Over 50% of
Flight Club members fly 20 or more times a year, with just
under 40% representing business or commuter customers

The Introduction of a new Data Hub, will allow easyJet to
store significant amounts of customer, operational and
financial data in a secure environment This buillds on the
strong foundations of the existing CRM programme and
will deliver increasingly personalised communications to
custormers Investments in effective CRM bring tangible
cost and revenue benefits, mcluding

» Reducing marketing cost per seat by 25% over the
past five years

+ Enhancing customer value by over 30% — with 29% more
custormners in our CRM programme booking flights versus
those outside the programme

— of those customers, each generates 50% more flight
revenue and 47% more ancillary revenue

ENHANCED REVENUE GROWTH

asasyJet has a progiamme to develop additional revenue
streams as well as enhancing existing revenue streams,
leveraging its pnmary arport-focused network, cost focus
and track record of nnovation

The arline 15 exploring new distnbution channels, partner
agreements and structures such as cennectivity with other
arlines easyJet I1s also increasingly using data science to
support revenue-enhancing inibiatives, for example using
customer profiling on specific sectors and routes

During the 2017 financial year, bag revenue increased by 30%
above projection due to improved pricing algonthms easylet
also began the tnal of artificial ntelligence to conduct market
diagnostics to help it react faster to changes in competitor
pricing and other dynamics, as well as to improve route
forecasting and to inform pricing strategy

Business passengers

Dunng the year the total number of business passengers has
ncreased by 36%, against a backdrop of capacity investment
weighted towards leisure routes Business passengers
compiised 16% of easylet's customer base, reflecting the mix
of routes flown The business passenger pramium
cutperformed the prior year at £11 58, up 9 5% versus the 2016
financial year This was aided by the recovery from shock
events {which disproportionately /mpacted short-terrm travel)
and an increase In Business Flex revenue

With the proposition now well established. easyJet I1s evolving
the product offering, to drive better distribution and reduce
costs This year negotiations with Global Distnibution Systemn
(GD5) partners heiped to drive costs savings of over £1 milion

Additional revenue streams

During the year, easylet has seen strong growth inits ancillary
(including non-seat) revenue of 17 8% to £986 milion,
offsetting pressure on licket prices from the external
environment For example easylet has seen excellent early
results from new initiatives in 1its baggage strategy as well as
continued strong pick-up in allocated seating, reflecting
changes to consumer behaviour In September easyJet
launched its ‘easyJet Worldwide™ piatform, leveraging its
netwaork and schedule in Europe’'s pnmary arports, offering
connections with long-haul partners as well as a channel for
thurd party partner sales easylet also has opportunities to
buld on ks partnerships with industry-leading brands in car
rental (Europcar) and hotels (Booking com) and 15 explorng
other value channels Bulding on these, easyJet has a number
of progjects In the pipelne for the next 12 months
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The integration of technological platforms will enable easy Jet
to add products more easly across the value chan and offer
themn to customers in dynamic and compelling ways In May
easylet launched its hands free bag proposition which has sold
over 420,000 bags by the end of the financial year Further
products such as pre-crder meais, entertainment and car
parking will be integrated over the course of 2018

THE BEST PEOPLE

easyJet cares about its people and believes they set the arline
apart easyJet’s customer-facing ernployees are the very best
in the Industry and contribute significantly to the positive
experience that passengers enoy, leading to increased loyalty
and repeat husiness

easy jet continues fo recruit to support its growth, adding over
5321 piots and 1,846 cabin crew during the 2017 financial year
36% of positions were filled by internal candidates, ahead of
easyJet’s target of 30% Retention rates remain gocd with
total employee turnover at 7%, while flight deck turnover was
less than 4%

Since 2015, particutarly through s Amy Johnson initiative,
easyJet has been seeking to encourage more women to
become pilots, to help address the significant gender
imbalance in the world-wide pilot cornmunity easyJet met its
initial target ta increase the proportion of new entrant pilots
who are female to 12% 10 2076, a year ahead of schedule
easyJets current target s for 20% of new entrant pilots who
are female by 2020

This year easyJet has invested in ts 'Next Generation’
prograrmme, that 1s focused on driving efficiency and
effectiveness in the overhead structure By optimising a
scaleable organisational design, focusing on accountabilibies
and empowerment, it will enhance ways of working that will
support more effective and cost-efficient growth as well as
more agile decision making that best fits easylet’s
entrepreneurial culture The programme will be completed
N the 2018 financial year
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Chief Executive's review / continued

Fleet as at 30 September 20717

Future  Unexercised

Operating Changes n cammitted purchase

Owned leases Finance leases Total % of fleet year delvenes nghts

A319 83 54 143 51% Q)] - -
A320 m 8 5 134 48% 21 15 -
A3Z20neo 2 - - 2 1% 2 98 100
A3S21 — - - - — — 30 -
202 72 5 279 22 143 100

CAPITAL ALLOCATION AND FLEET

easyJet has a ruthless focus on capital allocation, using its
rnarket-leading fleet flexioiity to increase or decrease capacity
deployed easylet regularly reviews the opportunities avalable
and prevalling economic and rmarket conditions to determine
the most effective capital allocation Every vear the airhne
churns routes that have not reached therr targeted objectives
using the flexibility to move arcraft between routes and
miarkets (o ensure mmproved utlisation and generate
increased returns

In the past five years easyJet has closed bases In Madnd and
Rome and redeployed those aircraft to secure stronger more
profitable market positions elsewhere Likewise this yvear
easyJet announced the closure of its Hamburg base which will
take place in March 2018

easyJet 1s able to support this with industry-leading fleet
flexibility, through the timing and scale of capacity deployment
new aircraft orders can be deferred, leases may be extended
or returned to the lessor, aircraft may be sold or utiisation can
be reduced at times of low demand This year easyJet
secured, with Awrbus, a reduced notice period for deferring
delivenes from 24 months to 18 maonths, giving it a competitive
advantage in 1ts ability to respond to market conditions

In agdition, easyJet has reached an agreement with Airbus to
purchase 30 A3Z2eo arcraft In a Z35-seat configuration, with
the first delivenes expected in July 2018 This 1s a conversion
of 30 A32Cneo orders under the existing 2013 easyJet Arrbus
agreement This will enable easylet to continue to deliver
growth in slot-constrained arports, as well as securing
substantial unit cost savings, which are estimated to be
around 8% to 9% better than a 186-seat A320nec

easyJet’s total fleet as at 20 September 2017 comprised

279 awcraft (2016 257 arcraft), spht between 156-seat Arbus
AZ19s, 180-seat A320s, 186-seat A320s and, since June 2017,
186-seat A320neos, Alongside 1its lean intigtives over the next
five years easyJlet will reduce cost per seat by improving the
fleet mix In the 2017 financial year, easyJet took delivery of 23
arrcraft, Including 21186-seat A320s and its first two A320neos
The A320neo provides a total per seat cost saving of 1% ta
13% compared to the A319 through economies of scale,
efficiencies in crew, ownership, fuel and maintenance easyJlet
also completed the up-gauging of 439 of its existing 80-seat
AZ20s to 186 seats and s expecting to complete the
remainder of the fleet In Winter 2018/9

The average age of the fieet increased to 7 1years (2016 69
years) and the average number of seats per arrcraft ncreased
to 169 seats During the year, easyJet maintaned ts asset
utilisation across the network at an average 10 9 block hours
per day {2016 109 hours)

easyJet continues to have a strong balance sheet, with net
cash of £357 milion at 30 September 2017 This is partly as a
result of 1ts procurement review of supplier terms, particularky
with ts fuel supphers, as well s cash receved in advance from
the growing customer base Of the 207 arcraft on easylet's
balance sheet at 20 September 2017, 202 (98%) are
unencumbered Moody's and Standard & Poor's have both
recently reaffirmed therr industry leading ratings of BBB+ and
Baal respectively

Based on current plansincluding the recently agreed changes
to include AZ2Ineo arrcraft, capital expenditure for the next
three years 15 as follows

Year 2017 2018 2009 2020
Gross capital
expenditure (Emillion) 630 1,200 200 1,000

easy.Jet continues to ook for ways of optimising the efficiency
of the balance sheet, including the management of the
quidity pastion, which s currently set at a minimum of

£2 6 millon per 100 seats To support the hquidity position, a
pohcy has been written with Munich Re to provide £150 million
of business interruption INsurance to cover large short-term
shock events, wath a mited number of exclusions Pricing 1s
competiive with other sources of funding and frees up cash
for use In the business

Hedging positions

easyJet operates under a clear set of treasury policies
agreed by the Board The am of easyJet's hedgng pelicy 1s
to reduce short-term earnings volatiity Therefore, easyJet
hedges forward, on a rolling basis, between 65% and 85% of
the next 12 months anticipated fuel and currency exposures
and between 45% and 65% of the following 12 months
anticipated requrrernents Specific decisions may reguire
ronsideration of a longer-term approach Treasury strategies
and achons will be driven by the need to meet treasury,
financial and corporate objectives

BREXIT PLANS AND SHARE OWNERSHIP

In July easyJet announced that it had established a new arrline,
easylet Europe, which 1s headguartered in Vienna and will
enable easyJet to continue to operate fhghts hoth across

Detalls of hedging arrangements as at 30 September 2017 are set out below

Percentage of anticipated requirement hadged Fuet requirement rqu?e[r)r?gg; Euro surplus CHF surplus
Six months to 31 March 2018 82% 80% 71% B3%
Average rate $512 /metric tonne $136 €125 CHF 134
Full year ending 30 September 2018 75% 73% 73% 80%
Average rate £514 / metnc tonne $136 €124 CHF 131
Full year ending 30 September 2019 45% 47% 51% 47%
Average rate $533 / metnc tonne $130 £113 CHF 122
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Furope and domestically within European countries after the
UK has left the EU (regardiess of the cutcome of talks on a
future UK-EU aviation agreement) The new structure means
that easyJet will become a pan-European arlne group with
three arrines based In the UK, Switzerland and Austria All of
these will be owned by easyJet plc which itsalf will be EU
owned and controlled, listed on the London Stock Exchange
and based in the UK

It 1s a requirernent of EU law that an EU member state may
only permit an arr carrier to operate arline services If the
majonty of 1ts share capital 1s owned and the camer 15
effectively controlled by member states of the EEA or therr
nationals Therefore easyJet will propose changes to s
Articles of Association, to be put to shareholders at its Annual
General Meating in February 2078, that will ensure easyJet plc
15 able to rermain EU owned and contrelled at all times after the
UK has left the EU as required under EU law

casylet’s Articles of Association already contain existing
provisions to give the Directors powers to Imit the ownership of
the Company’s shares by non-UK nationals and a number of
powers to enforce this imitation easyJet intends to amend these
provisions, pending shareholder approval, such that they apply to
non-EU holders of easyJet shares (which will exclude UK hoiders
once the UK has left the EU) It 1s currently anticipated that the
permitted rmaximum in respect of non-EU holders of easyJel
shares following this change wil be set at sightly less than 50%
Full details of the proposed changes to the articles of association
will be iIncluded In the Notice of Annual General Meeting to be
posted to shareholders in January 2018

easyJet begins from a position of strength, with close to
50% of its shares already held in the hands of EEA nationals
(excluding UK-only nationals) and the Company has already
begun a rmore ngorous investor relations programme across
Europe wath the intention of increasing EEA {(non-UK)
ownership above 50% pnor to the UK's exit from the EUJ As
such, easyJet has no current intention of using these proposed
powers, In respect of non-EU holders of easyJet shares but
consicers these changes an important step in ensunng that
easyJet plc has the ability to mantain EU ownership and
control at all times should it need to do so and thus secure
its future operations in Eurcpe for the long-term

easyJet 1s workmg with the UK government, EU institutions and
therr member states to ensure that flying nghts between the
UK and the EU are mantained

AIR BERLIN ACQUISITION

In October easyJet announced an agreement to acquire part of
Arr Berlin's operations at Berlin Tegel arport for a purchase
consideration of €40 millon, subject to antitrust and regulatory
approvals The acguisition, which s expected to close in
Decernber 2017, will result in easyJet enterng into leases for up to
25 A320 arcraft, offering employment to up to 1,000 former Air
Berln crews and taking aver other assets including slots The
purchase price excludes start-up and transitional operating costs

This agreement I1s consistent with easyJet's strategy of
purposeful Investment in strong number one positions In
Europe's leading arports (or number two to a legacy
incumbent) This will enable easyJet to operate the leading
short-haui network at Tegel connecting passengers to and
from destinations across Germany and the rest of Eurcpe
This 1s n addition to easyJet's existing base at Berlin
Schonefeld and would mean that easyJet would be the
leading arrhine in Berln

Based on current assumptions, easyJet expects to incur
headhne losses of around £60 millon on its activities at Tegel
in the 2018 financial year, as it starts up operations n January
2018 using wet lease arcraft with initially lower loads and

vields in addition, one-off non-headline costs associated with
the transaction are expected in the 2018 financial year of
around £100 milion These costs represent the parallel ramp
up of a dry lease operation, including fleet conversion and staff
recruitment and traming costs, as well as transaction costs

The transaction 1s expected to be earnings accretive by the
201 financial year

OUTLOOK

easyJet continues to see the current market environment
as an opportunity to buld and strengthen 1its network and
customer proposition for the long-term

easyJel plans to grow capacity by arcund 6% for the 2018
financial year, excluding Ar Berlin capacity Forward bookings
are ahead of last year at 88% for the first quarter and 26% for
the second quarter

Revenue trends in the first quarter have been encouraging,
prnimarily as a result of some capacity leaving the market
Revenue per seat growth at constant currency in the first
quarter 1s now expected to be positive by low to mid-single
digits and reflects a degree of short term benefit as well as
underlying improvement Revenue per seat growth at constant
currency In the first half 1s also currently expected to be positive
by low to mid-single digits reflecting the move of Easter from
the third quarter, excluding the impact of Air Berlin which will be
disclosed separately throughout the 2018 financial year Visibility
for the second half of the financial year 1s very imited

Total headline cost per seat 1s expected to decrease by arcund
2% during the 12 months to 30 September 2018, exciuding the
impact of Air Berlin costs Headline cost per seat, excluding
fuel and at constant currency, 1s expected to Increase by up to
1% due to underlying crew and ground handing cost inflation,
and excludes the impact of Air Berlin

Based on today's fuel prices® unit fuel costs for the year to
30 September 2018 are expected to benefit easylet by
betwean £100 million and £125 millon as a result of easyJet’s
advantaged hedging position

The total expected headline foreign exchange™ impact for the
year 1o 30 September 2078, 1s expected to be a headwind of
around £5 milicn

easylet’s policy of paying its dividend from headline profit
after tax 1s expected to delver dvidend growth in the 2018
financial year

CARQLYN MCCALL DBE
Chief Executive

On a personal note, this will be my final set of results as
CEC and | would ke to thank all of easyJet's people who
have conlnbuted so much to easyJet's success story,
and | wish them all the very best for the future

6 Lnit fuelis calculated as the difference becween latest estunate of the 2008 financ el vear fuel costs tess the 2007 financial vear fuel costs per seat,
multiphed by the 2018 financial year seat capacity Based on fuel spot prce range of $5M0) 5650

177 LS dallar to £ Sterlng 132 Lure to £ Seerbng 1°2, Swiss Franc i Stering 13 Currency cepital sxpendirure and fuel ncreases are shown net of hedging

Impact
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Chief Executive's review / continued

Our markets |

easyJet operates in the European short-haul aviation market.
The following trends are key drivers in that market:

FOREIGN GDP

EXCHANGE GDP 1s an established driver that 1s gererally accepted as having a positive
multiplier effect on arr passenger traffic

easyJet 15 exposed to foreign

exchange rate movernants,

principally Sterking agamnst the US

dollar and the Euro, which it hedges
to mitigate volatihty 2018 GDP PROJECTIONS (%)

Economic trends remain favourable, with positive GDP expected in alt of
easyJet s European base markets in 2018

Since the UK referendum vote to
leave the European Union Sterling
has significantly fallen in value
against both currencies, which

has had an ongoing negative
impact on profit. A strong US dollar
Increases the price of fuel,
easyJet's biggest cost; a strong
Euro typically has a net benefit for '
easy.Jet’s European operations |

FUEL AND CAPACITY

Fuels the biggest cost that airfines face Continued iow fuel prices have
sustained market capacity growth and weaker arrlines. During the financial year
the price of Brent increased by 13% |

EUROPEAN SHORT-HAUL BRENT PRICE ($ PER BBL)
CAPACITY GROWTH YOY %

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed Graph removed

The weakening of Sterling has seen
an adverse headhne impact of
£101m in FY17

GEOPOLITICAL EVENTS i

The aviation industry has been affected by a number of geopolitical events in recent years which have had both short-term
and iong-term conseguences for demand and the structure of the industry

UK DECISION TO LEAVE EU

easyJet has been a major beneficiary of the European Umion, in particular the Open Skies regulation Following the UK's
decision to leave the EU in June 2016 easyJet has taken steps to protect its operations in the future, including the
establishment of an Arr Operator Certificate (AQC) in Austria

TERROR ATTACKS IN THE EU

Major European crties have been sulbject to a number of terronst attacks including easyJet s key bases of Pans, London,
Nice and Berlin These all had an immediate impact on consumer demand, which reversed over time
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Our strategy

Through a consistent strategy

Qur strategy is shaped by our positioning and response to these market
conditions and we believe we have the best strategy going forward to

create value for our stakeholders.

The pillars of our strategy remain consistent. We have six strategic piflars through which we deliver sustainable
growth and returns for cur shareholders Our people are the key enablers that underpin everything we do.
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OUR STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK

AMBITION

To be Europe's preferred short-haul
airline, delivering market-leading returns

CAUSE

To make travel easy and affordable

VALUES

Safety - Pioneering - One Team - Passion - Integrity - Simplicity

STRATEGIC PILLARS

No.1
positions
at leading
airports

Drive premium
returns through
brand and
operational
presence via
a compeling
network

No 2 behind
legacy carner

Cost
advantages

Sustan matenal
relative cost
advantage on
the routes we
serve to allow
us to offer value
for money fares

Customer &
operational
excellence

Ensure that
our model
15 efficient,
dehvers custormer
satisfaction and s
fit for purpose for
today’s business
requirements

Data & digital
advantage

Leverage data
to nmprove both
commercial
performance
(roevenue) and
operational
efficiency (cost)

v
Grow The best
revenue people

An organisation
that 1s engaged
to drnive incremoental  and fit for purpose

Leverage existing
capital Investment

to take the
business forward

revenue and profit

Delver improved
and stable rosters
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Qur strategy / continued

Enabling delivery

OQur strategy dashboard provides a clear overview
of our performance against our strategic priorities.

WHAT WE SAID

I
NETWOIRK

Achieve number 1 and 2 positions at primary airports

1 + Invest in scale and purpose
BUILDING AND « Purposefully invest up to 9% annual organic capacity increases in
STRENGTHENING growing the network
NO.1 AND NO.2 NETWORK
FPOSITIONS
T R EEL R R TR PP PP PP PR PR PP
COST +« Move towards our target, before the impact of acquisitions, of
delivering flat cost per seat excluding fuel at constant currency in
2. the 2019 financial year, versus the 2015 financial year at normal
MAINTAINING levels of disruption
ié@iﬁ?ggg + Leverage our scale and increasingly large positions at our arrports

+ Drive easylet Lean within the business

« Improve returning customer metric, in turn increasing revenue
» Secure better on-time performance, ensuring aircraft arrive and

REVENUE depart on time

2 « Minimise and better manage disruption

MAINTAINING CUSTOMER
AND OPERATIONAL

EXCELLENCE

« |dentify our most valuable flyers using our customer database

4. » Use data to increase level of personalisation to customers across

CONTINUING TO multiple channels through CRM
LEVERAGE DATA AND + Enhance customer experence on app to increase mobile bookings
DIGITAL PLATFORMS « Roll out first stage of digital commercial platform

«  Grow business passenger revenue

5 « Increase ancillary revenue

GROW
REVENUE

+ Increase the number of female pilots as part of long-term strategy

«  Employ the rnght people to understand easyJet's values and
6 develop a high-perfarmance culture

THE BEST PEOPLE Invest in the 'Next Generation’ programme
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WHAT WE DID

s  Added 79 routes to the network
* Opened a seasonal base in Palma de Mallorca

« Decided to close our Hamburg base because it
did not meet expected return critena

+ Purposeful growth in UK, France and Switzerland
in particular

« Delivered lean savings of £85 million

+ Invested in resilience measures to address
disruptien

s Invested in the ‘Next Generation’ programme to
drive efficiency and effectiveness in the
overhead structure

+ Processed four millon bags through our Autobag
drop area

« improved customer satisfaction at Gatwick by 22
percentage points by reducing the amount of
time customers wait to go through bag drop off

+ Completed our Gatwick North Terminal
consoldation programme

= Strong year-on-year improvement in summer
OTP at Gatwick

«  75% of seats booked by returning loyal
customers

« Increased easyJet's marketable customers
by 5.6%

+ Increased easytet Plus membership by 58 3%

s Increased bookings by mobile app by 27 2%

« Increased non-seat revenue by 9.3%
« Launched Worldwide by easyJet

¢ Introduced Hands Free bag offer — £420k
revenue in the financial year

+ Increased the number of female new entrant
co-pilots by 48% through the Amy Johnsen
Initiative

« Introduced 'For the love of flying’ campaign to
attract new pilots

+ Recruited 14 engineering apprentices.

WHAT WE'RE GOING TO DO
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Continue to establish strong leadership positions

invest to achieve number 1 position in each
alrport or a number 2 position to a weak
flag carrier

21 arcraft delvenes scheduled

Drive further lean imtiatives throughout
the business

Up-gauge our fleet with A320ceo, A320nec
and A32Ineo awcraft

Complete 'Next Generation’ programme

Reduce the number of technical events with
predictive maintenance and enhanced part
management and distribution

Improve disruption management through

better processes and communication with

our customers

Influence structural improvements through
discussion with arrports, governments and the EU

...................... R R R R R N T N I I I R L I T I R R I LI I RO R )

Continue investing substantially in
digital capability

Continue roll-out of new commercial platform
with improved capability

Drive higher conversion rates
Increase ancillary revenue

[ R O T N N T R T R R I R R R R R R R

Explore new distnbution channels, partner
agreements and structures

Continue to strengthen our corporate sales
Further innovative and targeted product roll-out

Continue to improve diversity by attracting more
women to apply for cadet programme

Improve retention and engagement scores

Develop strong pilot and crew
recrutment pipelines
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Our strategy in action

DRIVING OPERATI

We have now consolidated
our Gatwick North Terminal
programme, resulting in an
improved customer experience
and operational cost savings
of around £5 million.

Image removed

OUR AUTO-BAG DROP WITH THE PROCESS
AREA HAS PROCESSED TAKING FEWER THAN
OVER

AMILLION  OMINUTES

BAGS SINCE OPENING LAST YEAR FOR 90% OF PASSENGERS

Turn to pages 20 and 21
for more details on our Strategy
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ONAL BENEFITS

easyJet has been
exploring the use of
predictive maintenance
technology to help predict
when an aircraft fault is
likely to occur on its Airbus
A320 family aircraft.

WE ARE

USING THIS DATA
T0 GREAT EFFECT
AND EXPECT

T0 REDUCE
TECHNICAL FAULTS
ON OUR FLEET

BY UPTO

15%(1)

Tur tpg 20 d21
for more details ur Strategy

Image removed




Key performance indicators

Measuring our performance

SAFETY FIRST

i MARKET SHARE AT [ ]

FINAL EVENT RISK CLASSIFICATION (FERC) : AIRPORTS WHERE EASYJET

IS NUMBER ONE OR TWO
. CARRIER (%)

Graph removed : Graph removed
I
DEFINITION: PERFORMANCE: { DEFINITION:
All reported safety-related mcidents Safety remamns our number one Market share at arrports where easyJet 1s
are assessed and categonsed wath risk priority, supported by a strong safety the numibzer cne or number two carmer
values assigned and aggregated to form reporting culture : based on short-haul capacity
a final event nsk classification PERFORMANCE:

DATA AND DIGITAL
TOTAL NUMBER OF VISITS
TO ALL DIGITAL PLATFORMS (M)

" Inine with our strategy, we continued to

- hold cur market share at arports where

! easylet s the number one or number

" two carner based on shert-hau! capacity
The percentage of easyJet capacity that

. touches a number one or two arport

: also remained steady at 97 6%

- GROW REVENUE ' BEST PEOPLE o)
" REVENUE PER SEAT (f) | EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT !
: | — USAY (%) ‘

Gragh removed

Graph removed Graph removed

PERFORMANCE:

easy.Jet's award-winning digital platform
has driven an increase 1n number of visits
to all digital platforms

* 2006 and 2017 include wisits to the Fhght
Tracker section of our website

. DEFINITION: . DEFINITION:

+ Revenue divided by seats flown - Empioyee engagement index, based on
' PERFORMANCE: results of an employee survey
. Revenue per seat remained broadly flat ! PERFORMANCE:

I with a decrease of 4 5% at constant ¢ Feedback in the 2017 financial year was
. currency Due to the mnpact from increased  obtained through the ‘Next Generahion
overall market capacity along with low : programme To aveid duplication we
i prcing sustained by a low fuel price ¢ decided to conduct the next employee

survey in the 2018 financial year 2

(1) Surveys carmed aut pricr to 2014 were conducted using different methodelogy and the results are therefore not comparable

(2} See CEO review on page 15 for further details
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LEAN COST ADVANTAGE LN
. OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE
- OVERALL CUSTOMER

HEADLINE COST PER SEAT
EXCLUDING FUEL (£)

CUSTOMER AND 0

SATISFACTION (%)

Link to strategy

® Network / Cost
Revenue
C Best people

ON-TIME PERFORMANCE (%)

Graph removed

Graph removed
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Graph removed

DEFINITION:

Revenue less profit before tax, plus fuel
costs plus non-headline costs, dvided by
seats flown

PERFORMANCE:

Headline cost per seat excluding fuel
increased by 7 7%, with an increase of 0 9%
at constant currency reflecting planned
investment in the resiience of the
operation and increased disruption costs
which were partiglly offset by the fleet
up-gauging and lean inttiatives

Total cost per seat excluding fuel Increased
by 88% to £4153

= 2013-2015 as reported, not headhne

DISCIPLINED USE OF CAPITAL
ORDINARY DIVIDEND
{pence per share)

DEFINITION:

Customer satisfaction index, based
on results of a customer satisfaction
survey which measures how satished
the customer was with therr most
recent flight

PERFORMANCE:

Overall customer satisfaction was lower
than the prior year primarly due to
ncreased disruption

LIQUIDITY PER 100 SEATS (Em)

DEFINITION:
Percentage of flights which armve within
15 minutes of the scheduled arnval trme

PERFORMANCE:

Increased disruption due to the continued
arr traffic control strikes, severe adverse
weather and ongoing congestion at
London Gatwick have contributed to the
decrease in on-time performance

HEADLINE ROCE (%)

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph rermoved

PERFORMANCE:

The Board has recormmended a final
dvidend In ine with the dividend policy
of 50% of headline profit after tax

* 20132016 based on reported profit after
tax, no: headhne

DEFINITION:
Liguidity (cash plus revalang credit faciity)
per 100 arrcraft seats

PERFORMANCE:

This remains significantly above the Iguidhty
buffer to cover peak unearned revenue
with a mimimum position of £26 millon per
100 seats

DEFINITION:

Normalised operating headline profit after
tax draded by average adjusted

capital employed
PERFCRMANCE:

Headlne ROCE decreased, driven by a
tall in headline profit and an ncrease In
the average adusted capital employed
Total ROCF decreased to 11 3% (2016
(restated) 152%)

* 2013 2015 as reported, net headline
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Financial review

Our financial results

Image rermoved

ANDREW FINDOLAY
Chief Financial Officer

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

In the 2017 financial year, easyJet flew

80.2 million passengers (2016: 73.1 million)

and delivered a headline profit before tax

for the vear of £408 milion (£4.71 per seat),

a decrease of £86 million from a restated
headline profit before tax of £494 million
(restated profit of £6.18 per seat) last year. The
2017 result includes a £101 million unfavourable
movement from foreign exchange. At constant
currency, easyJet delivered a headline profit
before tax of £509 million during the year.

206

2017 (restated)

pence per pence per

£ million £ per seat ASK E mnilion £ per seat ASK

Total revenue 5047 58.23 527 4,669 58 46 532
Headline costs axcludng fuel (3.577} (41.27) (3.73) (3,061} (38 33) (349
Fuel (1,062) (12.25) {1.11) {1.114) (1395) 127
Headline profit before tax 408 4N 0.43 494 618 056

Headline tax charge (83) {0.96) {0.09) (67) {0 84) (007 ‘

Headiing profit after tax 325 3.75 0.34 427 5324 049
Non-headline logs/profit after tax (20) (0.23) (0.02} 10 013 of8)
Total profit after tax 305 3.52 0.32 437 547 Q50

Seats flown grew by 8 5% Total revenue per seat fell by

0 4% to £58 23, a decrease of 4.5% at constant currency

The decrease 15 a consequence of the persisting low fuel price
envircnment, resulting in high levels of capacity growth and a
competitive pncing environment which saw yields fall by 7 3%
at constant currency Partially offsetting these impacts was
growth in ancilfary revenue which grew by 8 6% to £11 38 per
seat, as intiatives and high load factors offset ticket

pricing pressures

Headline cost per seat axcluding fuel increased by 7 7% to
£4127 and increased by O 9% at constant currency This
increase is manly due to continued nflationary pressures in the
market, particularly at regulated arports, and higher disruption
costs as a result of a greater level of EU 261 compensation
claims and an increase In welfare costs driven by significant
inclustrial strike action and adverse weather conditions
Disruption increased the cost per seat by £0 34 at constant
currency These were combined with an increase in arcraft
lease costs due to rent associated with the 10 arcraft sale and
leasebacks in the year, increase in depreciation due to the
acquisition of new arrcraft both last year and this year, increase
in wet lease charges due to three arrcraft being wet leased

N the year to build peak season resiience and increase in net
interest costs which is attributable te the financing costs of
the two bonds These were partally offset by the impact of
the annualisation of reduced navigation charges, savings
obtaned from arrport lean initiatives, engineenng and
maintenance savings such as the component supply contract
and the up-gauging of fleet as easyJdet continues to move
from A319s to A320s

Fuel costs fell by £52 milhon, and from £13 95 to £12 25 per
seat Desprte an increase in the market price of fuel, the
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operation of easyJet’s hedging policy resulted m a reduction
n the effective fuel price

Headline profit before tax per seat decreased by 23 8% to
£4 71 per seat (2016 (restated) £618)

Non-headlne costs of £23 million were recognised in the
pencd, consisting of a £16 millon charge as a result of the

sale and leaseback of 10 AZ19 arcraft in Decernber, a £6 rmillion
charge associated with our organisabonal review, a2 £2 million
charge in relation to the set-up of an EL Arr Operator
Certificate (AOC), a £1 millon charge for far value adjustments
assoctated with the bond 1ssued in February 2016 and a

£2 millon gain for balance sheet revaluations

Total costs ncreased by £500 million to £4 662 millien, and
by F167 to £53 78 per seat (2016 (restated) £5211)

The tax charge for the year was £80 milion The effective

tax rate for the penod was 20 8% (2016 (restated) 138%),
higher than the standard UK rate of 19%, due to the Swiss
incorme being taxed at a higher rate combined with the impact
of prior year adjustrnents

Total profit after tax decreased from £437 milion to £305 million

Due to a change in accounting policy, to recognise the initial
mantenance provision catch up on sale and leasebacks
immediately in the income statement, a change was required
as a restatement of previous financial staterments Please refer
to note 1 of the accounts for full detals Dunng the year the
presentation of the results in the Income statement was also
changed to include a measure of profit described as headlne
to be used by the Directors to measure and monitor underlying
trading perforrmance The excluded items are referred to as
‘non-heading’ items Please refer to the non-headlne tems
secticn on page 29 for further details



EARNINGS PER SHARE AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

2006 4

2007 {restated) §

pence per pence pear jus'

share share Change g

Basic headiine earnings per share 825 108 4 (259 g

Basic total earnings per share 77.4 M09 (335) 3

Diluted headline earnings per share 818 1076 257) %
Proposed ordinary dividend 40.9 538 (129)

Basic total earnings per share decreased by 30 2% to 77 4p (2016 {restated) 110 9p) Basic headline earnings per share decreased
by 239% to 82 5p (2016 (restated) 108 4p) as a conseguence of the £102 milon decrease in the headline profit after tax

in line with the stated dividend policy of a pay-out ratio of 50% of headlne profit after tax, the Board 1s recommending an
ordinary dvidend of £162 millon or 40 9 pence per share which 1s subject to shareholder approval at the Company's Annual
General Meeting on 8 February 2018 This will be paid an 23 March 2018 to shareholders on the register at close of business
on 2 March 2018

RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED (ROCE)

2006
2017 (restated) Change
Headline ROCE 1.9% 15 0% (3 ppt)
Total ROCE 1 3% 152% (3 9ppt)

Headline ROCE for the year was 119%, a decline of 31 percentage points on the restated prior year The decrease in ROCE was
due to the decrease in headline profit for the year and a 111% increase in the average adjusted capital employed including lease
adjustments, primarily due to the acqusition of 23 arrcraft during the year The ROCE calculation excludes borrowings, cash
and money market deposits end includes an adustrnent for the capital Implicit In arrcraft operating lease arrangements The
adiustment 1s calculated by multiplying the annual charge for arcraft dry leasing by a factor of seven

EXCHANGE RATES

The proportion of revenue and costs denominated in currencies other than Sterling remaned broadly consistent year-on-year

Revenue Costs

2017 2016 2007 2016

Sterling 46% 50% 30% 27%

Euro 41% 39% 7% 35%

US dollar 1% 1% 26% 32%

Other (principally Swiss franc) 12% 10% 7% 6%
AVERAGE EXCHANGE RATES

2007 2006

Euro — revenue €119 €128

Euro — costs €115 €127

US dollar $1.46 $158

Swiss franc CHF1.38 CBHF151

Revenue cash inflows occur several months before cost cash outflows, as a result revenue and costs may be recognised at
different Euro exchange rates. The net adverse impact on profit due to the year-on-year changes In exchange rates was mainly
drniven by the stronger average US dollar and Euro rates

HEADLINE

Luro Swiss franc 1JS dollar Other Total
Favourable/(adverse) £ millon E milion £ milion £ millon E million
Revenue 15 42 &) 8 207
Fuel M - (84) - (85)
Headline costs excluding fuel (165) (28} (26) (4 (223)
Headline total {15) 14 {104) 4 {10%)
NON-HEADLINE

Lure Lwiss frane LS doilar Other Total
Favourable/{adverse) £ rmulhcm £ mullon £ miilon £ railhon £ mulhian
Non-headline costs excluding prior year balance
sheet revaluations m - 20 - 19
Prior year balance sheet revaluations (3) ] (5) 4 (3)
Non-headline total (4) 1 15 4 16
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Financial review / continued

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

REVENUE
2017 206
pence per pence per
£ million £ per seat ASK £ rmllon £ per seat ASK
Seat ravenue 4,958 57.20 518 4,587 57 43 523
Non-seat revenue B89 1.03 0.09 82 103 009
Total revenue 5,047 58.23 527 4,669 58 46 532

Revenue per seat decreased by 0 4% to £58 23 (2016 £58 48), a decrease of 4 5% to £5583 at constant currency The decrease
1s & consequence of the persisting low fuel price environment, resulting In high levels of capacity growth and a competitive
pricing environment which saw yields fall by 7 3% at constant currency Parbally offsetting these impacts was growth in ancllary
revenue which grew by 8 6% to £1138 per seat, as initiztives and high load factors offset ticket pricing pressures

Average load factor far the year increased by one percentage pomt to 92 6%

Revenue per ASK decreased by 10%, or by 51% at constant currency, tmpacted by a O 4% decrease in revenue per seat, and
a 0 6% Increase N the average sector length

easyJet currently categonses total revenue earned on the face of the Income statement between seat and non-seat revenue
From 1 October 2017, total revenue will be categorised between passenger and ancillary revenue This change provides greater
transparency of the ancillary element of revenue and brings easyJet in ine with other arlines Under the new presentation, total
revenue would have been categorised as follows

2017 2016

penhce per pence per

£ millien £ per seat ASK £ million £ per seat ASK

FPassenger revenue 4,061 46.85 4.24 3832 4798 437
Ancillary revenue 986 11.28 1.03 837 10 48 095
Total revenue 5047 58.23 827 4669 58 46 532

HEADLINE COSTS EXCLUDING FUEL
Headlne cost per seat excluding fuel increased by 7 7% to £E4127 and increased by O 9% at constant currency

206
2017 (restated)
pence per pence per
£ million £ per seat ASK £ mullion £ per seat ASK
Operating costs

Arrports and ground handling 1,465 16 90 183 1267 15 86 144
Crew 645 7.44 0.67 542 678 062
Navigation 381 4 40 .40 336 421 038
Maintenance 268 3.09 0.28 245 307 028
Selling and marketing 122 141 03 107 133 g1z
Other costs 3N 4.28 0.38 294 369 034
3,252 3752 3.39 2791 3494 318

Ownership costs
Arrcraft dry leasing ne 1.27 0.12 a1 115 ol
Depreciation 181 2.09 0.19 157 197 Q18
Amortisation 14 0.16 [oR0]] 12 Q15 o0l
Net interest payable 20 0.23 0.02 10 Q12 o
325 375 0.34 270 339 0 31
Total headline costs excluding fuel 3,577 41.27 373 3,061 38 33 349

Headline arports and ground handling cost per seat increased by 6 5% but decreased by 13% at constant currency Savings
cbtaned from arrport iean inihatives have offset regulatory arport uplifts

Headline crew cost per seat increased by 97% to £7 44, and by 4 2% at constant currency This reflects pay increases, increased
disruption and addiional iInvestment into operational resiience over the summer peak pericd, given the level of arport and
arspace congestion However, these were largely offset by efficiencies obtaned from the up-gauging of our fleet and savings
from lean intiatives

Headline nawigation cost per seat Increased by 4 4% to £4 40 but decreased by 4 0% at constant currency driven by the
annualisation of reduced charges, primarily in France and Germany

Headiine mamtenance cost per seat Increased by O 7% to £3 09, but decreased by 7 2% at constant currency This was driven by
engineerng and maintenance savings, such as the component supply contract, and the up-gauging of fleet as easyJet continues
to move from A319s to A320s
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Headline other operating costs per seat increased by 16 1% to £4 28 per seat, and by 12 2% at constant currency This was maimnly
driven by an increase in disruption costs due to a greater lavel of EU 261 compensation clarns and an increase in welfare costs
driven by sigrificant industral strike action and adverse weather conditions This was combined with an increase in wet lease
charges due to three arrcraft being wet leased over the summer to aid operational resilience

Headline arcraft dry leasing cost per seat increased by 112% to £127 but decreased by 0 8% at constant currency The
favourable vanance was driven by the return of four leased arcraft last year and one aircraft this year These more than offset
the Increase from the rent associated with the 10 arcraft sale and leasebacks that occurred earlier in the year The average
nurmber of leased arrcraft increased by 96% to 70

Depreciation costs have increased by 58% on a per seat basis driven by the acquisition of 20 new aircraft last year and
23 arcraft this year, which more than offset the decrease from the 10 arrcraft sale and leasebacks and the impact of increased
capacity The average number of owned arrcraft increased by 6 9% to 197

An increase in headline net interest costs of £0 11 per seat 1s attributable to the financing costs of the two bonds, as we invest
N the long-term growth of the arrine

FUEL
2017 2006
pence per pence per
£ million £ per seat ASK £ midion E per seat ASK
Fuel 1.062 12.25 n mn4 15395 127

Fuel cost per seat decreased by 12 2% and by 19 2% at constant currency

During the period the average market jet fuel price increased by 20 7% to $501 per tonne frorm $415 per tonne In the previous
vear The operation of easylJet's hedging policy meant that the average effective fuel price movement saw a decrease of 14 0%
to £412 per tonne from £479 per tonne n the previous year

NON-HEADLINE ITEMS

During the year the presentation of the results in the Income statement was changed to include a measure of profit descnbed as
‘headline’ to be used by the Directors to measure and monitor underlyng trading performance The excluded items are referred
to as ‘non-headine’ items See note 1 for further details

2077 2006

pence per pence per

£ million E per seat ASK £ million £ per seat ASK

Sale and leaseback charge (16) (O 118) (0.02) - - —
Crganisational review (6) 007 (0.01) m oon -
Air Operator Certificate {2) {0.02} - m - -
Maintenance reserves discounting - - - 8 010 001
Balance sheet foreign exchange gamn 2 0.02 - 3 004 -
Far value adustment 1) (001 - 4 004 oo
Non-headlne {charge)/credit before tax (23) {0 26) {0.03) 13 017 Q02

Non-headhne profit before tax items of £23 millon comprise

+ a £10 millon loss on disposal and a £6 millon maintenance provision catch-up — both one-off charges as a result of the sale
and leaseback of 10 A31Q aircraft in Decermnber 2016, ansing due to the age of the selected awcraft and mamntenance
provision accounting,

« a£6 milign one-off charge associated with implementing the organisational review {{Next Generation’),

« a£2 millen charge in relation to establishing a mult-AOC post-Brexit structure, which includes the set-up of an European
AQC, based In Austria, n July 2017, following the UK's referendurm vote to leave the European Union (EU) This European
AQC helps secure future fiying nghts for the 30% of easyJet's network which remains wholly within and between EU member
states,

+» a £2 mithon non-cash gain relating to balance sheet foreign exchange gains and fosses, and

« a £1rnilion charge relating to farr value adjustments associated with the cross currency interest rate swaps in place for the
bond 1ssued in February 2016
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Financial review / continued

NET CASH AND FINANCIAL POSITION
SUMMARY NET CASH RECONCILIATION

2006

2017 (restated) Change

E million £ mulion E rmillan

Operating profit 404 510 (106)
Depreciation and amortisation 195 169 26
Net working capital moverment 325 23 302
Net tax paid (51) {99 48
Net capital expenditure (630) (586) (44)
Net proceeds from sale and operating leaseback of arrcraft 1ns - n5
Purchase of own shares for employee share schemes (10) (22) 12
Net decrease in restricted cash - 6 (6)
Other {including the effect of exchange rates) 1C (4) 14
Ordinary dmadend paid (214) (219) 5
Net increase/{decrease) in net cash 144 (222) 366
Net cash at beginning of vear 213 435 (222)
Net cash at end of year 357 213 144

Net cash at 30 September 2017 was £357 milion (2016 £213 milion) and compnsed cash {excluding restricted cash) and money
market deposits of £1,328 million (2016 £969 million) and borrowings of £971 milion (2016 £756 million) After allowing for the
impact of arrcraft operating leases (seven times operating lease costs incurred in the year), adjusted net debt decreased by

£11 mifhon to £413 million

Net capital expenditure includes the acquisihion of 23 A320 arcraft (2016 20 arcraft), the purchase of Iife-imited parts used
N engine restoration and pre-delivery payments relating to arcraft purchases The number of scheduled arcraft operating in
the fleet increased from 249 at 30 September 2016 to 270 at 30 September 2017

Borrowings as at 30 Septernber 2017 were £971 million, an increase of £215 mihen from 30 September 2016 Under the

£3 bilion Euro Medium Terrmn Note Programme announced in early 2016, easyJet plc 1ssued notes in October 2016 amounting
to €500 million for a seven-year term with a fixed annual coupon rate of 1125% This increase In borrowings was partially offset
by the repayment of mortgages on arcraft amounting to £220 milion in the penod

SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2016
2017 {restated) Change
£ million £ milhon L milion
Geodwill 365 365 -
Property, plant and equipment 3,525 3252 273
Dervative financial Instruments 92 98 (6)
Net working capital (1,270} (381) (289)
Restricted cash 7 7 -
Net cash 357 213 144
Current and deferred taxation (284) (253} {31}
Other non-current assets and habilities 10 {7) 17
2,802 2,694 108
Opening shareholders’ equity 2,654 2,221
Profit for the year 305 4357
Ordinary dividend paid (214) (219)
Change in hedging reserve 14 263
Other movements 3 (8)
2,802 2,694
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Net assets increased by £108 million, due to the profit generated in the pernod and favourable movements on the hedging
reserve, which were partially offset by the payment of the ordinary dradend The movement on the hedging reserve was
predominantly due to the favourable mark-to-market movement on both jet fuel and US dollar forward contracts

The net book value of property, plant and equipment Ncreased by £273 millon, driven principally by the acguisition of 23 A320
pre-delivery payments relating to arcraftt purchases

family alrcraft

//0«/@

ANDREW FINDLAY
Chief Financial Officer

GOING CONCERN

easylet's business activities, together with factors hkely

to affect its future development and performance, are
descnbed in the Stratecic report on pages 2 to 46 Principal
nsks and uncertanties are descnbed on pages 33 to 40
Nate 23 to the accounts sets out the Group's objectives,
policies and procedures for managing its capital and gives
detalls of the risks related to financial nstruments held by
the Group

At 30 September 2017, the Group held cash and cash
eguivalents of £711 mifion and money market deposits of
£617 million Total debt of £971 millon 15 free from financial
covenants, with £8 milion due for repayment in the year
to 30 September 2018

Net current assets at 30 September 2017 were £64 millon
and included unearned ravenue (payments made by
custorers for fhghts scheduled post year end) of

£727 million

The business i1s exposed to fluctuations in fuet prices and

US dollar and Euro exchange rates The Group's policy 1s

to hedge between 65% and 85% of estimated exposures

12 months in advance, and between 45% and 65% of
estimated exposures from 13 up to 24 months in advance
Specific decisions may require consideration of a longer-
term approach Treasury strategies and actions will be
driven by the need to meet treasury, financial and corporate
objectives The Group was compliant with this policy at

the date of this Annual report and accounts

After making enguines, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group will be able
to operate within the level of avalable faciities and cash
and deposits for the foreseeable future Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis IN preparing
the Annual report and accounts
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VIABILITY STATEMENT

The Oirectors have assessed easyJel's viahility over a
three-year penod to September 2020 Thisis based on a
three year strategic plan, which givas greater certainty over
the forecasting assumptions used

In making their assessment, the Directors took account of
easyJet s current financial and operational positions and
contracted capital expenditure They also assessed the
potential financial and operational mpacts of the principal
risks and uncertainties set cut on pages 33 to 40 in severe
but plausible scenarios, ncluding the impact of a sustaned
significant adverse movernent in foreign currency exchange
rates or jet fuel prices and the likely degree of effectiveness
of current and available mitigating actions

Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and the Group will be able
to continue in operation and meet all labilities as they fall
due up to September 2020

In making this statement, the Directors have also made the
following key assumptions

«  funding for capital expenditure in the form of capital
markets debt, bank debt or arcraft leases will be
avalatle in all plausible market condtions,

« there will not be a prolonged grounding of a substantial
portion of the fleet, and

» the terms on which the United Kingdom leaves the EU
are such that easy.Jet will be able to continue to operate
over broadly the same network as at present
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Financial review / continued

Key statistics

OPERATING MEASURES

2006 Increase/

2007 (restated) (decrease}
Seats flown {millions) 86.7 799 8 5%
Passengers (millions) 80.2 731 97%
Load factor 92.6% 916% 10ppt
Avallable seat klometres (ASK) (milions) 95,792 87,724 92%
Revenue passenger kifometres (RPK} fmilions) 89,685 81496 10 0%
Average sector length (kdometres) 1105 1,088 06%
Sectors 516,902 482 M0 72%
Block hours 1,009,572 934223 81%
Number of arrcraft owned/leased at end of year 279 257 86%
Average number of arcraft owned/leased dunng year 2673 2487 7 5%
Number of scheduled aircraft operated at end of year 270 249 B84%
Average number of arcraft operated during year 253.2 2346 7 9%
Operated arcraft ublisation (hours per day) 0.9 09 0 4%
Owned arrcraft utihsation (hours per day) 10.3 103 08%
Number of routes operated at end of year 862 803 7 3%
Number of arports served at end of year 138 i32 4 5%
FINANCIAL MEASURES
Headline return on capitai employed 11.9% 15 0% (3ppt)
Liquidity per 100 seats (£m) 3.6 32 12 5%
Profit befcre tax per seat (F) 4.45 635 (30 0%)
Headline profit before tax per seat (£) 4.7 618 (23 8%)
Profit before tax per ASK {pence) 0.40 058 (30 4%})
Headline profit before tax per ASK (pence) 0.43 056 (24 3%)
Revenue
Revenue per seat (£) 58.23 58 46 (O 4%)
Revenue per seat at constant currency (£) 55.83 58 46 (4 5%)
Revenue per ASK (pence) 5.27 5352 (10%)
Revenue per ASK at constant currency (pence) 5.05 532 (51%)
Costs
Per seat measures
Headline cost per seat (£) 53.52 5228 24%
Non-headline cost ger seat (F) .26 (017) 260 7%
Hesdline cost per seat excluding fuel (£} 41.27 3833 77%
Headline cost per seat excluding fuel at constant currency (£) 38.69 3833 0.9%
Headline operating cost per seat (£) 49.77 4889 18%
Headline operating cost per seat excluding fuel (£) 37.52 3494 7 4%
Headline operating cost per seat excluding fuel at constant currency (£) 3508 34324 0 4%
Headline ownership cost per seat (£) 375 339 10 8%
Per ASK measures
Headline cost per ASK (pence) 4,84 476 18%
Non-headline cost per ASK {(pence) 0.03 (002) 2597%
Headline cost per ASK excluding fuel (pence) 373 349 70%
Headline cost per ASK excluding fuel at constant currency (pence) 3.50 349 Q3%
Headline operating cost per ASK {pence} 4.50 445 12%
Headline operating cost per ASK excluding fuel (pence) 330 318 67%
Headline operating cost per ASK excluding fuel at constant currency {pence) 317 318 (0 2%)
Headline ownership cost per ASK (pence) 0.34 03 10 1%
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Risk

Risk management framework

easyJet is exposed to a variety of risks which are driven by both internal

(%]
v
. a
and external factors. These risks have an effect on the performance and 2
. \ . . . m
achieverment of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board is responsible |
- . . P . D
for risk management and ensuring appropriate mitigating actions are 3
being taken to manage risks effectively. 3
RISK APPETITE function on an ongoing basis with regular follow-up by
The nsk appetite 1s the level of nsk considered approprate to the nsk team
accept In achieving easyJet’s strategic objectives The — The most significant nsks from each function {based
appropriateness of the mitigating actions 1s determined in on rmatenality, cross functional Impact and/or those
accordance with the Board's approved nisk appetite for the which have common themes across the business) are
relevant area The nsk appetite I1s reviewed and validated by reviewed and prioritised by the Risk Evaluation Group,
the Board on an annual basis which consists of members of senior managerment frem
RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS each function This glroup‘s role s to debate, agree andg
« The nsk management function 1s cocrdinated by the Risk prioritise the principal risks
and Assurance Team which reports to the Chief Financial — These nisks, which form the basis of the principal nsks
Officer, as well as having a direct ine to the Charr of the and uncertainties detalled in thus section, are challenged
Audit Committee The key elements of the process are and validated by the Executive Management Team

and the Board Pnncipai nsks are being monitored
throughout the yvear, with material changes baing

presented to the Board as they anse, and updates
presented at least quarterly

— The risk management process begins with the
dentification of significant nsks by each function

- Risks are assessed taking into account the potential
mpact and hkelhood of the nsks occurnng and the key
mitigations identfied The current level of nsk 1s
compared to the Board's nsk appetite to determine
whether further mitigations are reqguired Risks specific
to a tfunction's activities are managed within the

— In addition to supporting the Board, the rnisk team
supports the business N its management of rigks
relating to key projects and programmes, specific
business risks, third parties, countries and bases

The diagram below sets out easylet's nsk management process

Turn to page 54 for further details on
Risk Management and internal Control

RISK MANAGEMENT
PROCESS

FEEDBACK FROM THE BOARD

Challenge & ownershup

* A separate managermant
system rmonmitors fight safety
nsks {easydet s safety process
15 descrnbed n more detail on -
paqe 42} - Risk identification & assessment
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Risk / continued

Principal risks and uncertainties

The risks and uncertainties described below are considered,

at this point in time, to have the greatest effect on easylet’s
strategic vbjectives This categonsed list 1s not Intended to be
exhaustive, and the ordenng of the nisks 1s not an indication of
oxposure wWhilst easyJet can monitor risks and prepare for
adverse scenaros, the abiity to affect the core drivers of many
risks is not within the Group's control, fer exarmple adverse
weather, pandemics, acts of terrorism, changes n government

regulation and macroeconomic 1ssues

SAFETY FIRST

Link to strategy

Continuing to
leverage data and
digital platforms

number 1and number 2
netwaork positions

° Bullding and strengthening

Grow revenue

@ The best people

Conswlered as part of the long-term viabiity assessment
turn o page 31 for further details)

Maintaining a lean cast advantage

o Mantaining customer and

operational excellence

Risk descrigtion

Mitigation

MAJOR SAFETY INCIDENT

A major safety incident (such as a hull
loss) could adversely affect easyJet's
reputatioh and its operational and
financial performance The impact of
such an incident would be heightened if
easylet faled to react promptly and deal
with it effectively

Link to strategy:

® O
0 6
o O

easyJet’'s number one priorty 15 the safety and secunty of its customers and peogple

A Safety Committee (& committee of the Board} providas oversight of the
management of easylet's safety processes and systems

Turn to page 57 for further details

A Safety Review Board (at Executive Management Team level) 1s responsible for
directing overall safety policy and governance This 1s charred by the Chief Executive

Safety Action Groups from across the arine are responsible for the identification,
evaluation and control of safety-related nsks

easylet operates a Safety Managemaent System using a leading software system
(SafetyNet) This s used to

«  collect and analyse safety data {enabling potential areas of risk to be
projected). and

« enable learning from easyJet and industry events/incidents to be captured
and ermbedded inte future nsk mitigations

A robust iIncident reporting process and “Just Culture” are in place

easy et has an emergency respense process and performs regular crisis
management exercises

Hull (all nsks) and habiities insurance (including spares) 1s held

easyJet has an industry-leading fatigue nsk managerment system and has implemented
the European Awviation Safety Agency (EASA™) Flight Time Limitations regulations

@ Turn to page 42 for further details

SECURITY THREAT OR ATTACK
Failure to identify or prevent a major
secunty-related threat or attack, or
react imrnediately and effectively,
could adversely affect easyJet's
reputation and its operational and
financial performance

Such an incident has the potential
to impact upon easyJet's business,
regardless of the location or target

The threat of further secunty-related
attacks (regardiess of where they may
occur) May impact the future demand
for arr travel

Link to strategy:

o 0
o ©
o

A Security Decision Group, comprising the Chairman of the plc Board, Chief
Executive, appropriate members of the Executive Management Team and other
senior management, determings whether easylet should continue tc operate In
countries or areas affected by secunty-related incidents or conflict As part of that
process the easylet security team works to provide the Secunty Decision Group with
the mast tmely. credible and reliable information upon which to base operational
decisions easylJet adheres to all recommendations and guidelnes provided by

the authorities

The Director of Safety and Security and the Head of Secunty work with authonties
and governments around easyJet'’s network to assess whether security measures are
effective and in comphance wath regulatory requirements A significant amount of
work 15 carried out with the am of enhancing

« early dentificahon of developing and emerging security nsks,

= the active management of security risks,

¢ the methods for reducing the mpact of any securty-related incident, and

s the Group's secunty culture and awareness
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COMMERCIAL AND OPERATIONAL

Risk description

Mitigation

COMPETITION, CAPACITY AND

INDUSTRY CONSOCLIDATION

The aviation market 1s highly competitive

and easyJet operates in competition
with both flag carniers and other
low-cost arrlines

Excess capacity in the market may

anse dug to a decrease In demand for
ar travel and/or additional capacity as a
result of low fuel prices This could have

an adverse financial iImpact

easyJet’s key competitive advantages

include its network, cost base, brand,
digital innovation and efficient and
robust capital structure Failure to

retain these advantages or react quickly

to competitor changes could have an
adverse hinancial iImpact

Industry consolidation could also affect

the competitive environment in a
number of markets This could cause
a loss of market position and erosion
of revenue

Link to strategy:

sasylet seeks to have a rapid response to any such activity that may impact
easyJet’s ability to grow the business

Competitor and consolidation actmty 1s monitored, enabling strategic decision
rmaking on key routes/positions
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The Network Developrnent Forum, a cross-functional panel of senior executives,
approves new bases and the allocation of assets around the network

Fleet frarmework arrangements, together with the Group's leasing pohcy,
provide easyJet with significant flexibility in respect of scaling the fleet according
to business requirermnents

Strong cost controt s a key behaviour across the Company, with initiatives to drive
cost reduction and improve efficiency in targeted areas

easyJet 1s developing commercial and digital enhancements that will improve
commercial options and enable more rapid changes, thereby conserving as well
as increasing its comimercial capabilities

Following the announcernent in October that easyJet will purchase parts of
Aur Berln, subject to anti-trust and regulatory approvals, there 1s now an additional
programme nsk relating to the integration of Arr Berlin operations

SIGNIFICANT NETWORK
DISRUPTION

Widespread disruption to easyJet's
network may be caused by a single
event or factors which occur for a
sustained penod Examples include
forces of nature (extreme weather,
volcanic ash, etc ), terronsm,

ar traffic management 1ssues,
epidermics/pandemics or the
closure of a key arrport

Significant disruption to the network
could adversely affect easylet's
reputation and its operational and
financial performance including the
payment of EU 261 claims

Link to strategy:

o O
o 0
0 ©

There are processes n place, and clear roles and responsibilities within teams across
the business, to plan for and manage significant disruption

A business disruption team, which includes senior management from relevant
business areas, determines and initiates required acticn

Board policy 15 to maintan a lguidity buffer which allows the Group to better
rmanage the impact of downturns in business or temporary curtalment of aclivities

In addition, easyJet holds business disruption Insurance which provides some cover
for some of these very significant shock events such as extreme weather, ar traffic
managerment issues and loss of access to key arports
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Risk / continued

COMMERCIAL AND OPERATIONAL CONTINUED

Risk description

HMitigation

CONTINUITY OF SERVICES
easylet 1s dependent on a number of
key IT systems and processes

A loss of critical systems or access to
facilities, iIncluding the website, may lead
to significant disruption to operations
and could have an adverse reputaticnal
and financial impact

Link to strategy:

Critieal systems are hosted either across two data centres, or at third-party prowder
locations Recovery arrangements, including fallover between the two data centres,
are in place for all locations holding critical systems

AN T incident management team 1s In place to respond rapidly to any unforeseen
incdents that may arise

T disaster recovery plans are tested regularly to dentify opportunities for
mproved resilience

Business continuity plans ensure easyJet 1s prepared in the event of loss of facilities,
ncluding alternative sites for the relocation of critical staff

THIRD PARTY SERVICE
PROVIDERS

easyJet has entered into agreements
with third party service providers for
services covernng a significant proportion
of its operational and cost base

Failure to adequately manage thwrd party
performance may adversely affect
easylet's reputation and its operational
and financial performance

Link to strategy:

o 0
o ©
o

There 15 a defined procurement process, lad by a centralised procurement team,
which ensures a competitive and robust selection of suppliers As part of the
process, alternative service providers are identified and assessed against a balanced
evaluation cnteria within the major markets in which easyJet operates

Any specific suppler risks are wdentified and assessed during the procurement
process and controls and risk mitigations are included in the contracts enterad into
with the suppler

Ceontracts are managed according to easyJet's suppler relationshio management
frarmework, with key principles covering defined ownership and accountability, a
governance framework and effective communication Supplier performance is
moritored through regular business reviews, Including achievement of service level
agreerments and key performance indicators

Robust transition plans are agreed in the event of switching suppliers to enable
an acceptable level of service to be maintaned

INDUSTRIAL ACTION

easyJet, and the awation industry in
general, has a significant number of
employees who are members of trade
unions Industrial action taken by easyJet
employees, or by the employees of key
third party service prowiders, could
impact on easyJet's ability to maintan
its flight schedules

This could adversely affect easyJet's
reputation and its operational and
financial performance

Link to strategy:

o
o
®

As easylet operates across Europe, 1ts crew are members of 2C unions and
N representative bodies across eight countries easyJet seeks to mantan positive
workang relationships wath all trade unions and other representative bodies

Each of the countnes in which easy.Jet operates has localsed employment terms
and conditions This mitigates the nsk of large-scale internal industnal action
occurnng at the same time

Processes are 1in place to adapt to disruptions as a result of industnal action
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Link to strategy

network positions

o Maintaining a lean cost advantage

Bulding and strengthening number 1 and number 2

@ Considered as part of the long term wiability assessment (turn to page 31 for further details)

o Maintaining cusiomrer and operational excellence o Grow ravenue

° Continung to leverage data and digital platforms @ 1he best people

COMMERCIAL AND OPERATIONAL CONTINUED

Risk description

Mitigation

SINGLE FLEET RISK
easylet 15 dependent on Arrbus as its
sole supplier for aircraft

There are significant cost and efficiency
advantages of a single fleet, however
there are two rmawn assocliated nsks

= technical or mechanical 1ssues that
could ground the full fleet, or part of
the fieet, which could cause negative
perception, and

« valuation nsks which crystallise
when arrcraft exit the fleet The
main exposure at this time 1s with
the ageing A319 fleet, where easyJet
1$ rehlant on the future demand for
second-hand arcraft

Link to strategy:

o
o
©

FINANCIAL

The Board considers that the efficiencies achieved by operating a single fleet type
outweigh the nsks associated with easyJet’s single fleet strategy

The Airbus A320 family (which includes the A319 and A321) 1s one of the two primary
fleets used for short-haul travel, the other being the Boeing B737 farmily There are
approximately 7,400 A320 family arcraft operating with a proven track record for
safety and relability
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The introduction of the A320neo during the year in part mitigates this nsk as the
arrcraft 1s eguipped with a different engine type

easyJet operates a ngorous established arcraft mantenance programme

To mitigate the potential valuation nsks, easyJet regularly reviews the second-hand
market and has a number of different options when locking at fleet exit strategies
Sale and leaseback facilitates the exit of A319 arcraft from the fleet by transferring
residual value risk, and also provides flexibility iIn managing the fleet size

Risk description

Mitigation

FINANCIAL RISK

easylet 15 exposed to a varety of
financial risks which could give rise to
adverse pressure on the financial
performance of the Groug, e g

costs, revenue and cash flow

» Market nsks — significant/sudden
increases in et fuel prices, currency
fluctuations or interest rates which
have not been adeguately protected
through hedging

»  Counterparty risk — non-performance
of counterparties used for depositing
surplus funds (e g money market
funds, bank deposits) and hedaing

«  Liguidity risk — misjudgment in the
level of iguidity resutting ininability
to rmeet contractual/contingent
financial obligations or the inability
to fund the business when needed

Link to strategy:

0 O

The Finance Committee (a committee of the Board) oversees the Group's treasury
and funding palicies and activities

0 Turn to page 63 for further detals
This includes

s  mantaning a treasury policy setting out Board approved strategies for foreign
exchange and fuel hedaing, along with lquichty, interest rate management,
counterparties” imits, and

»  reviewing and reporting on compliance with Board treasury policies

The policy 15 to hedge revenue and costs within a percentage band for a roling
Z4-month penod

Board policy 1s to mantan a haudity buffer including cash and a $500 mullion
revolving credit facility provided by a group of 12 relationship banks This allows
the Group to better manage the impact of downturns in business or temporary
curtalment of activities The basis for the lquidity policy was revised in 2016
The policy s to maintain a minimum hauidity buffer at £2 6 midon per 100 seats
{previously £4 millon per arrcraft)

A strong balance sheet supports the business through fluctuations in economic
conditions and the Group has access to diverse sources of funding to support
quidity requirements
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Risk / continued

FINANCIAL CONTINUED

Risk description

Mitigation

DELIVERY OF PROJECTS
SUPPORTING THE BUSINESS
STRATEGY

The business 1s undertaking a number of
key projacts and programmes to dehver
key elements of the strategy

Following the announcement n
October that easyJet will purchase
parts of Ar Berlin, a large scale complex
programme 1s underway to mplement
the Air Berlin operation

Failure to dehver the planned

business benefits and cost savings
from these projects may result m under
achievement of easyJet's planned
financial results

Link to strategy:

o o0
o O
® ©

PEOPLE

The easylet Change Board meets monthly to review progress made on the portfolio
of programmes and solve issues that require escalation

Key IT projects or programmes have addibonal oversight through the IT Governance
and Oversight Committee (a committee of the Board)

@ Turn to page 63 for further detalls

Each project or prograrnme has its own steering group which provides challenge
to the project, monitors progress and ensures that decisions are made at the
appropriate level

A portfolio management office 1sin place to oversee delivery of projects and
programmes, and track budgets and realisation of benefits

A project management framework, which sets out the governance requirements,
key processes and controls, 15 tollowed by all projects and programmes Lessons
learnt reviews are undertaken to ensure continuous IMmprovement to this approach

Risk description

Mitigation

ATTRACTION AND RETENTION
OF TALENT

easyJel's current and future success (s
relant on having the right people with
the nght capabilities

Increased competition in the recruitrment
market may impact easyJet's ability

to attract and retain key talent This
could adversely affect the delivery of
strategic objectives

Link to strategy:

®

There 15 a recruitment strategy for pilots and cabin crew This includes pilot
sponsorship and the Amy Johnston flying nitiative to attract more female pilots In
addition, easyJet has developed a coherent employment brand to attract and retain
top talent

easyJet also this vear opened recruitrment for 14 engineering apprentices and sought
to encourage more women to apply for these roles

easyJet s am 15 to develop talent from within There are several talent development
programmes in place for ndividuals who have been identified for fast-tracking into
more senior roles as vacancies anse

Alongside this, there 15 an annual succession planning process to ensure there are
clear successors for all key business roles
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Link to strateay

"
o Building and strengthening nurrber 1and number 2 o Mantaining Lustomer and operational excellence e Grow revenue
network positions

° Maintamning a lean cost advantage ° Continung to leveisge data and diaital platforms @ The best people

@ Corsidered as part of the long term viability assessmen® (turn 1o page 31 for further details)

COMPLIANCE AND REGULATORY

w

v
Risk description Mitigation g
IMPACT OF EU EXIT easylet has put in place in Austria a third AQC, easyJet Europe This will ensure )
The UK government 1s in the process easylet can retan its intra-EU flying nghts We continue to actively engage with the ;3
of negotiating the UK's exit from the European Commission, EU Member States and the UK government to ensure that 3
European Union although details of the there 1s an EU/UK agreement in place to mantain flying nghts between the UK and 2
future relationship stit remain uncertan the EU =

if easyJet s unable to continue to fly An mternal working group has been established to manage all aspects of easyJet's

its UK-EU network this would have operations and structure with relation to the EU exit and the implementation cf the
a significant operational and third AOC

financial Impact

Link to strategy:

o 0O
o 0
- JO,

LEGISLATIVE AND easyJet has an in-house legasl and compliance team ta adwvise on legal 1Issues and
REGULATORY RISKS developments, and to monmtor compliance with format regulatory requirements It
The arrline industry 1s heavily regulated also has a panel ot external legal advisers, both in the UK and in key easyJet markets,
and there 1s a continual need to keep who are briefed to keep easyJet informed of any changes or new legisiation and to

well Informed and adapt to (as required)  assist easy et in developing appropnate responses to such legislation
any legislative or regulatory changes
across the junsdictions in which
easyJet operates

The Regulatory Atfars Group co-ordinates easylet’'s role in influencing future and
existing policy and regulations which affect the arrline industry and will work with
industry bodies to assist in this, as approprnate

Falure to comply with legislative

and regulatory requirements
{orinterpretations thereof), such as

local consumer laws, legal decisions or
policy changes in relation to passenger
compensation, environmental and arrport
regulation, in the junsdictions in which
easyJet operates, could have an adverse
reputational and financial impact

Country Review Boards are established for easylets man markets, raising awareness
of In-country issues, and providing a forum in which to highlight any potential
legislative changes and impacts in the different countries

Link to strategy:

0
o
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Risk / continued

REPUTATIONAL

Risk descnption

MAJOR SHAREHOLDER AND
BRAND OWNER RELATIONSHIP
easyJet has two rmajor shareholders
(easyGroup Holdings Limited and

Polys Holding Lirrited) which, as a
concert party, control approximately
33% of its ordinary shares

Shareholder activism on therr part
could adversely impact the reputation
of easylet and cause a distraction

to management

Reoulations surrcunding easyJet's share
ownership and control may be affected
by the outcome of negotiations relating
to Britan's exit from the EU

easyJet does not cwn its company
name or branding, which 1s licensed from
easyGroup Ltd The icence includes
certain minimum service levels that
easyJet must meet In order to retain the
rnght to use the name and brand The
easyJet brand could also be impacted
through the actions of easyGroup

or other easyGroup censees

Link to strategy:

Mitigation

aasy et has an active shareholder engagement prograrmme led by its investar
relations team As part of that prograrnme easyJet engages with easyGroup
Holdings Lirited on a reqular basis alocngside 1ts other major shareholders

In addition, the Company has a relabhonship agreement with easyGroup and
Polys Holdings in ine with the controlling shareholder regme as set out in the
Financial Conduct Authority s Listing Rules

Representatives from the Board and senior management take collective
responsibibty for addressing issues ansing frorm any achvist approach adogted by the
major shareholder The objective 1s to address ssues when they anse and anticipate
and plan for potential future activism

easylet has a number of nbatives N place to ensure that its shares are held by
relevant sharehaiders in order to comply with European Union reguiations easyJet's
current ownership by EU-relevant, non-UK shareholders 1s close to 50%

The brand licence agreement with easyGroup Ltd provides for the regular meeting
of senior representatives frorn both sides, attended by the Chief Financial Officer
and General Counsel, to actively manage brand-+elated 1ssues as they arse Such
mestings occur on a quarterly basis and have proven effective easylet also
monitors complance with brand licence service levels and has a right to take steps
to remedy any instance of non-compliance

CYBER THREAT AND
INFORMATION SECURITY
easyJet faces both external cyber
threats and internal risks to its data
and systems

A security breach may have an
adverse customer, cperational or
financial iImpact which adversely
affects easyJet’s reputation

Link to strategy:
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An Information Secunity Steering Group, chaired by the General Counsel, oversees
any developments in data threats and controls, and determines whether actions
taken n response are appropnate

There are dedicated inforration secunty teams that monitor threats and ensure that
the design, implementation and operation of easyJet systems are secure This s
through the following

« achieving secure by design through a dedicated secunty architecture capabihity,
«  mornitoring of secure systems for unauthonsed access,

« reviewing the secunty of external and intermnal systems, mcluding easyJet com,
through periodic vulnerability scanning,

« considenng infarmation secunty nsks within procurerment processes and the
introduction of new systems and [T services;

= ensunng payment card security with data encryption and a dedicated team
to monitor and control access,

« reviewndg and refresiing information acceptable use policies, and

= maintaining staff secunty awareness and education through a
Secunty Champions network, on-hine training materials and perodic
awareness campagns

Given the nature of this risk, the appropriateness of mitigation actimty 1s continuously
reviewed under the governance of aninformation secunty programme This
programme is supject 1o Independent programme assurance on an at least

annual basis
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Corporate responsibility

Running our business responsibly

easyJet wants to run its business with a true sense of purpose that
serves society and i1s based on a set of principles which helps it achieve
sustainable profitability.

easyJet has continued to work with Bluepnnt for Better Business, an organisation which helps businesses to develop therr
purpose and role n society To give focus to this work, easyJet has defined its purpose as
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Gur unique Crange Spint defines us
and 1t means we always try to do things
in the nght way, every day, for cur
people, cur customers, society and
the environment

We do this by challenging curselves and
our industry to make travel easy and
afferdable for all

We're here to connect people across
Eurape for work and leisure.

DELIVERING OUR COMMITMENTS

AlM HOW EASYJET IS DOING THIS KEY HIGHLIGHTS

1. Safety and security management easyJet has established a new
SAFETY IS OUR Managing crew fatigue relationship with the Austrian
NUMBER ONE safety regulator Austro Control, in
PRIORITY :r;ﬁeg::gr:g L;zisgzgzgsioir:d crew addition to its existing work with

P ) the UK CAA and Swiss FOCA

+ Safety in the supply chain

7 s Supporting passengers with Customer satisfaction amongst
HONEST AND special assistance passengers who need special
FAIR WiTH OUR Supporting passengers during assistance 1s higher than for all
CUSTOMERS disruption passengers, for the fourth

AND SUPPLIERS

Building positive supplher
relationships

Preventing bribery, corruption and
modern slavery

consecutive year

...............................................................................................................

3 Employing people locally easyJet has a target that 20% of
A RESPONSIBLE Working with trade unicns its new entrant co-pilots should be
AND Encouraging a diverse workforce female by 2020
RESPONSIVE )
EMPLOYER « Offering farr reward
4, + Investing in efficient aircraft Since 2000 easyJet has reduced
A GUARDIAN « Operating efficiently its aircraft carbon emissions per
E%i EFR%JAT'HgﬁS Encouraging sustainable tournism Sjéf%;ier’ per kilometre by
Its current target 1s a 10% reduction
from its 2016 financial year
performance by 2022, which would
be a 38% mprovement from 2000
5 Partnership with UNICEF Since 2012 easylet has raised over
A GOOD Emergency charity appeals £10 milhon for its chanty partner
CITIZEN UNICEF, including over £1.5 million

Local donations for employees
Reducing arcraft noise

in the 2017 financial year

wiwvwy easylet Lom A1



Corporate responsibility / continued

SAFETY IS OUR
NUMBER ONE PRIORITY

WHY DOES THIS MATTER?

Customers should be confident that they can travel where
they want to go safely easylJet's employees and suppliers
should be able to work In a safe environment

SAFETY MANAGEMENT

Safety 1s easylet’s highest prionty It 1s commtted to
providing a safe journey for its passengers and a safe working
environment for all its people and suppliers easylet's safety
1s managed and maintained through business processes

and structures

The Chief Executive of easyJet takes overall responsibilty for
safety, alongside the Accountable Managers of easyJet
Switzerland 5 A (EZS) and easyJdet Europe Arrline GrbH
(easyJet Europe Arrling) The Director of Safety, Secunty &
Cormplance reports directly to the Chief Executive and
Chairman and has a remit to act independently outside
other cperational or commercial considerations

The Safety Commuttea, made up of mdependent Non-
Executive Directors, also reviews safety matters More
information on the Safety Committee 1s provided on page 57

EASYJET EUROPE SAFETY REGULATION

easyJet Europe Arline was this year awarded an Air Operator
Certificate by Austro Control and an airline cperating licence
by Austna's Federal Ministry for Transport, Innovation and
Technology

Austna’s aviation regulator Austro Control was selected as the
best fit for easyJet Austro Control has a ngorous approach to
safety regulation and has contributed to EASA's work on
shaping future safety regulation that emphasises performance
based safety regulation

Image removed
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SECURITY

The easylet Securty Team works closely with government
and regulatory agencies throughout its network in order to
minimise the vulnerabiity of 1ts customers and people to
sacurity nsks Security risk assessments, informed by the
current geopolitical situation, are made for each country and
arport to which easylet fles The Group also employs
rmeasures to protect business and perscnal data

FATIGUE RISK MANAGEMENT

easyJet manages the nisk of fatigue to make sure that its
crew can operate flights safely Its Fatigue Risk Management
System s approved to EASA standards and the Cempany
continues to Invest in fatigue research with the US National
Aeronautics and Space Administration (NASA) and the
Netherlands Aerospace Centre

SAFETY IN THE SUPPLY CHAIN

easyJet carres out its oversight of safety In its supply chamn
through its Standards Assurance and Compliance Monitornng
processes Standards Assurance enables managers to
undertake performance reviews threugh sample checks to
monitor service level agreements, key performance indicators
and suppler engagement activities Compliance Monitonng

1s undertaken by easyJet's independent Cperaticns Risk
compliance monitoring team The audit schedule 1s established
on & rnisk-based prograrmme focused on applicable standards
Lhroughout the supply chain

DISRUPTIVE PASSENGERS

easyJet does not tolerate disruptive behaviour on its flights

Its crew are trained to assess all situations to ensure that the
safety of the fight and passengers 1s not compromised at any
ume The arlne has introduced measures to discourage and
prevent disruptive behavicur, and to further increase the
support for crew to respond when 1t does occur

Disruptive behaviour on-board is often caused by passengers
who have consurmed too much alcohol whilst in the arrport
before ther flight or who consurme an-board alcohol
purchased at the arport easyJet has been working with
industry partners through Arline UK's Code of Practice which
encourages voluntary action easyJet is also seeking regulatory
changes to further discourage excess atcohol consumption
when travelling

NEW TECHNOLOGY

easylJet continues to add new safety related technology to the
arcraft fleet The AZ20neo arcraft which began entering the
fleet in June 2017 are fitted with the Autopilot Traffic Collision
Avoidance Systermn (APTCAS), which buillds on the existing
colision avoidance technology, and the Runway Overrun
Prevention System (ROPS), which provides additional warrings
to pilots to avaid high energy approaches which contrbute to
runway overrun risks These technologies supplement the
existing cperating procedures and pilot training



HONEST AND FAIR WITH
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

WHY DOES THIS MATTER?

easyJet wants to make travel easy and affordable for its
customers By beaing honest and fair with customers, easyJet
will earn therr loyaity

Sorne of easylet's supphers directly provide services to
easyJet customers and all supphers help to deliver the overall
service easylet beleves that positive relationships create
long-term, produchive partnershins which in turn improve
custamer service

CUSTOMERS

This financial year easyJet carried mare than 80 milion
passengers More information on the service we provide
to customers and customer satisfaction 1s on page 13

easyJet recognises that it needs to give extra support to
oarticular aroups of passengers These include passengers
who need special assistance or experience disruption

CUSTOMERS WHO NEED SPECIAL ASSISTANCE
in 2012 easyJet established the easyJet Special Assistance
Advisory Group (ESAAG) to provide feedback and guidance
on the services It provides 1o passengers who require
special assistance

The Group s chared by Lord David Blunkett, a former UK
cabinet miruster who s himself bind The group includes
rmernbers from key easyJet markets (the UK, France,
Switzerland and Italy} and all have personal or professional
expernience of special assistance issues

easylet carried over 519,000 passengers who needed special
assistance in the 2017 financial year This increased by 14%
from the prior financial year Customer satisfaction amongst
these passengers was 83% This 1s down one percentage point
year-on-year, however, it was 12 percentage points higher than
custormer satisfaction amongst all passengers This s the
fourth successive year that satisfaction 1s higher for customers
who need special assistance

Since 2012 easyJet and ESAAG have introduced a range of
measures to assist passengers with physical constrants, such
as on-board wheelcharrs and more accessible arcraft
bathrooms They are now locking at what maore support can
be given to passengers with ‘idden disalbrlities’ In July 2017
ESAAG brought together chanities that represent people with
these conditions, as well as the UK Civil Aviation Authority, to
discuss these issues

SUPPORTING PASSENGERS DURING DISRUPTION
casylet s committed to prowding the right support to
passengers during disruption Passengers are already given
timely updates about therr fight through text messages, emails
and hve updates on easyJet's Flight Tracker tocl This year
easyJet further improved the mformation, by adding
inforrmation about the reason for a delay and what passengers
should do next

To reduce the time it takes to resolve arrcraft technical faults,
easylet contracted two light aircraft and crew for summer
2017 to take engineers and spare parts around its network

When there are delays, easyJet provides welfare support,
avernight accommaodation when it 15 required and covers
all reasonable out of pocket expenses for extended delay
situations and additional EU 261 payments, when the delay
15 caused by an arline 1ssue It has established an online
compensation claim forrm and bank transfer program, to
simphfy applications and payments

SUPPLIERS

easyJet seeks to have an open, constructive and effective
relationship wath all suppliers, as it believes they are integral
to the Group's success
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easyJlet has an established suppler relationship management
framework, which provides a toolkit and guidance for easyJet
managers who lead relationships with easyJet’s key partners
The supplier relationship management framework 15 developed
around easyJet's core values and the abjective 1s to buld
strong. lasting relationships wiath partners and dnve value

from the partnership The pnnciples are based on managing
supplers in the same way that easyJet manages Its people,
and ensurng that supplers' rights and responsibilities are
clearly set out

When tendering for new suppliers, easyJet seeks information
to ensure compliance from suppliers on factors including
qualty assurance, health and safety, environmental practices,
sub-contracting arrangerments and legal, regulatory and

tax complance

HUMAN RIGHTS AND MODERN SLAVERY ACT
easyJet 1s committed to human nghts This includes
observance of the principles set out by the International
Labour Orgarmisation Declaration on Fundamental Principles
and Rights at Work

easyJet manages the nsk of modern sfavery in its supply chain
It pubhshed its first staternent for the Modern Slavery Act in
March 2017, which 1s avallable at https //corporate easyjet com

BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION

easy et has a company-wide anti-bribery and corruption
policy There is also a aifts and hospitality policy and an
online register to record all gifts and hospitalty that are
accepted by employees

When tendernng key new supplier contracts easyJet

nforms supplers of its anti-bribery and corruption and gifts
and hospitality policies and reguires compliance with the sarme
as a condition of doing business with easyJet Subseguently, in
key contracts, an appointed suppher 1s expected to reaffirm its
commitiment by signing up to specific contractual obligations
on ant-bnbery and corruption inits contract with easy.Jet

Image removed
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Corporate responsibility / continued

A RESPONSIBLE AND
RESPONSIVE EMPLOYER

WHY DOES THIS MATTER?

easylJet wants to be a good employer 5o that it can attract,
retan and develop the best people It believes that a diverse
workforce that reflects the diversity of its customers, and a
culture In which people can be themselves at work, leads to a
better service for customers

LOCAL EMPLOYMENT ACROSS EUROPE
As at 30 September 2017 easylet ermnployed 12 280 people
across its network

easyJet employs people on local contracts in eight countries
across Europe, complying with national laws This has a higher
cost than the approach taken by some other arlines that
employ all therr people on one contract, rrespective of where
they may work easyJet does this so that its roles are attractive
locally and to reflect each country's employment practices
This also helps to buld relationships with key local stakeholders

easyJet regularly communicates with its employees about
business prionties and 1ssues, as well as financial performance
This includes a weekly podcast from the Chief Executive,
newsletters for the pilot and cabin crew communities and a
regularly updated nternal news site

This year easyJet has continued to address ssues that are
important to its employees, particularly 1ts erew, such as roster
stabiity and reducing disruption, which also affects crews
working hours

easy.Jet works in partnership with 20 trade unions across eight
countnes It also consults its employees across Europe on
business issuas through 1ts Works Councils structure and the
overarching Eurcpean Works Councll forum

REWARD

easyJet offers a competitive reward package, focused on cash
and vanable pay rather than fixed benefits All easyJat
employeeas, with a minimum amount of service, have the
opportunity to become shareholders in the Company

FEMALE PILOTS AND ENGINEERS

Since 2015 easylet has been seeking to encourage more
women to become pilots, to help address the significant
gender mbalance in the world-wide pilot community

Through its "Amy Jcohnson Intiative' easy.Jet has arranged for
pilots to visit schools and youth organisations, highlighted
current female pilots in the media and its own
communications, and offered prlot traming loan underwnting
for selected female new entrant pilots

easyJet met its intial target to increase the proportion of new
entrant co-pilots who are female to 12% in 2006, a year ahead
of schedule In the 2017 financial year easyJet attracted 49
female new-entrant co-pilots, which was a 48% increase on the
33 fernale co-pilots in the 2016 financial year, and represented
13% of new-entrant co-pilots attracted in this penod easyJet’s
current target 1s 20% of new entrant co-plots to be female

by 2020

easyJet also this year opened recruitment for 14 engineenng
apprentices and sought to encourage more women to apply
for these roles
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FEMALE MAKE UP OF:
WORLDWIDE PILOT
COMMUNITY

EASYJET NEW ENTRANT
PILOTS IN FY17

Graph removed Graph removed

EASYJET NEW ENTRANT
TARGET FOR 2020

Graph removed

GENDER*

Graph removed

GENDER PAY
easyJet voluntarily reported on its gender pay gap in 2015 and
2016, ahead of the new UK regulations

easyJet's gender pay gap 15 strongty influenced by the salaries
and gender make-up of its pilot cormmunity, which 1s around a
quarter of its UK employees Pilots are predominantly male and
ther higher salaries, relative to other employees, significantly
ncreases the average male pay at easyJet

Salanes for pilots and catin crew are collectively agreed,
meaning, for example, female pilots’ or cabin crew's basic
salary and vanable pay rates are 100% of that of ther
male equivalents

CIFFERENCE IN UK RATE OF PAY BETWEEN MEN
AND WOMEN

Mean
Difference in mean hourly rate of pay 5171%
Differance in mean Zonus pay 4377%

totes Pay and bonus data for UK employees as specified by UK reporting
regurements

For more information, see our online
gender pay report at www easyjet com

DISABILITY

easyJet treats applicants with disabilities equally and supports
current employees who become disabled This includes
offering flexibility and making reasonable adiustments to the
workplace to ensure they can achieve to therr full potential
However, for easyJet's two largest communities, pilots and
cabin crew, there are a range of regulatory regurrements on
health and physical ability which all applicants and current
empioyees must comply with



A GUARDIAN FOR
FUTURE GENERATIONS

WHY DOES THIS MATTER?

easyJet’s biggest mpact on the environment s 1ts fuel
consumption and the associated carbon emissions easyJet s
continuing to make more efficient use of fuel and to further
reduce emissions per passenger kilormetre on its fights

CARBON EMISSIONS

easyJet's arcraft CO, emissions in the 2017 financial year were
71 milhon tonnes, compared to 6 5 million tonnes in the 2016
financial year easyJet's calculation of emissions s based on
fuel burn measurement, which 1s verfied to comply with the
European Union's Emussion Trading System reguirements

The increase in overall emissions has been due to the
continued expansion of easylet’s operations In this financial
year easyJet's passenger numbers increased by 97%
compared to the 20 financial year

CARBON EMISSIONS PER PASSENGER
KILOMETRE

Since 2000 easyJet has reduced Its carbon emissions per
passenger, per kilometre by over 32% Its current target s a
10% reduction from its 2016 financial vear performance by
2022, which would be a 38% mprovement frem 2000

In the 2017 financial year easylJet's carbon emissions per
passenger kilometre (km) were 78 62 grams (g), down
from 79 98g per passenger km 1 the pnor financial year

EFFICIENT AIRCRAFT
easylet operates an efficient fleet of Airbus A320 farmily
arrcraft mamnly equipped with CFM56 engines

CARBON EMISSIONS
Reduction compared to 2000

This year easyJet started to operate the new generation
Arrbus A320nes arrcraft There will be 100 of these arcraft

in the fleet by the end of 2022 These aircraft, equipped with
CFM LEAP-1A engines and wingtip ‘Sharklets’, are expected
to be 15% more fuel efficient than current generation awrcraft

Frorm summer 2018 easyJet will also start to receve 30
AZ2Ineo arcraft, with 235 seats compared 10 186 seats on the
A320neo arcraft This will also contribute to easyJet’s carbon
reduction target by reducing the amount of fuel used to carry
each passenger

OPERATING EFFICIENTLY

easyJet continues to use operational measures to reduce

fuel usage and carbon emissions This includes the use of

one engine taxing, nstallation of Iightweight Recarc seats,
and the use of electronic devices rather than numerous paper
docurments In the fight deck

SUSTAINABLE TOURISM

The tourists that easylet, other arines and travel operators
bring to destinations make a very significant contrbution to
local economies However toursm alse needs to have a
sustanable impact on the local environment and community
easyJet beleves that if there 1s a need to control the tounsm
activity in a particular area then this should be done by the
relevant local authonties, taking account of the economic
benefit of tourism

Image removed

Graph removed
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Corporate responsibility / continued

A GOOD CITIZEN

WHY DOES THIS MATTER?

easyJet wants to make a positive contribution to society, to
support the areas where its customers and employees live, as
well as in the wider world

UNICEF PARTNERSHIP

easyJet has @ pan-European chanty partnership with UNICEF,
the world's leading children’s organisation Since 2012 the
partnership has raised over £10 milion, helping UNICEF to
protect milions of children around the world from disease
and keep them safe during emergencies

During the spring, summer and winter collection periods
easyJet cabin crew carry out on-board appeals for customers
to donate ther spare change and leftaver foreign currency

The funds pnmarily support UNICER's vaccination work to
keep children safe from polio, as part of the global efforts

to eradicate this deadly disease This year the funds have
supported acbivities in Pakistan, one of only three remamning
countries where polic 1s stifi endemic, helping UNICEF
vaccinate mere than 285,300 children in some of the hardest
to reach areas of the country

In the 2017 financial vear the partnership raised over

£15 million, which included the on-board collections and
other fundraising activity by easyJet employees and met its
current partnership fundraising target of £10 million

LOCAL DONATIONS

easyJet also supports local charbies nominated by its
employees, through donations awarded by its Chanty
Committee This year the committee has made 140 awards
of flight vouchers or financial donations, each to the value
of £250 or €300

CASE 5TUDY

In June 2017 a group of
easyJet employees
visited the Phiippines to
see UNICEF's work In the
country, which had been
supported by an earler
easylet chanty
emergency appeal The
group saw how UNICEF
responded immediately
following the 2013
typhoon and in the
recovery, as well as the
local poho mmurisation
programme

image removed
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EMERGENCY APPEALS

easyJet launches emergency appeals on board its arrcraft,
parhcularly for significant, tragic events In Countries across
its network and around the world In the 2017 financial year
easyJet held appeals following the Grenfell Tower fire in
London, the Manchester terrorist attack, the earthguake in
Italy, and for Unicef's response to the East Afnca famine and
Hurncane Irma in the Canbbean

AIRCRAFT NOISE

easyJet seeks to reduce the mpact of arrcraft noise on
resicdents who Iive near arrports or under flight paths It works
locally with arports and arr traffic control to put In place noise
mitigation activities that best fit each arport easyJet pilcts
also use flying technigues to reduce noise impact, such as
continuous descent approaches

The new generation Arrbus A320neo arrcraft that easy.Jet
started to operate this year are 50% quieter dunng take-off
and landing than current generation arcraft

easyJet s also completing a retrofit programme to address

a particular sound associated with A320 family arcraft of all
arlines due to the arrflow under the wing All new arcraft
delivered to easyJet since September 2014 are fitted with
‘vortex generaters' In 2015 easyJet began an engineering
programme to modify existing arcraft with vortex generators
As of 30 September 2017 over 93% of easyJlet’s fleet were
fitted with vortex generators and easyJet expects all arcraft
to be modified by 31 December 2017



Chairman’s statement on corporate governance

Committed to

corporate governance

Irmage removed

JOHN BARTON
Chairman

DEAR SHAREHOLDER

I am pleased to present to you this year's Corporate
governance report The Board rernains committed to
maintaining a high standard of gavernance to enhance
performance, drive continued good behaviours and protect
shareholders During 2017 the following key areas of
governance were discussed

CULTURE IN THE ORGANISATION

easylet 15 committed to nurturing an open and communicative
culture which encourages employee participation in the
exchange of ideas, Information and suggestions Significant
work has taken place over the year to identify and review
1ssues related to the Group's cutture, using Internal Audit
reports, corporate governance gquestionnarres and external
studies Our review concluded that there was good
engagement, collaboration and accountabihty within the
organsation, and the tone from the top was right we will
continue to review and report on our Culture and this wilt
remain a key focus in 2018

SUCCESSION PLANNING

AND CHANGES TO THE BOARD

This year has been particularly busy for both the Board and
the Nominations Committee in relation to succession planning,
assessing the Executive, Non-Executive and senior succession
pipeline, and identifying what skills are needed to support our
strategy and business for the long-term

On 10 November the Board announced the appointmeant of
Johan Lundgren as its new Chief Executive as replacerment tor
Carolyn McCall He will be joming the Company on 1 December
2017, with Carolyn stepping down as Chief Executive on 30
November but remaining with easylet until 31 December 2017
to assist with the transition The Nominations Committee ledd
the process to appoint the new Chief Executive, with support
from the other Non-Executive Directors throughout the
process Johan was appointed following a ngorous assessment
and selection process

We welcomed Moya Greene to the Board on 19 July 2017
as a Non-Executive Director She alsc became a member
of the Remuneration and Safety Commuittees in September
Her logistics and transport background and FTSE 100 CEG
expenence have already served to strengthen the diverse
mix of expertise and experience on the Board

The recruitment and selection process for Johan and Moya,
along wath further detaill on the actvities of the Nominations
Comirmittes, are set out on page 58

Keith Hamill had decided to retire from the easyJet Board at
the end of July, however he extended his term for a further
period to support the Chief Executive search process Frangois
Rubichon stepped down on 22 July 201/, following completion
of three vears on the Board

FONVYNHIAQD

l'would like to thank Carolyn on behalf of the Board for her
commitment and important contnbution to the easyJet Board
and to easyJet's success

BREXIT

A main focus tor the Board has continued to be overseeing
and carefully reviewing management’s plans, and evaluating
key decisions, to protect the airine's existing flying rights when
the UK leaves the European Union This has been discussed
and presented at every scheduled Board meeting during

the year

easy.Jet has made significant progress in safeguarding the
future of its operations and network 1n Eurcpe over the last
year In July this year, following a ngorous and comprehensive
process, we were granted an Air Operator Certificate and
arrhne operating llcence by the authonties In Austria which

will support our European cperations N the lead up to and
post-Brext

GOVERNANCE

I am pleased to report that we have complied without
exception with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code (Apnl 2016) The Code 1s 1s5ued by the Financial
Reporting Councall and 1s available for review on the Financial
Reporting Council's (FRC) website https //www frc org uk

This vear our remuneration policy 1s due for approval by the
Company's shareholders The Remuneration Committee has
been working closely with the Group and its advisers to
produce a policy that promates the sustainable long-term
success of the business Further information can be found
N the Remuneration Committee section on page 64

STRUCTURE OF THE CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Corporate governance report which follows indicates the
Board's approach to corporate governance arrangements and
how they operated durng the year The report includes reports
from each of the Committee Chars, providing details on key
matters addressed by the Committees during the year

We have also set out a separate section (on pages 53 to 55)
to provide a detaled description of how the Group has
complied with all principles of the UK Corporate

Governance Code

Lo bt

JOHN BARTON
Non-Executive Chalrman
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Board of Directors

An experienced and balanced Board

JOHN BARTON
Non-Executive Chairman

WHSmith ple and Hammerson ple He was also the
Chief Executive of insurance broker JIB Group plc
After JIB s merger wath Lioyd Thompson he became

|mage ;:ppomted Charman of the combined Group. Jardine Lloyd
removed ay 2013 Thompson Group plc
Key areas of prior experience Current External Appointments
Finance, Governance Senior Independent Director of SSP Group plc. Charr
Skills & Experience af its Nomination and Remuneration Committees and
John has aiso served as Chairman of Next ple, member of ks Audit Commuittee Senicr Independent
o Cathn Group Limited, Cable and Wireless Worldwide Drector of Luceco ple and rmember of its Audit
plc. Brit Holdings ple and Wellington Underwriting plc Rernuneratich and Nomnation Cormnmittees No'n—
John was previously Senior Independent [Director of Executive Director of Matheson & Co Ltd
CHARLES GURASSA Housing Association, LOVEFILM International Limited
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman and Senior Phones4td Limited, Virgin Mohbile pic. Alamo/National
Independent Oirector Rent a Car, 7Days Ltd and Non-Executive Director at
Image Whitbread ple
removed Appainted Current External Appointments
June 20M
Non-Executive Chairman of Channel 4 and member
Key areas of prior expenence of its Remuneration, Ethics and Audit Committees
Arhne Induustry Senior Independent Oirector of Merin Entertainments

Skills & Experience

Charles career has been pnimanly n the travel,
tourism and leisure industnes in a number of senior
positions including Chief Executive of Thomson
Travel Group plc, Executive Charrman of TUI Northern
Europe Limited and Director of Passenger and Cargo
at British Aurways ple Charles retired from full time
work in June 2003 to pursue a portfolio career He
was previously Nan-Executive Charman of Geneasis

ple and Charrman of its Remuneration Committes
and member of its Audit and Health and Safety
Committees Member of the Board of Trustees at
English Hentage and Charrman of its Remuneration
and Appointments Committee Member of the Board
of Trustees at the Migration Museum Proect and
member of its Development Comimittee

CAROLYN MCCALL DBE
Chief Executive

Tesco ple and New Look ple Carolyn was Chair
of Opportumty Now and former Presiclent of Women
in Advertising and Communications Landon {(WACL)

Unti Juty 201, Adéle was a Partnier m KFMG and held
roles including Chief Financial Officer of KPMG LUK,
Chief Executive Officer of KPMG s captive insurer and
Chief Financial Officer of KPMG Europe
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Image Appainted Current External Appaintments
removed July 2010 Non-Executive Director of Burberry Graup ple
Key areas of prior expenence and member of its Audit and Neminations
Mecha Cormimittees Director of French Chamber
Skills & Experience of Commerce Director of the Corporate Board of
Pror to joining easyJet, Carolyn was Chief Royal Acaderny of Arts Non-Executive Director of
Executive of Guardian Mecha Group plc She was the Department of Business, Energy and industral
also Non-Executive Director of | loyds TSB Limited, Strategy
ANDREW FINDLAY Halfords plc. Pricr to this, Andrew was Director of
Chief Financial Officer Finance, Tax and Treasury at Marks and Spencer
Group plc He has also held senior finance roles at the
Image Appointed London Stock Exchange and at Cable and Wireless
removed October 2015 both in the UK and US
Key areas of prior expenence Current External Appointments
Finance Mon-Executive Director at Rightmove plc and
Skills & Experience member of its Aucht and Normmnations Comimittees
Andrew was previously Chief Financial Officer at
ADELE ANDERSON Current External Appeintments
Independent Non-Executive Director Senior Independent Director of Intu Properties plc
and Chair of its Audit Comrnittee and member of its
|mage Appointed Rermuneration Committee Non-Executive Director of
removed september 20T Spire Healthcare Group plc and Charr of its Audit and
Key areas of prior experience Risk Committee and mermber of its Remuneration
Finance Committee Member of the Board of Trustees and its
Skils & Experience Audit Committee at Save the Children UK Member of

the Audit Committee of the Wellcome Trust



Board Committee Membership as at 20 November 2017

e Safety Commuttee

e Remuneration Comrmittee

o Audit Committee

o Norminations Cormmittes

@ rronce Committee

o IT Governance and Cversight Committee

lmage
removed

DR ANDREAS BIERWIRTH
Independent Non-Executive Drrector

Appointed

July 2014

Key areas of pnor experience

Arrline Industry, European perspective

Skills & Experence

Andreas previously served as Chief Commercial Officer
and a Member of the Board at Austnan Arrlines AG

He also served as Vice President Marketing of Deutsche

Lufthansa AG in Frankfurt Prior to this, Andreas was
Deputy Managing Director and later Managing Director
at Germarnwings

Current External Appointments

Chief Executive Officer, T-Mobile Austna GmbH
Member of the Supervisory Board of Do&Co AG,
Casinos Austna AG {on behalf of the Austnan
Government) Lindner Hotels AG and Telekom
Deutschland GmbH

Image
removed

KEITH HAMILL OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed

March 2009

Key areas of prior experiance

Finance

Skills & Expenence

Keith was Chairman of Travelodge and Go, the latter
pnor to its acquisition by easyJet in 2002 His other
praevious Charrman roles included Tullett Prebon plc,
Colins Stewart plc, Avant Homes Limited, Heath
Lambert Limited and Moss Bros Group ple His

Nan-Fxecutive Director roles included Max Property
Group ple, Electrocomponents ple and Cadmus
Communications Corporabon Keith was Fiance
Director of WHSmith, of Forte plc and of United
Distillers, Director of Financial Control at Guinness plc
and & Partner in Price Waterhouse

Current External Appointrments

Chairman, Premier Foods plc and @ member of its
Norminations Commitee Charman of Horsforth
Holdings Limited Non-Executive Director, Sarmscnite
international 54 Member of the Board of Trustees,
St George, the Cnglish International School, Rome

Image
removed

ANDY MARTIN
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed

September 20711

Key areas of prior experignce

Finance, Arling Industry

Skills & Experience

From 2012 to 2015, Andy was the Group Chief
Operating Cfficer for Europe and Japan for Compass
Group plc and prior to that served as ther Group
Finance Director from 2004 to 2012 Before he joined

the Compass Group, he was Group Finance Director
at First Choice Holidays plc (now TUI Group) which
had an arline as part of a wider tour operator business
Andy has also held senior financial positions, Including
Fartner, with Granada Group pic, Forte plc and Arthur
Andersen (now part of Delaitte)

Current External Appointrments

MNon-Executive Director of Intertek Group pic,
Charrman of its Aucht Committee and member of its
Remuneration Committee Non-Executive Director of
Hays ple and mermber of its Audit, Remuneration and
Norination Committees

Image
removed

MOYA GREENE
Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed

July 2017

Key areas of prior experience

Logistics and Transport

Skills & Expenence

Moya has been Chief Executive of Royal Mall Group
since July 2010 Pror to joining Royal Mail, Moya was
CEQ of Canada Post She also has a strong public

DIVERSITY IN THE BOARD
The Board recognises the benefits of having diversily across the Board
ta ensure effective engagement with key stakeholders and effective delivery of the business strategy

sector background, developed over a 17-year period
when she assumed progressively more senior roles

in seven chfferent Ministnes of the Canadian Federal
Pubiic Service She has previcusly been a Non-
Executrve Director on the Board of Great-West Lifeco
and Tirm Hortons Inc. both publicly quoted in Canada
Current External Appointments

Chief Executive of Royal Mall Group plc Member of
the Board of Trustees, the Tate Gallery

Graph removed

Graph removed

Graph removed
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Executive Management Team

An experienced team to deliver

CHRIS BROCKLESBY
Chief information Officer

Change Managerment, Suppler Managerment and
Frocurement Chris also spent 18 years at Accenture
n thar Financial Services and Technology practices
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|mage Appeinted He became a Partner in 2000 and led the UK
removed March 2015 Financial Services Systems Integration practice, as
Key areas of prior expenence well as feading work at clients such as AXA Life,
I Zunch Financial Services, Standard Life and Prudental
Skills & Experience
Before joining gasyJet, Chris was Chief Information
Officer at Tesco Bank and was a member of the
Executive Committee with responsibaty for iT,
CHRIS BRCWNE Chief Operating Officer, Aviation, of TU! Travel
Chief Operating Officer ple, Managing Director, Thormson Awrways and
Managing Director, First Choice Arways She also has
Image Appointed commercial and general management expenence
removed October 2016 N consumer-facing industries with previous roles at
Key areas of prior expenence Carlson Worlgwide and Jberia Ainways
Arrine industry Current External Appointments
Skills & Experience Non-Exacutive Director of Bowvis Homes plc
Chns was appointed to the Board of gasyJet plc and member of its Nominations, Remunerabion and
on 1 January 2016 as a Non-Executive Drrector, Audit Commuittees
before stepping down on 30 September 2016 to
join the Executive Management Team as Chief
Operating Officer Chnis has previously held several
senior leadership positions within aviation ncluding
PETER DUFFY Skills & Expenience
Chief Commercial Officer Before joining easyJet, Peter was Marketing Director
far Audr in the UK Prior to that, he was Marketing
Image ?:;?1,2590‘201] Services Director at Barclays
¥
removed Key areas of prior experence
Marketing, Digital and Commercial
ANDREW FINDLAY
Chief Financial Officer
|mage See Board of Directors’ Profiles on page 48
removed
ROBERT CAREY and operationat 1ssues
Group Director of Strategy and Network Robert has authored multiple articles and spoken
widely about the arline industry He has also been a
|mage Appointed keynote speaker at a number of travel forums and
removed september 2017 conferences Prior to McKinsay, Robert worked for
Key areas of prior experience Delta Ar Lines and Amenca West Arrbnes in a vanety
Awrline industry, Strategy of roles across revenue and operational functions
Skills & Experlence
Robert joined from McKinsey & Company where he
was a leader i the Arline practice Over the last 1
years, Robert has assisted arline chents around the
world on a range of strategic. revenue, commercial
CAROLYN MCCALL
Chief Executive
]mage See Board of Directors’ Profiles on page 48
removed



Image
removed

EAUL MOORE
Communications Director

Appointed

November 2010

Key areas of prnior experience

Communications

Skills & Experience

Before joinng easyJet, Paul was Group Public Affairs
and Communications Director for FirstGroup Prior (o
that Paul worked for Yirgin Atlantic Arways for 10 years
as Its Director of Corporate Affars

Image
removed

KYLA MULLINS
Company Secretary and Group General Counsel

Appointed

February 2015

Key areas of prior experience

Legal, Company Secretanal, Regulation

Skills & Experience

Kyla s a qualfied solaitor, having spent four years
with Chfford Chance befcre moving in-house Qver
the past 20 years she has held senior legal posibions
in the media, entertainment and strategic outsourcing
sectors Before joining easyJet, Kyla was General
Counsel and Company Secretary at Mitie Group plc,
Global General Counsel of EMI Music, and Group Legal
Drector at 1TV ple and Granada Media

Image
removed

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT TEAM CHANGES DURING THE 2017 YEAR

JACKY SIMMONDS
Group People Director

Appointed

January 2016

Key areas of pnor experence

Arrline industry, travel and tounsm, Human Resources
Skills & Experience

Before joining easyJet, Jacky was Group Human
Resources Director at TUI and previously held a number
of senior positions within that group, including Human
Resources Director for TUI UK & Ireland and First
Chaice plc before the rmerger with TUI

Current External Appointments

Non-Executive Director, Ferguson pic (formerty
Walseley plc), and Charr of its Remuneration
Committee and a member of its Audit and
Nominations Committees

AND UP TO 20 NOVEMBER 2017:
« Cath Lynn stepped down from her role as Group Director of Strategy and Netwark on 29 Septermber 2017
Robert Carey took over from Cath and was apponted as Group Director of Strategy and Network on 30 September 2017

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CHANGES DURING THE 2017 YEAR

AND UP TO 20 NOVEMBER 2017:
« [t was announced an 10 November 2077 that Johan Lundgren would be appointed as Chief Executive from 1 December

2017 Carolyn McCall will be stepping down as Chief Executive on 30 November 2017

« Francois Rubichon stepped down from the Board on 22 July 2017
» Moya Greene was appointed to the Board on 19 July 2017
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Corporate governance report

BOARD COMMITTEE STRUCTURE

easyJet plc Board

Responsible for the Group s long-term planning and providing the
necessary resources and structure to achieve long-term objectives

Safety Committee
Chair: Dr. Andreas Bierwirth
{page 57)

Key responsibiihes To examine
specific safety 1ssues as requested
by the Board or any member of
the Committee To recewe,
axamine and moritor reports on
actions taken by departments To
review and rmonitor the
implementation of easylet’s
annual safety plan

Finance Committee
Chair: Andy Martin
(page 63)

Key responsibilites To review and
monitor the Group's treasury
policies, treasury operations and
funding activities, alocng with the
asscciated risks

Nominations Committee
Chair: John Barton
(page 57)

Key responsibiities To keep under
review the composition, structure
and size of, and succession to, the
Board and its Committees To
provide succession planming for
senior executives and the Board,
leaching the process for all Board
appontments To evaluate the
balance of skilis, knowledge,
expenence and diversity on
the Board

IT Governance and
Oversight Committee
Chair: Andy Martin
{page 63)

Key responsibilities To provide
independent oversight over the
governance and controls relating to
the |T business area, i particular
covering the required resilience
and change

Audit Committee
Chair: Adéle Anderson
{page 59)

Key responsibiities To monitor
the integnty of the Group's
financial staterments, the
adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems of internal control
(including whistleblowing
procedures), and the
effectiveness and
independence of the internal
and external auditors

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Charles Gurassa
(page 64)

Key responsibiities To set
remuneration for all Executive
Directors and the Charrman,
including pension rights and any
compensation payments To
recommend and monitor the level
and structure of remuneration for
senior management

Executive Management Team

Responsible for implementing operational decisions which are within the framework

and long-term strategy set by the Board

ATTENDANCE AT SCHEDULED MEETINGS DURING 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR
For further information regarding when Board members joned or stepped down from Committees during and after the 2017 financial
year, please refer to the ‘Committee changes’ sections in the relevant Committee reports (pages 57 to ©4)

IT Governance

Aucht  Remuneration Finance Safety  Nominations and Oversight

Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Comimittee Committee
Scheduled Meetings 0 4 5 5 4 4 4
Executive Directors
Carolyn McCall BBE 10/10 2* 3 ad
Andrew Findlay 1010 4* ™ 5
Non-Executive Directors
John Barton 10/10 * 4% ™ 4* 474
Charles Gurassa 10/10 5/5 5/% * a/4
Adele Anderson 1040 474 5/5 4/4 * 4/4
Dr Andreas Bierwirth O 910 ™ 55 4/4 >
Keith Hamill OBE 2 10/10 4/4 ™ 4/4 4/4 374
Andy Martin 10710 474 5/5 5/5 ™ 444 4/4
Frangais Rubichon 7/8 /4 33
Moya Greene /3 71 ™

*  Not a member of the relevant Committee — attendance at rreeting by invitation
(I} Andreas Bierwirth missed one Board meeting n a two-day Board strategy offsite due to & prior commitment that could not be re-arranged
(2} Keaith Hamill missed one 1T Governance and Overaight Comrmittee meeting due to a prior commitment

(3} Frangois Rubichon stepped down from the Board on 22 July 2017 and infarmed the Board that he was unable to attend any meetings that July, bis
absences from meetings relate to that penod

(4} Moya Greene joned the Board on 19 July 2017 and jpined the Safety Corrmittee on 1 September 2017 and the Remunerstion Commuttee on
20 September 2017
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Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code

The Group has, throughout the 2017 financial year,

comphed without exception with the provisions of the 2016
VK Corporate Governance Code ('the Code’) The section
below detalls how the Company has complied with the Code,
avalable at http /Awvww frc org uk The following disclosures
are ordered into the sections as they appear in the Code

A. LEADERSHIP

A.1Role of the Board

The Board 1s responsible for providing effective leadership
to the arrline It does this by setting strategic prionties and
overseeing ther delivery in a way that enables sustainable
long-term growth, while maintaining a balanced approach
to nsk within a framework of effective controls

The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for
its decision which 1s avalable in the governance section of
easyJet's corporate website hitp //corporate easylet com
Day-to-day management responsibility rests with the
Executive Management Tearn, listed on pages 50 to 5]
These indmduals are also the Directors and Company
Secretary of the principal operating company, easyJet
Aurline Company Limited

The Board meets regularly, with 10 scheduled meetings
having been held dunng the year The Directors’ attendance
records at those meetings and Board Commuittee meetings
held during the year are shown in the table on page 52 In
addition to those scheduled meetings, five ad hoc Board calls
were also arranged during the 2017 financial year to deal with
matters arising between scheduled meetings as appropnate
Non-Executive Directors are encouraged to communicate
directly with each other and senior management between
Board meetings

The Group has purchased and maintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of Directors and Officers’ labiities

The Group has also entered into qualfying third party
ndemnity arrangements for the benefit of all its Directors, In
a form and scope which comply with the reguirements of the
Companies Act 2006

A.2 Division of responsibilities

The roles of Charman and Chief Executive are separate,

set out in wnting. clearly defined, and approved by the

Board They are avalable on easyJet's corporate website
http #corporate easyJet com The Chairman's role s to

lead the Board and ensure that it operates effectively

The Chief Executive's role 15 the day-to-day running of the
Group's businesses and the developrnent and implementation
of strategy

A.3 The Chairman

The Charrman, John Barton, sets the Board's agenda and
ensures that adequate time 1s avallable for discussion of all
agenda items, ncluding strategic 1ssues On his appointment
in May 2013, the Board considered John Barton to be
independent in character and judgrment in accordance with
the Code

A.4 Non-Executive Directors

Charles Gurassa s Senior Independent Director and Deputy
Charrrman In this role, Charles provides adwvice and additional
support and experence to the Charman as required, and 1s
avalable to act as an ntermediary for the other Directors (f
necessary Charles is also availlable to address shareholders’
concerns that have not been resclved through the normal
channels of commurnication with the Chairman, Chief Executive
or other Executive Directors, and leads the appraisal of the
Charrman's performance annually In consuitabon with the other
Non-Executive Directors in a meeting without the Charman
being present The Non-Executive Directors, together with

the Chairman, also meet regularly without any Executive
Directors Dunng the year, there were no unresolved concerns
regarding the running of the Group

B. EFFECTIVENESS

B.1 Composition of the Board

As at 30 September 2017, the Board cormpnsed seven
Non-Executive Directors (including the Charrmany and
two Executive Directors

AINVYNYIAOCD

After considenng the matter, the Board considers Adele
Anderson, Dr Andreas Bierwirth, Charles Gurassa, Keith Hamill
(OBE, Andy Martin and Moya Greene to be Non-Executive
Directors who are independent in character and judgrment The
Board reviews its Committee membership each year to ensure
that undue rellance 1s not placed on individuals

B.2 Appointments to the Board

The Nominations Committee leads the process for Board
appointments and makes recommendations to the Board For
nformation on the work of the Norminations Committee and a
description of the Board's policy on diversity, please refer to
the Nominations Cornmittee report on pages 57 and 58

B.3 Commitment

Following the Board evaluation process, detalled turther below,
the Board s satisfied that each of the Directors is able to
allocate sufficient time to the Group to discharge therr
responsibiities effectively

Contracts and letters of appaintment with Directors

are made avalable at the Annual General Meeting or

on request The standard terrms and conditions of the
appontment of Non-Executive Directors are also avalable
in the governance section of easylet’s corporate website
http //corporate easylet com

Executive Cirectars and the Executive Management Team are
permitted to take up non-executive positions on a board of a
ksted company so long as this s not thought to interfere with
the business of the Group Carclyn McCall DBE, the Chief
Executive, has acted as Non-Executive Director at Burberry
Group ple since Septermber 2014 Andrew Findlay was
apponted Non-Executive Director at Rightmove plc in June
2017 Executive Directors’ appointments to such positions 1s
subyect ro the approval of the Board which considers, amongst
other things, the time commetment required
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Corporate governance report / continued

B.4 Development

On joining the Board, new members receve a talored
induction, organised by the Company Secretary, which covers
amongst other things the business of the Group, therr legal
and regulatory responsibilities as Directors, briefings and
presentations from relevant executives and opportunitias to
visit and experignce easy Jet's business operations

To update the Directors skills, knowledge and familiarity

with the Group, visits to bases are organised for the Board
periodically, to assist its understanding of the operational
1Issues that the business faces The Board was invited to

visit the base in Gatwick in March 2017, and to attend a
presentation on Gatwick Arport, as well as a site tour which
included a visit to the new bag drop area, and the new arside
crew facility, with the chance to meet the base management
team and members of the crew

A bnefing paper s provided to Board members to update
them on relevant developments in law, regulation and best
practice, usually two to four times per year Drrectors are
encouraged to highlight specific areas where they feel their
skills or knowledge would benefit from further development
as part of the annual Board evaluation process

B.5 Information and support

Al members of the Board are supphed with approprate, clear
and accurate information in a timely manner covering matters
which are to be considered at forthcoming Board or
Committee meetings

Should Directors judge it necessary to seek independent

legal advice about the performance of therr duties with

the Company, they are entitled to do so at the Company's
expense Directors also have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, who s responsible for advising the
Board on all governance matters and ensuring that Board
procedures are complied with

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary 1s
a rmatter requinng Board approvai

8.6 Evaluation

A performance review of the Board, its Committees and
Directors 1s carried out every year and 1s externally facilitated
at least every third year Following the evaluation being
externally facibtated in 2015, the 2017 Board and Committee
evaluation was conducted internally by the Company Secretary
and Group General Counsel, Kyla Mullins, at the request of the
Chairman Kyla prepared surveys that were completed by
Board members

The review extended to all aspects of Board and Committee
performance iIncluding composition and dynamics, the
Chairman’s leadership, agenda and focus, time management,
strategic oversight, oversight of nsk and succession planning,
and prionties for change

Charles Gurassa, as Senior Independent Director, led a review
of the Charman’s performance and held a private meeting of
the Non-Executive Directors without the Chairman present to
discuss the Charrman's performance It was concluded that
John Barton's performance and contnbution are strong and
that he dermonstrates effective leadership The Executive
Directors and the Non-Executive Directors also reviewed and
were satisfied with the Chairman's ime commitrment to the
Board and the business
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The Charman conducted a process of evaluating the
performance and contribution of each Director, which included
a one-to-one performance evaluation and feedback discussion
with each of them

B.7 Re-election

The Company's Articles of Association reguire the Drectors

to submit themselves for re-election by shareholders at least
once avery three years Howeaver, the Board has decided that
all Cirectors will stand for re-election or election at each Annual
General Meeting in accordance with the Code

C. ACCOUNTABILITY
C.1 Financial and Business Reporting
Please refer to

« page 88 for the Board's statement on the Annual report
and accounts being farr, balenced and understandable,

«  page 3 for the statement on the status of the Company
and the Group as a going concern, and

« the Strategic report on pages 4 to 21 for an explanation
of the Group's business model and the strategy for
delivering the objectives of the Group

C.2 Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has carried out a robust assessment of the pnncipal
nsks facing the Group and how those risks affect the
praspects of the Group Please refer to pages 33 to 40

for further information on the Group's principal nsks and
uncertainties and page 31 for therr impact on the longer-term
viability and prospects of the Group

The overall responsiolity for easyJet's syslemns of internal
control and for reviewing their effectiveness rests with the
Board The Board has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the systems of internal control durng the
year, under the auspices of the Audit Committee Further
information on the Group's risk management processes Is
aiven on this page and on its internal control systems on
page 56

C.3 Audit Committee and Auditors

For further information on the Group’s compliance with the
Code provisions relating to the Audit Committee and auditors,
please refer to the Audit Committee report on pages 59 to 62

D. REMUNERATION
For further information on the Group's complance with
the Code provisions relating to remuneration, please refer to

« the Directors remuneration report on pages 65 to 84 for
the level and components of remuneration (D 1), and

« page 64 (the Remuneration Committee Report) for the
procedure relating to remuneration (D 2).

E. RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

E.1 Dialogue with shareholders

The Group actively engages with investors and

solicits ther feedback The Charman and Deputy Chairman
rmet with shareholders durning the year to helg mantan

a balanced understanding of therr 1ssues and concerns They
also attended a senior investor dinner in January and met with
the Company's top 10 institutional investors The Charrman has
updated the Board on the opiniens of mvastors The views of
shareholders and market perceptions are also communicated
to the Board wvia presentations by the Head of Investor
Relations at least every quarter



easylet has an investor relations department which

runs an active programme to facilitate engagement with
investors based around the financial reporting calendar

This year the programme has included one-to-one meetings
with institutional Investors, road shows and conferences, as
well as a Capital Markets Day at London Gatwick Arport

There 15 also regular cornmunication with nstitutional investors
on key business 1ssues

During the year, the Chairman, Deputy Charman and Chief
Executive met with representatives of easyGroup Holdings
Limited, the Company’s largest shareholder, to discuss relevant
matters The Chief Financial Officer and General Counsel have
also met separately with representatives of easyGroup Ltd

(an affihate of easyGroup Holdings Limited) to discuss matters
relating to the management and protection of the “easyJet’
and “easy” brands

BOARD INDUCTION IN ACTION: MOYA GREENE

E.2 Constructive use of the Annual General Meeting
The Annual General Meeting gives all shareholders the
opportunity to communicate directly with the Board and
encourages ther participation Shareholders are given the
cpportunity to raise issues formally at the Annual General
Meeting or informally with Directors after the meeting All
Directors normally attend the Annual General Meeting and
the Chairs of the Committees are avalable to answer
questions at the Annual General Meeting

On joining the Board, new members receive a talored induction organised by the Company Secretary

UNDERSTANDING THE CULTURE AND BUSINESS OF EASYJET

governance frarmework

A Board induction pack was provided in electronic form to assist with building an understanding of the
nature of the Group, its business and markets. to help bwld a ink with the Group's people and provide an
understanding of the Group's man relationships and to ensure a thorough understanding of the role of
Director and the framework within which the Board operates The docurnents that were provided in the
pack ncluded the Group's structure chart, Board and Committee calendar, previous munutes of meetings as
well as key contacts of the organisation, procedure and policy manuals and briefings on the corporate

MEET WITH SENIOR MANAGEMENT

challenges of our largest bases

A day at the Group's headguarters at Hangar 89 was arranged for Moya to meet with key senior members
of the Group This Included a meeting with the Company Secretary and Group General Counsel o discuss
the Board and Committee meeting process at easylet, and a meeting with the Chief Financial Officer, to
assist n the understanding of the Investor Relations schedule and the Group s approach to risk and risk
management Other key activiies duning the day were a tour around the Hangar, a flight operations and
safety induction and a meeting with our Head of Arrport & Central Procurement to understand the

MEET WITH THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND OTHER EXTERNAL STAKEHOLDERS

Further meetings took place over the course of the summer with other key members of management as
well as the Charman, Deputy Charman and the Comimittee Charrs Additionally, Moya had the cpportunity
to meet with other key advisers and stakeholders, including the Company's brokers

VISIT VARIOUS EASYJET SITES

Moya has visited Hangar 89, the Group's man headquarters, to rneet with key staff and had the
opportunity to speak with management and administration ernployeas Additionally, a Board site visit 1s
currently scheduled to take place i June, which Moya wall attend as a member of the Board

www easyldet com
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Corporate governance report / continued

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Beoard has overall responsibility for easyJet's nsk
management and systems of internal control

Risk management

easyJet has an established nsk managerment process to ensure
that signficant risks are identified and mitgated where possible
For further details of the nsk management process, the
pnncipal nsks and uncertainties faced by the Group and the
associsted mitigating actions, please refer to pages 33 to 40

To ensure that risks are managed effectively, a number of
activities are undertaken

= An Executive Management Team member is allocated as
the nsk owner for each pnncipal risk, with responsibility for
the day-to-day management of those risks

=  Ongoing risk management and assurance 1s provided
through the vanous monitonng reviews and reporting
mechanisms that are embedded into the business
operations The results of these reviews are reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board, which consider whether
these high-level nisks are being effectively controlled

= Regular operational (including safety), commercial, financial
and iT functional meetings are held to review performance
and to consider key risks and ssues (please refer to page
57 for datals of the Safety Committee)

= The Executive Management Team meets regularly to
consider significant nsks, status of sk mitigations and
overall business performance, this ensures key 1ssues are
escalated through the management team and, as
appropnate, ultimately to the Board

» The Drectors review the effectiveness of internal controls,
including operating, financial and compliance cantrols

The Audt Committee undertakas an annual review of the
appropnateneass of the nsk management processes to ensure
that they are sufficiently robust to meet the needs of the
Group (please refer to pages 59 to 62 for details of the Audit
Committee's responsibiiities)

Internal control
The responsibiity for establishing and operating detaled
control procedures hes with the Chief Executive The internal

control systems are designed to manage, rather than ehiminate,

the nsk of falure to achieve business obyectives By therr
nature, they can only provide reasonabie, but not absolute,
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

The internal financial contral monitering programme,
administered by Internal Audit, has continued to enhance the
review process The internal control regime 1s supported by the
operation of a whistleblower reporting function The systern is
operatad by a specialist external third party service provider
and allows employees to report concerns anonymously and in
confidence The Audit Committee has approved the processes
and reporting structure for the function, and recetves regular
reports on its operation
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Internal Audit

The Internal Audit function's key objectives are to provide
independent and objective assurance on risks and controls to
the Board, Audit Commuttee and senicr management, and to
assist the Board in meeting 1ts corporate governance and
regulatory responsibilites The audit plan 1s approved by the
Auchit Committee on behalf of the Board, and updated on a
roling basis

Internal Audit reviews the extent to which systems of
nternal control

« are designed and operating effectively.
« are adeguate to manage easyJet’s key risks, and
» safeguard the Group's assets

During the second half of the year the Internal Audit and Risk
Management functions were merged to create a single Risk
and Assurance team The Head of Risk and Assurance reports
directly to the Chief Financial Officer and continues to have
drect access to the Chief Executive and the Charr of the Audit
Committee The Head of Risk and Assurance i1s invited to, and
attends, Audit Committee meetings throughout the year and
reports regularly on Internal Audit reviews (o the Executive
Managernent Team

During the year, an external effectiveness assessrment of the
Internal Audit function was completed by Mazars LLP on
behalf of the Audit Committee The role of the Internal Audit
function and the scope of its work both continue to evolve
to take account of recormmendations frarm the external
effectiveness review, changes within the business, and
emeraing best practice A formal audit charter 15 in place




Board Committees

BOARD COMMITTEE STRUCTURE

The Committee reports that follow set out, amongst other things, the responsibiities and activities of the Committeas in the

past financial year

The terms of reference of each Committee are docurnented and agreed by the Board The Committees’ terms of reference
are reviewed annually and are available in the governance section of easylet's corporate website http //corporate easyJet com

The Char of each Board Committee formally reports back to the Board on a regular basis

Details of Drrectors' attendance at Board and Board Committee meetings are set out on page 52

SAFETY COMMITTEE

NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Image removed

Image removed

DR ANDREAS BIERWIRTH
Chair of the Safety Committee

In ine with easyJet's position that safety 1s our number one
priority, the Safety Committee continues to ensure that
safety receves the highest level of Board attention

The Director of Safety, Securnty & Complance has a direct
reporting line to the Chairman which raeinforces the
independence of safety oversight in addition, the Chair of
the Committee has reported to the Board with his own
assessrnent of safety management within the arline
throughout the year

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
{members are all ndependent Non-Executive Directors)

= Dr Andreas Bierwirth (Chair}
= Keith Hamill OBE

*  Adéle Anderson

=  Moya Greene

COMMITTEE CHANGES
Moya Greene was apponted as a member of the
Committeg on 1 Septernber 2017

Turn to page 52
for mesting attendance

HIGHLIGHTS DURING THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR
Arange of safety-related matters have been reviewed by the
Committee dunng the 2017 financial year involving all areas —
flight operaticns, cabin crew, ground services and engineering
Some of these reviews followed reguests from the Board to
carry out detaled assessments of specific operational
incidents, othears were reports of safety actions taken by
easyJet operational departments, and investigations by
national investigation authorities
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JOHN BARTON
Chair of the Nominations Committee

The Committee has been busy during the yvear in leading
the selection and appointment process for a new Chief
Executive and Non-Executive Director We are confident
that the Board and the Committee have ensured a ngorous
and transparent process te find the most suitable
replacement for Chief Executive and someone who has

the skills and experience 1o implement the long-term
business strategy

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

{(members are independent Non-Executive Directors and
the Non-Executive Chairman of the Board)

« ohn Barton (Charr)

« Charles Gurassa

+  Keith Hamill OBE

= Andy Martin

COMMITTEE CHANGES

Francois Rubichon steppad down from the Board and the
Committee on 22 July 2017

Turn to page 52
tor meeting attendance

HIGHLIGHTS DURING THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

«  Leading the recruitment process for a new Chief Executive

and overseenyg appontment

+  Overseaing the selection process and appomntment of
Moya Greene, a new Independeant Non-Executive Drrector

»  Reoview and approval of updated Non-Executive Director
appaintment terms

«  Considerabion of the appointments to the Board
Commuttees following the change in Board composition

vy pasy et com 57

JINYNHIACD



Corporate governance report / continued

SUCCESSION PLANNING

The Board satisfies itself that plans are in place for orderly
succession for appointments to the Board, to mantain
appropriate skills and experience on the Board Dunng the
vear, It was discussed and agreed that management
development plans for senior management would be put
n place

BOARD APPOINTMENTS

As reported in last year's Annual report, last surmmer the
Committee undertook a deep dive analysis in calibrating the
capability and skills of the current Board against the future
reguirements of the Board in terms of size. structure,
composition and behaviour, with the support of an external
consultant, Calbroconsult Limited The Committee adopts a
formal and transparent procedure far the appointrment of new
Cirectors to the Board (both executive and non-executive) For
each recruitment process, the executive search consultant was
provided with a detalled brief of the desrred candidate profile
based on ment and against objective cntena The Committee
worked closely with the executive search consuttants in
compiling long and short lists of candidates and members of
the Committee wentfied and nterviewed a range of
candidates from vanous backgrounds and ndustries, and all
candidates were measured aganst criteria agreed at the start
aof each respective process Further details of each specific
search process Is sef out below A comprehensive induction
was provided on Moya's appontrment and s in tran for Johan
- and more details of Moya's iInduction can be found on

page 55

Chief Executive appointment

Chief Executive succession planning 1s regularly discussed and
reviewed at the Committee which provided a helpful
background to the recrutrnent process Following the
announcement of Carolyn McCall's resignation as Chief
Executive on 17 July 2017, the Committee immediately
commenced a rngorous recruitment process to appoint a new
Chief Executive JCA Group (JCA) were appointed to act as
aasylel's executive search consultants with respect to the
search for a new Chief Executive Other than supporting
Fustonc Beard and senior executive appointments the Board
confirms that JCA has no other connection with the Group
The Committee worked closely with JCA in compihing long and
short hsts of candidates, had weekly updates either via call or
amall from the Chairman, and a number of ad hoc Committee
rmeetings took place to which all the Non-Executive Directors
were Invited and largely attended The final shorthisted
candidates took part in a leadership assessment process by
YSC, a leading assessment organisation with significant
axpenence of CEQ profiing The final shortlisted candidates
also met all of the Non-Executive Directors indrdually or in
small groups, and gave a presentation to the Non-Executive
Board as a whole Folowing this process, Johan Lundgran was
selected as the preferred candidate

Non-Executive Director appointment

In appointing Non-Executive Directors, the Board's practice 1s
to use external search consultants Following a selection
process, terms were negotiated with Egon Zehnder to act as
easy Jet's search consultants with respect to the search for a
new Non-Executive Director which resulted in the appointment
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of Moya Greene Other than supporting histonc Board and
senior execulive appointments, Egon Zehnder has no
connection with the Group The detaled brief of the desred
cancidate profile provided to Egon Zehnder included an
assessment of the tme commitment expected and candidates
were interviewed by the Nominations Committee and other
members of the Board The Nominations Committee
considered a list of potential candidates and the balance of
skills, knowledge, iIndependence, diversity (including gender)
and expenence on the Board to ensure that a sutable balance
was maintained Following this process, Moya Greene joined
the Board as a Non-Executive Director Moya's other significant
cornmitments were disclosed to the Board before her
appointment and are provided on page 49

DIVERSITY

The Board recognises the benefits of having diversity across
all areas of the Group and believes that this supports easyJet's
continued success and advantage When considering the
optimum make-up of the Board, the benefits of dwersity of
the Board are appropnately reviewed and balanced where
possible, and due regard given in terms of differences in skills,
ndustry expenence, business model expenences, gender,
gender expression, gender identity, race, disability, age,
nationality, background and other contributions that indwviduals
may make The list of ways in which diversity 1s considered 1s
non-exhaustive, and subject to reqular review The Committee
continues to encourage dwversity of business skills and
expenence, recognising that Directors with varying skill sets,
capabiities and experience ganed from different geographic
and cultural backgrounds enhance the Board In identfying
suitable candidates, the Committee will seek candidates from
a range of backgrounds, with the final decision being based
on ment aganst obective cntena

easyJet works hard to create an environment where women
have the cpportunity to build careers in all communities and at
all management levels of the organisation, by ensuring there 1s
a pipeline of women coming up through the organisation As
at 30 September 2017, the Company had three female
Directors at plc Board level, one being the Chief Executive,
equating to a 33% female Board representation easylJet's
policy on dversity applies across all levels of the organisation,
and further details can be found in the Corporate respensibility
section on page 44, ncluding further detalls of the Executive
Managerent Team



AUDIT COMMITTEE

Image removed
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ADELE ANDERSON

Chair of the Audit Committee

The Commuttee has focused on the integrity of the
Group's financial reporbing and ensunng the appropnatea
challenge and governance around nisk management The
Committee has continued to follow a detalled programme
of work and ta respond to the increasing depth of review
and reporting that 1s now required of audit committees

Accurate and informative financial reporting and an
effective control environrent are of critical importance

to the Board and our shareholders The Committee has
established arrangements that enable it to ensure that the
information presented s farr, balanced and understandable

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

{rmembers are all Independent Non-Executive Directors)

= Adele Anderson (Charr)
¢ Keith Hamill OBE
s Andy Martin

For the purposes of the Code, the Board considers the
Committee members’ inancial experience to be recent and
relevant and the Board has determined that the current
compaosition of the Audit Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the sector n which the Company
operates All the Committee members have had a
significant amount of sector experience as Non-Executive
Directors of easyJet for a number of years, and in addition
Andy Martin has had executive sector expernence In his
previous role at First Choice Haolidays ple All three
Committee members are gualified accountants

COMMITTEE CHANGES
There have been no changes to the Committee during
the year

Turn to page 52
for meeting attendance

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REPORTING

The Committee assesses whethar suitable accounting policies
have bean adopted and whether management has made
appropriate estimates and judgements For example, durng
the financial year, the Committee reviewed the level of
provisions and accruals recorded which are judgemental in
nature The Committee reviewed accounting papers prepared
by management which provide details on significant financial
reporting jJudgements The Committee also reviewed the
reports by the external auditors on the full year and half year
results which tuighlight any 1ssues with respect to the work
undertaken on the audit

The Committee reviewed financial 1ssues through discussion
with management and the external auditors and comparison
to other organisations The number of such 1ssues currently
considered as significant are, however, limited given easyJet's
relatively simple business model and group structure which are
unencumbered with legacy 1ssues The significant 1ssues
considered in relation to the accounts are detailed below

+ The Committee consideraed whether the carrying valug of
goodwill and landing rights held by easylet should be
impared The udgement in relation to impairment largely
relates to the assumptions underlying the calculation of the
value in use of the business being tested for imparment,
pnrmarily whether the forecasted cash flows are achievable
and the overall macroeconomic assumptions which
underhe the valuation process The Committee addressed
these matters using reports recerved from managerment
outlknng the basis for assumptions used The forecasted
cash flows used in the calculation were presented to the
Board and they concluded no impact on impairrment

= The Committee considered a detaled review of the
assumptions underpinning arrcraft residual value estimates
along with the treatment of the sale of 10 AZ19 arrcraft in
December 2016 and tharr immediate lease back The sale
and leaseback transaction led to reconsideration of the
accounting policy for mantenance provisions on a mid-Ife
sale and leaseback, so that the mantenance catch-up
cormmmitrment crystallising was recognised immediately in the
incorme statement This accounting polcy change resulted
In a prior year adjustment of previous maintenance provision
catch-ups, which were histoncally held on the balance sheet
and released over the lease term (see page 99)

= The Committee considerad changes to the presentation
of performance measures and to the Income statement
resutting from the separate reporting of ‘non-headline’ items,
being non-recurnng maternial items of income and expense
that are significant in either nature or amount, or items
which are not considered to be reflective of the trading
performance of the business This change provides readers
with a clearer view of easyJet's underlying performance

»  The Committee reviewed the level and calculations of key
accruals and provisions which are jJudgemental in nature,
specificalty, the areas of customer flight delays or
cancellation and arr passenger duty claims and
maintenance provision

The Committee s satisfied that the judgements made by
management are reasonable, and that appropnate disclosures
have been inciuded in the Annual report and accounts
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At the request of the Board. the Committee also considered
whether the Annual report and accounts are far balanced and
understandable and whether they provided the necessary
information for shareholders to assess the Group's postion and
performance, business model and strategy The Committee is
satisfied that, taken as a whole, the Annual report and
accounts are far, balanced and understandable In reaching
this conclusion, the Committee considered the overall review
and confirmation process around the Annual report and
accounts, including

« the nput of subject matter experts, the Executive
Management Team and other senior management and,
where applicable, the Board and its Committees,

+ the processes and controls which underoin the overall
review and confirmation process, ncluding the verfication
process being carned out by an internal financial controls
specialst {iIndependent of the Finance function), and

= Interna!l Audit providing assurance over the audit trai for
matenal data points relating to the non-financial statement
aspeacts of the Annual report and accounts, and external
audit providing assurance over the accounts

The Committee was provided with, and commented on
a draft copy of the Annual report and accounts

In carrying out the above processes, key considerations
ncluded ensuring that there was consistency between the
accounts and the narrative provided in the front half of the
Annuat report, and that there was an appropriate balance
hetween the reporting of weaknesses, difficulties and
challenges, as well as successes, In an open and

balanced manner

The Group's busmess activities, together vath the factors hikely
to affect its future developrnent, perforrnance and position are
set out in the Strateaic report easylet's going concern
staterent and longer-term vialility statement can be found
on page 31

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
The Board, as a whole, including the Audit Committee
mermbers, considers the nature and extent of easylet's nsk
management framework and the risk profile that 15 acceptable
n order to actieve the Group's strategic objectives The Audit
Committee has reviewed the work done by management, the
Commuittee itself and the Board on the assessment of the
Group's principal nsks, Including therr impact on the prospects
of the Group As a result, 1t 15 considered that the Board has
fulfiled 1its obhgations under the Code in relaticn to nsk
management and internal controls Further detalls on the
Group s principal nsks and uncertanties and ther impact on
the prospects of the Group are set out on pages 34 to 40

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES AND HOW THEY WERE DISCHARGED BY
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE DURING THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

Integrity of financial statements

Internal financial controls and risk
management systems

Internal Audit effectiveness
and review of activities

The Committee reviewed the
financial staternents and
announcements relating to the
financial performance and
governance of the Group at year
end and half year The Committes

The Committee reviewed the
adeguacy and effectiveness of the
Group's ongoing risk management
systems and control processes,
through an evaluation of

The Committee undertook an
assessment of the effectiveness
and independence of the Internal
Aucht function, which included
consideration of

discussed and carefully considered «  the nsk and assurance plans, s key Internat Aucht reports,
and reviewed the new Standards, = Internat Audit reports, » stakeholder feedback on the
IFRS 9, 15 and 16, accounting « sk assessments, quahty of Internal Audit activity,

polcy implications

The Committee also considered the continuity,

matenal areas \n which significant .
Judgements were appled based on
reparts from both the Groups
management and the external
auditors Further information 1s
provided in the Financial and
Business reporting section on
page 59

assessments
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« information secunty and business

+« nternal financial control

« Internal Audit’'s compliance
with prevaling professional
standards, and

e the mplementation of Internal
Audht recommendations

control themes, and

The Committee also commissioned
and reviewed an external quality
assessment of the Internal Audit
function in February Further
information s provided in the Risk
Management and Internal Control
section on pages 60 and 61




easylet’s systemn of internal controls, along with its design
and operating effectiveness, Is subject to review by the

Audit Commuttee, through reports received from managerment,

along with those from both internal and external auditors Any
control deficiencies identified are followed up with action plans
tracked by the Committee Further details of nsk management
and internal control are set out on page 56

RISK AND ASSURANCE

The Audit Committee 1s responsible for overseaing the work of
the Internal Audit function It reviews and approves the scope
of the internal Audit annual plan and assesses the guality of
Internal Audit reports, along with management's actions
relating to findings and the closure of recommended actions
The Audit Committee also considers stakeholder feedback on
the qualty of Internal Audit's work

The Corporate Governance Code requires organisations

to have a strong and effective internal audit functicn The
Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) requires the
qualty of the internal audit function to be assessed by an
independent external party every five years In order to
comply with these guidelines and to continuously inprove,
easylet engaged with Mazars LLP to conduct an independent
review of the Internal Audit function This repert and its
recomimendations was presented to the Committee durng
the year

Since the review, a new Head of Risk and Assurance has been
apponted Looking forward, the Risk and Assurance team will
move towards a fully risk-based audit plan, with varying
breadth and depth of reviews This will Include areater focus
on providing assurance over relabionships with key third parties

In order to safeguard the independence of the Internal Audit
functicn, the Head of Risk and Assurance (who heads up the
Internal Audit function) is given the oppartunity to meet
privately with the Audit Committes without any other
rembers of management present

Further wformation on the internal Audit function is provided
on page 56

EXTERNAL AUDITORS AND EFFECTIVENESS

OF EXTERNAL AUDIT PROCESS
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were reappointad auditors of
the Company at the 2017 Annual General Meeting following a
tender process undertaken in 2015 Senior management
monitors the auditors performance, behaviour and
effectiveness during the exercise of ther duties, which informs
the Audit Comrmittee s decision to recommend reappointment
on an annual basis

Relationship with external auditor (independence,
objectivity, process effectiveness, engagement)

Systems and controls for prevention of bribery, detection
of fraud and whistleblowing policy

The Commitiee reviewed and monitored the external
auditor independence and ohjectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process, taking into
consideration relevant UK professional and
regulatory requirements

There 1s regular engagement with the external auditors
during Cormmittee meetings and ad hoc meetings

The Committee reviewed whistleblower reports, reports on
ant-bribery and corruption procedures, reports on procedures
on fraud and loss prevention and reports on credit card fraud
and monitoring and investigations The Committee’s objective
Is to ensure that arrangements are in place for the
proporhionate and independent investigation of such matters
and for appropnate follow-up actions to take place

{when required), ncluging meetings without any
member of managerment eing present At the end of

Other specific items looked at as part of main activities

the financial year, each Committee member completes
an auditor effectiveness review questionnare

Further information on how the effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of the external audit
process were assessed, 1s provided in the External
auditors and effectiveness of external audit
process section

The Committee implemented a revised non-audit
services policy to reflect updated regulation and
guidance More nformation on the external auditors’
non-audit services, and audit tendering, 15 provided in
the Non-audit services and the Audit tendering
sections respectively

The Cornrmittee noted the principal findings of the
FRC 2016 Audit Quality Review on the external auditor

»  Review and approval of the controls that the Group would
seek to implement to safegquard agamnst any hability
relating to the Criminal Finances Act 2017

+« A detaled review of the assumptions underpinning
awcraft residual value estimates

« The approval of an ongoing approach to auditing culture
within the organisation, which was reported on by Risk
and Assurance for the first time in the year See further
detal In the Charrman's staternent on corperate
governance on page 47

+ Review of easylet's exposure to fraud in contact centres
and asscclated mitigating controls and action

«  Continued discussion and review of cybersecurity

«  Oversight of the appaintment of the new Head of Risk
and Assurance
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The Audt Committee also assesses the effectiveness,
independence and objectivity of the external auditors by,
amongst other things

+ considering all key external auditor plans and reports, In
particular those summarising audit work performed on
sigrificant nsks and critical Judgerments identfied and
detaled audit testing thereon,

» having regular engagement with the external auditor dunng
Committee meetings and ad hoc meetings (when
reguired), Including meetings without any member of
management being present,

» the Commilttee Char having discussions with the Semor
Statutory Auditor ahead of each Committee meeting, and

+« following the end of the financial year, each Committee
rmember completing an auditor effectiveness
review gquestionnaire

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

To preserve objectivity and independence, the external
auditors do not provide consulting services unless this 15 n
compliance with the Group's non-audit services policy During
the year the Committee implemented a revised non-audit
services policy to reflect the EU audit reform regulations and
the FRC's Revised Ethical Standard 2016, which s avallable

in the governance section of easyJat s corporate weabisde,
http //corporate easyJet com

In the 2017 financial year, PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP
undertook work to provide a comfort tetter in relation to the
Company updating its Euro Medium Term Note Programme
for which the fees were £32,000 This was considered audit
related work and the Committee approved this work under
the non-audit services policy Therefore. in the 2017
financial year the Company incurred non-audit services

of £32,000 (2016 audit related fees of £38,000)

AUDIT TENDERING

PricawaterhouseCoopers LLP were first appointed to

audit the Annual report and accounts for the year ended
30 September 2006, and have therefore served an 11-year
term Under EU audit reform legislation, companies are
reguired to have a mandatory rotation of auditors after

10 years, or 20 years If there 1s a compulsory retender at

10 years During the 2015 financial year, the Committee led
a tender process for external audit services, following which
the Audit Committee agreed to recormmend that the Board
reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as, on balance, they
performed best against the Committee's pre-agreed
selection and assessment cnteria
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AUDIT TENDERING

2006
PwC
appointed

2015
Full competitive
tender, PwC
re-appointed

202472025
Competitive tender
to take place unless
required earlher

2026
PwC cannot be
reappointed in 2026
and a cormpetitive
tender will take place
(If not taken place pricr
to this date)



FINANCE COMMITTEE

IT GOVERNANCE AND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE

Image removed

AINYNEIAOD

Image removed

Mo Mal

Charr of the Finance Committee

The Finance Committee continues to provide effective
oversight of the Group's treasury and funding policies and
actwities, ensuring that activities undertaken will not subject
the Group to undesired levels of nisk, and that treasury
activities are appropnately aligned with Group strategy

and support the Group financial performance

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

(members are all Independent Non-Executive Directors)
= Andy Martin {Chair)

¢ Dr Andreas Bierwarth

» Charles Gurassa

COMMITTEE CHANGES

There were no changes dunng the year to the Committee

Turn to page 52
for meeting attendance

HIGHLIGHTS DURING THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

= (Oversaw the issue of further Curobonds under its Euro
Medium Term Note Programme as well as an updating of
that programme

« Reviewed and approved revised share warehousing policy

+  Provided a regulatory update on the current and future
regulation impacting Treasury and the impact this had
on easyJet

+»  Reviewed a number of policies, ncluding jet fual hedaging
policy and foreign exchange hedging policy

+ Reviewed sale and leaseback of 10 A319 arrcraft to manage
residual value risk

MMl

ANDY MARTIN
Chair of the IT Governance and Oversight Committee

The IT Governance and Oversight Committea provides
governance oversight, and gives independent validation
and challenge, to one of the Group's key business areas

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

{members are all independent Non-Executive Directors)
= Andy Martin (Chair)

»  Keith Hamill ORE

«  Adéle Anderson

COMMITTEE CHANGES
There were no changes dunng the year to the Committee

Turn to page 52
for meeting attendance

HIGHLIGHTS DURING THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR
Provided independent oversight over

«  The governance and controls relating to the IT
business area

— The new e-commerce platform programme during its
design and buld phase

— The delvery of the frent end new look booking systern

«  Commissioned and reviewed independent assurance
reports from consultants relating to certam IT programmes

»  Reviewed the capabilities and resourcing reguired to deliver
the IT programmes
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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CHARLES GURASSA
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

The Board and the Committee are cornmitted to ensunng
that easyJet's remuneration framework 15 designed to

support the strategy, providing balance between motivating

and challenging senior management whilst also driving
the long-term success of the Group for its shareholders

The remuneration pelicy has been designed to be
straightforward and transparent. In alignment with
the Group's principle of having a sirmple and
cost-effective approach

@)

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

{members are all Independent Non-Executive Directors)

Turn to page 65
for Directors’ remuneration report

« Charles Gurassa (Chair)

s Andy Martin

= Adeéle Anderson

+  Moya Greene
COMMITTEE CHANGES

Francois Rutichon stepped down from the Board and the
Committee on 22 July 2017

Moya Greene was appointed as a member of the
Committee on 20 September 2077

Turn to page 52
for meeting attendance
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HIGHLIGHTS DURING THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

Reviewed the salanes and service contracts of the
Executive Directors and senicr management

Assessed the level of performance in respect of 2016
financial year bonus and LTIP awards set in December 2013
and vesting In December 2016 to determine appropriate
payouts

Determined the bonus and LTIP targets for the 2017
financial year censidenng and debating alternative targets,
investor expectations and internal business plans

Reviewed pay-related governance and key themes arising
from the 2016/2017 AGM seasons as well as specific
easylet investor and investor body feedback

Cornpleted a comprehensive review of Executive Directors’
rermunegration policy in ight of the current internal and
externat environment

Considered the results and imphcations of Gender Pay Gap
Reporting and reviewed and commented on
recommendations to further enhance the Company's
parformance

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES UNDER THE UK
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

For additional disclosures under the UK Corporate Governance
Code in relation to the Remuneration Committee's work and
remuneration consuitants, please refer to the Directors’
remuneration report

The full Directors’ remuneration report follows the Governance
Report on pages 65 to 84



Directors’ remuneration report

Annual statement
the Remuneration
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CHARLES GURASSA
Charr of the Remuneration Committee

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Directors’
remuneration report (the ‘Report’) for the year ended

30 September 2017 The 2017 Report sets out detaills of

the remuneration policy for Executive and Non-Executive
Directors, descnbes how the remuneration policy 1s
implemented and discloses the amounts paid relating to

the year ended 30 September 2017 and how 1t will be
mplemented for the 2018 financiat year

CHANGES TO THE BOARD

We announced on 17 July 2017 that our Chief Executve,
Carolyn McCall, had advised the Board of her intention to leave
easyJet n order to becorne Chief Executive of ITV plc She
steps down from the Board and her position as Chiet
Executive on 30 November 2017 but will continue to be
actively employved by easyJet until 31 December 2017, in order
to assist with the transition to the new Chief Executive Carolyn
will continue to receve salary and benefits over the penod untll
she leaves the Busingss She will not be eligible for an annual
bonus payment for the 2017 financial year or the 2018 financial
year, all of her unvested Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIF)
awards have lapsed and her deferred bonus share awards will
lapse in full beyond the end of her employment

We were delighted to announce on 10 November 2017 the
appointrment of Johan Lundgren who will join the Board and
replace Carolyn as Chief Executive on 1 December The
rermnuneration arrangements for Johan are fully consistent with
our remuneration policy The remuneration package has been
designed to prowide a competitive total pay arrangement with
a focus on vanable pay and I1s aligned with the long-term
interests of shareholders On appointment Johan will receive
an annual salary of £740,000, an annual bonus up to a
maximum of 200% of salary, an LTIP award of up to 250% of
salary, pension contribution of 7% of salary and some modest
benefits No additional buy-outs from previously awarded
incentive arrangements will be pavable Johan will be expected
to buld and rmamntain a shareholding of 200% of salary over &
five year period following appointment

PERFORMANCE AND REWARD OCUTCOMES IN
THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR

| am pleased to report that easyJet has delvered & strong
trading performance in 2017 across the business despite the
continuing external challenges impacting the business This s
reflected in our performance and incentive outcomes which
are summarised in the ‘Remuneration at a glance’ section on
page 67 Once agan this shows the great resilience of our

by the Chair of
Committee

operating model and the continued effectivenass of our
strategy in the face of significant headwinds in the year

BONUS

Annual bonus payments are based on a combination of key
financial and operational targets as well as an element based
on personal and departmental ocbjectives A bonus of 67% of
the maximum was awarded to the Chief Financial Officer,
Andrew Findlay, in respect of the 2017 financal year This
reflects the strong company performance versus the profit,
cost, personal and departmental objectives set at the outset of
the year However, no bonus was earned in respect of the
on-time performance and customer satisfaction scores which
fell just below the threshold set by the Committee One-third
of the bonus earned 15 subject to compulsory deferral into
shares for three years As noted above, Carolyn McCall 1s not
elgible to receve a bonus in respect of the 2017 financiat vear

LTIP

An LTIP award made to the Chief Financial Officer on
recruitment in November 2015 1s due to vest in December
2077 The award s based on & combination of average return
an capital employed (ROCE) performance (including lease
adiustments) and relative total shareholder return {TSR)
compared to FTSE 31-130 companies for the three financial
years ended 30 September 2017 The Group achieved
three-year average ROCE performance (including lease
adjustments) of 16 2% but TSR was below median This
resulted in 15 3% of the awards vesting, subject to continued
employment to the vesting date LTIP awards rade to Carolyn
MeCall in December 2014 and due to vest in December 2017
have now lapsed as a result of her resignation

REVIEW OF THE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
POLICY

In advance of the expiry of the Group's approved pokcy at the
next AGM, the Committee has undertaken a thorough review
of the current arrangements and has concluded that the
existing approach remains effective and aligned with easyJet's
strategic obectives as set out on page 1

JINVYNHIAOCS

The Committee believes that the current remuneration
framework ensures there 1s significant aignrment between the
interests of Executive Directors and shareholders, focuses
axecutives on safely delivenng easyJet's key strategic
objectives and incorporates features which contribute to an
appropriate level of nsk miigation For example, incentive pay
15 subyect to recovery and withhalding provisions, & post-
vasting holding nernod operates for LTIP awards and significant
share ownership guidelines apply

We are not, therefore, proposing any fundamental changes to
the policy However, we are recommending some minor
amendments to ncrease flexibility, enhance clanty and further
strengthen alignment with shareholders’ interests The key
change 15 in relation to the LTIP, where we are proposing to
ntroduce greater flexibility in the selection of measures and
weightings to ensure that targets are fully aligned with the
strategic imperatives prevaling at the time they are set
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

IMPLEMENTATION OF THE REMUNERATION
POLICY IN THE 2018 FINANCIAL YEAR

We will be taking the following approach to implementation
of the remuneration policy for the year ending

30 September 2018

SALARY

Johan Lundgren's salary on appomntment will be £740,000

As previously reported, Andrew Findlay's salary was set at
£425 000 on appointment, with a stated intention to increase
this in phases to £500,000 over time Last year, this was
INcreased to £462 500 and this year the Committee has
decided to increase Andrew Findlay's salary fo £500 000 This
represents the final step In this process and will complete the
transition to the appropnate level Carolyn McCalls salary will
remain at its current level until her employment ends

BONUS

The Committee has set approprate and stretching annual
bonus targets for the year ended 30 September 2018 based
on headiine profit before tax and key operational, financial and
personal targets One-third of any bonus earned will continue
to be subject to compulsory deferral nto shares for three
years

LTIP

In order to provide a balance pbetween growth and returns that
reflects our financial goals more closely, the Committee 1s
consulting with major shareholders and shareholder advisory
groups on the introduction of an earnings per share (EPS)
measure to operate alongside the current ROCE and relative
Total Shareholder Return (TSR} measures in the LTIP We
believe that the combination of these three measures will
focus our executive team on sustanable growth of the
business (EPS), mantan a disciphned approach fo use of
capital (ROCE), end ahgn executive remuneration to growth
In sustainable shareholder value (TSR}

The Committee will fully disclose finahsed targets at the earliest
opportunity

On behalf of the Commuttee | thank yvou for your continued
support We trust that you find the report informative and, as
always, | welcome any comments you may have

20 Novermber 2017

C,, } OJA«,&SL

CHARLES GURASSA
Charr of the Remuneration Committee

WHAT IS IN THIS REPORT?

This Report sets out easyJet's remuneration pohcy for Executive and Non-Executive Directors, describes the
implementation of that policy and discloses the amounts earned relating to the year ended 30 September 2017

The Report complies with the provisions of the Comparies Act 2006 and supporting regulatons The Report has been
prepared In hne with the recommendations of the UK Carporate Governance Code and the requirements of the UK LA
Listing Rules

The Directors’ remuneration policy (set out on pages 69 to 75) will be put to shareholders in a binding vote at the
forthcoming AGM and. if approved, wili formally supersede the previous policy with immediate effect The Annual
Staternent by the Charrman of the Remuneration Committee (set out on pages 65 to 66} and the Annual Report on
Remuneration {set out on pages 75 to 84) will together be subject to an advisory vote at the forthcoming AGM
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Remuneration at a glance

REWARD PRINCIPLES

The Committee’s primary objective 1s to design a remuneration framewaork which promaotes the long-term success of the Group 8
To this end, we are guided by the foliowing reward principles which remain unchanged ﬁ
Principle Applcation in remuneration framewark %
z
Simple & cost To establish a simple and cost-effective reward package in line with our low-cost and efficient business ]
effective model For example, ocur Executive Directors do not recerve the leve! of benefits that can be found in the

rmajonty of listed companies and instead are aligned with those In the wider employee population

Aligned with business  To support the achievement of our business strategy of growth and returns, performance 15 assessed

strategy against a range of financial, operational, and fonger-term targets This ensures that value 1s delivered to
shareholders and that Executive Directors are rewarded for the successful and sustained delivery of the
key strategic objectives of the Group

Pay for performance  Total remuneration closely reflects performance and 1s therefore mora heavily weaighted towards vanable
pay than fixed pay This ensures that there is a clear ink between the value created for shareholders and
the armount paid to our Executive Directors

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATICN (£'000)
CEO {Carolyn McCall)

Graph removed

CFO (Andrew Findlay)

Graph removed

ANNUAL BONUS AND LTIP OUTCOMES
Annual bonus - FY2017 performance

Graph removed

LTIP - FY2017 performance

30 6% of ROCE LTIPs
vested and 0% of TSR
LTIPs such that, overall,
15 3% of LTIPs will vast

Graph removed
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REMUNERATION POLICY — AT A GLANCE

klement

Policy

Implernentation of Policy for FY2018

Base salary

Increase rnormally up to the average
workforce level (though may be
increased at higher rates in certan
crcumstances, e g where salary i1s
set below market on recruitment
and is being transittioned to a
competitive level In a series of
planned stages)

Johan Lundgren’s salary on appontment will be £740,000

Andrew Findlay’'s salary will increase from £462 500 to £500,0C0 (final
stage in planned transition to the rmarket level) effective 1 January 2018

Carolyn McCall's salary will not be increased

Benefits and
pension

Modest pension and benefit
provision, at similar levels as the
wider UK workforce

Pension of 7% of salary, plus modest benefifs

Annual bonus

Maximum opportunity 1s 200% of
salary (Chief Executive} and 175% of
salary (Chief Financial Officer)
One-third of bonus deferred nto
shares for three years Majority
based on financial measures
wWithholding and recovery
provisions apply

Maximurm will remain at 200% of salary for the new Chief Executive and
at 175% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer Carolyn McCall wall not
participate in the 2018 financial year Performance measures and
weightings are as follows

Annual bonus performance weighting

Graph removed

Long-term
incentive plan

Normal maximum awards of 250%
of salary (Chief Executive) and
200% of salary (Chief Financial
Officer) Up to 300% of salary in
exceptional circurnstances

Three-year parformance penod
plus two-year post-vesting
holding period

Based on financial and relatve
TSR targets

Withholding and recovery
provisions apply

Award to new Chief Executive of 250% of salary and award to
Chief Financial Officer of 200% of salary Carclyn McCall will not
participate for the 2018 financial year

The Committee 1s seeking feedback from major shareholders and
shareholder advisory groups and will confirm the targets at the
earliest opportunity

Share ownership
guidelines

200% of salary (Chief Executive)
and 175% of salary Chiet
Financlal Officer)

Reguirement to retain b0% of
post-tax [ TIP vesting and 100% of
post-tax deferred bonus shares unti
guidehne s met (and mantained)

In Ine with policy
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Directors remuneration policy

This part of the Directors’ remuneration report sets out
easyJet's directors’ remuneration policy This revised policy

will be put to shareholders for approval in a binding vote at
the AGM on 8 February 2018 The effective date of the revised
nolicy, If approved, will also be 8 February 2018 The
Committee’s current intention 1s that the revised policy will
operate for the three year penod to the AGM in 2021

ROLE OF OQUR REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee has responsibility for
determining remuneraticn for the Executive Directors and
the Charrman of the Board The Committee alse reviews the
remuneration of the Group's most senior executives in
consultation with the Chief Executive The Committee takes
intc account the need to recrut and retain executives and
ensure that they are properly motivated to perform in the
long-term interests of the Group and its shareholders,

while paying no more than 18 necessary

CONSIDERATIONS WHEN DETERMINING THE
REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary objective of the Group's remuneration policy

15 to promote the long-term success of the Group through the
operation of competitive pay arrangements which are
structured so as to be in the best interests of shareholders
When setting the policy for Executive Directors’ remuneration,
the Committee takes into account total remuneration levels
operating in companies of a simiar size and complexity, the
responsibilties of each individual rele, individual performance
and an individual s expernence Our overall policy, having had
due regard to the factors noted, 1s to weight remuneration
towards variable pay This s typically achieved through

setting base pay at a competitive level, offering very

rmodest pension and benefits, and with the potential to earn
above-market vanable pay subject to the achieverment of
demanding performance targets linked to the Group's
strategic objectives

In setting remuneration for the Executive Directors, the
Committes takes note of the overall approach to reward for
employees in the Group Salary increases will ordinanly be
(In percentage of salary terms) no higher than those of the
wider warkforce The Committee does not formaily consult
directly with employees on executive pay but does receive
periodic updates from the Group People Director

The Committee also considers developments in nstitutional
nvestors” best practice expectations and the views expressed
by shareholders during any dialogue

CONSIDERING THE VIEWS OF SHAREHOLDERS
WHEN DETERMINING THE REMUNERATION
POLICY

easyJet rermans cormmitted to shareholder dialogue and takes
an active interest N voting outcomes We consult extensively
with our major shareholders when setting our remuneration
policy or when considering any significant changes to our
rermuneration arrangements The Committee also considers
shareholder feedback received in relation to the Directors’
remuneration report each year following the AGM This, plus
any additional feedback recewved from time to time, 1s then
considerad as part of the Committee's annual review of
remuneration policy and its implementation

CHANGES TO THE PREVIOUS REMUNERATION
POLICY (APPROVED BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE
2015 AGM)

The Committee has undertaken a thorough review of the
existing remuneration policy, taking full account of easyJet’'s
strategic ohjectives and developments in the external pay
environment The Commuttee firmly believes that the current
overarching remuneration policy continues to be effective and
that no signiticant changes are required However, some minor
amendments have been proposed in order to ensure that the
policy s sufficiently flexible to operate effectively over the next
threg-year penod and provide additional clarity on how we
operate our pohcy in some areas Specafically, the polcy
incorporates additional flexibility with regard to the specfic
measures and weightings which will be used for the LTIP to
ensure that any measures and targets are fully aligned with
the strategic imperatives prevaing at the time they are set
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

SUMMARY OF THE REMUNERATION STRUCTURE
The table below sets out the main components of easyJet’s remuneration policy

Framework used to assess

Elerent, purpose performance and provisions

and hnk to strategy Operation (Including maximum levels where applicable) for the recovery of sums pad

Salary Base salaries are normally reviewed annually, with changes typicaily The Committee considers
effective from 1 January ndividual salanes at the

To provide the core reward
for the role Salaries are typically set after considenng salary levels in cormpanies
of a similar size and complaxity, the responsibilities of each indwdual
role, progression within the role, ndividual performance and an
individual's expenence Our overall policy, having had due regard to
the factors noted, 1s normally to target salanes at a broadly market
competitive level

appropnate Committees
rmeeting each year after
having due regard to
the factors noted in
operating the

salary policy

Sufficient level to recruit
and retain indwiduals of
the necessary calbre to
execute the Group's business

strate
qy Na recovery provisions

Salaries may be adjusted and any increase will crdinarily be apply to salary

(in percentage of salary terms) no higher than those of the
wider workforce

Increases bevond those granted to the wider workforce (in
percentage of salary terms) may be awarded In certain crcumstances
such as where there s a change in responsibility, progression in the
role, expenence or a significant increase in the scale of the role and/or
size, value and/or complexity of the Group

Benefits Executwe Directors receive benefits provisions at similar levels as the  Not applicable
wider UK workforce Benefits will typically include, for example,
modest death in service cover The cost to the Group of providing
these benefits may vary from year-to-year depending on the level of
the associated premium

No recovery provisions
apply to benefits

In ine with the Group's
pohcy to keep remuneration
simple and consistent

Executive Directors typically receive no other conventional executive
company benefits but will be eligible for any other benefits which are
ntroduced for the wider workforce on broadly similar terms

Other benefits such as relocation allowances (and other incidental
associated expenses) may be offered if considered appropnate and
reascnable by the Committee

Executive Directors can pay for voluntary benetits, where Group
purchasing power may provide an advantage to employees

Executive Direclors are also elgible to participate in any alllemployee
share plans operated by the Company, in ine with HMRC guidelines
currently prevailing (where relevant), on the same basis as for other
eligible employees

Should 1t be appropriate to recruit a Director from overseas, flexibility
15 retained to provide benefits that take account of those typically
provided in ther country of residence (e g It may be appropriate to
provide benefits that are talored to the unique circumstances of such
an appointment as opposed to providing the benefits detaled above)

Necessary expenses ncurrad undertaking Group business are
reimbursed so that Executive Directors are not worse off on a net of
tax basis for fulfiling Group duties

Pension Defined contribution plan with the same monthly employer Not applicable
contnbutions as those offered to eligible employess In the wider UK
workforce (1e up to 7% of base salary). or a cash alternative to the
equivalent value less employers’ National Insurance contribution costs

No recovery provisions
apply to employer
pension contnbutions

To provide employees with
long-term savings via pension
provisions in ine with the

Group's strategy to keep easy.Jet operates a pension salary sacrifice arrangement whereby
rermmungration simple and Indwiduals can exchange part of their salary for Group pawd pension
consistent contnbutions Where individuals exchange salary this reduces

employer National Insurance contributions easylJet credits half of this
reduction {currently 6 9% of lhe salary exchanged) to the indwvidual's
pension plan
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Element, purpose
and Ink 0 strategy

Operation (INncluding maximum levels where applicable)

tramework used to assess performance and provisions
for the recovery of sums paid

Share ownership

To ensure allgnment between
the interests of Executive
Directors and sharehclders

The Chief Executive and the Chief Financial
Officer are expected to buld and maintain a
holding eguivalent to 200% and 175% of salary
respectively over a period of five years

from appointment

Executive Directors are expected to retan 50%
of the post-tax shares vesting under the LTIP
and 100% of the post-tax deferred bonus
shares until the guideling 1s et and keep it
mantained thereafter

Not applcable

JONYNHIACD

Annual bonus

To incentivise and recognise
execution of the business
strategy on an annual basis
Rewards the achievement
of annual financial and
operational goals

Compulsory deferral provides
alignment with shareholders

Maximum opportunity of 200% of salary for
Chief Executive and 175% of salary for other
Executive Directors

One-third of the pre-tax bonus earned 15
subject to compulsary deferral into shares (or
equivalent), typically for a penod of three years,
and 15 normally subject to continued
employment

The remainder of the bonus s paid In cash

Dividend eguivalent payments may be made on
the deferred bonus, at the time of vesting and
may assume the reinvestment of dividends

All bonus payments are at the discretion of
the Cormmuttee, as shown following this table

Bonuses are based on stretching financial,
operational and personal/departmental
performance measures, as set and assessed
by the Comrmittee in its discretion, with
performance narmally measured over a
one-year perod Financial measures (e g
headhne profit before tax) will represent the
majonty of bonus, with other measures
representing the balance A graduated scale
of taroets is set for each measure, with 10%
of each element being payable for achieving
the relevant threshold hurdle

Safety underpins all of the operational activities
of the Group and the bonus plan includes a
provision that enables the Remuneration
Committee to scale back the bonus earned
(including to zero) in the event that there s a
safety event which It considers warrants the
use of such discretion

The annual bonus plan Includeas provisions
which enable the Committee (in respect of
both the cash and the deferred elements of
bonuses) to recover or withhold value In the
event of certan defined circumstances

LTIP Performance Share
Award

To incentivise and recognise
execution of the business
strategy over the longer-term
Rewards strong financial
performance and sustaned
Increase in shareholder value

Each year LTIP awards may be granted subject
to the achievement of performance targets
Awards normally vest over a threa-year penod

The maximum opportunity contained within the
plan rules for Performance Share Awards 1s
250% of salary (with awards up to 300% of
salary elgible to be made in exceptional
circumstances, such as recrutment)

The normal maximum face value of annual
awards will be 250% of salary for the Chief
Executive and 200% of salary for other
Executive Directors

Dividend equivalent awards may be made on
LTIP awards that vest, and may assume the
reinvestment of dividends

A holding penod applies to share awards
granted in the financial year ended 30
September 2015 and bevond The holding
penod will require the Executive Directors to
retan the after-tax value of shares tor 24
months from the vesting date

LTIP awards currently vest based on
performance aganst a challenging range of
financial targets and relative TSR performance
set and assessed by the Committee in its
discretion Financial targets currently determine
vesting in relation to at least 50% of awards
The selection of measures and weightings may
he vaned for future award cycles as appropriate
to reflect the strategic prionties of the business
at that tme

Performance 15 normally measured over a
three-year period

A maximum of 25% of each element vests for
achieving the threshold performance target
with 100% of the awards being earned for
maximum performance

The LTIP includes provisions which enable the
{Committee to recover or withhold value in the
ovent of certain defined circumstances
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

DISCRETION RETAINED BY THE COMMITTEE IN
OPERATING THE INCENTIVE PLANS

The Committee will operate the annual bonus plan and LTIP
according to ther respective rules (or relevant documents)
and in accordance with the Listing Rules where relevant The
Committee retains discretion, consistent with market practice,
N a number of regards to the operation and administration of
these plans These include, but are not inited (o, the following
In relation to the LTIP and annual bonys deferred in shares

» the participants,

« the timing of grant of an award,

» the size of an award.

+ the determination of vesting,

= the payment vehicle of the award/payment.

« discretion required when dealing with a change of controf
or restructuring of the Group,

« determination of the treatment of leavers based on the
rules of the plan and the approprate treatment chosen,
= adustments required in certain Circurnstances (e g rnights

1Issues, corperate restructuring events and special
dividends), and

« the annual review of performance rmeasures and weighting,

and targets for the LTIP from year-to-year

In relation to the annual bonus plan, the Cormnmittee retains
discretion over

s the participants,

« the tirrung of grant of a payment,

» the determination of the bonus payment,
s dealng with a change of control,

« determination of the treatment of leavers based on
the rules of the plan and the appropriate treatment
chosen, and

« the annual review of performance measures and weighting,
and targets for the annual bonus plan from year-to-year

In relation to both the Company's LTIP and annual benus plan,
the Committee retamns the ability to adjust the targets and/or
set different measures If events occur which cause 1t ta
determine that the conditions are no longer appropriate (e g
material acguisition and/or divestment of a Group business),
and the amendment 1s required so that the conditions
achieve ther onginal purpose and are not matenally less
difficult to satisfy

Any use of the above discretions would be explained in the
Annual Report on Remuneration and may be the subject of
consultation with the Company's major shareholders

The use of discretion in relation to the Company s Save As You
Earn and Share Incentive Plans will be as permitted under
HMRC rules and the Listing Rules

Detalls of share awards granted to existing Executive
Directors are set out on page 79 of the Annual Report These
reman eligible to vest based on ther onginal award terms
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PERFORMANCE METRICS AND TARGET SETTING
The choice of the performance metrnics applicable to the
annual bonus plan reflect the Cormnmittee’s belief that any
incentive compensation should be appropnately challenging
and ted to the delivery of a blend of key financial, operational
and personal targets ntended to ensure that Executive
Directors are incentivised to deliver across a scorecard of
objactves for which they are accountable Financial measures
(e g headline profit befare tax) will be used for the rmajority of
the bonus and will be selected in order to provide a clear
indication of how successful the Group has been in managing
operations effectively overall (& g in maximising profit per seat
whilst maintaning a high load factor) The remainder of the
bonus will be based on key operational (e g on-time
performance and custorner satisfaction) and personal or
departmental measures set annually

Since safety 1s of central importance to the business, the
award of any bonus 15 subject to an underpin that enables the
Remuneration Committee to reduce the bonus earned
(iIncluding to zero) in the event that there 15 a safety event that
It considers warrants the use of such discretion

LTIP awards are earned for delivenng performance against
an appropnate balance of key long-term financial (e g ROCE
and EPS) and relative TSR targets These seek to assess the
underlying financial performance of the business while
maintaining clear algnment between shareholders and
Executive Directors Targets are set based on a slding scale
that takes account of relevant commercial factors

Only modest awards are avallable for delivering threshold
performance levels with maximum awards requining substantial
outpertormance of challenging plans

The Committee has retaned some flexibility on the specaific
measures which can be used for the annual bonus plan and
the LTIP to ensure that they will be fully aligned with the
strategic imperatives prevaling at the time they are set

No performance targets are set for Save As You Earn awards
since these are purposefully designed to encourage employees
across the Group to purchase shares in the Company A
measure of Group performance 1s used In determining awards
under the Share Incentive Plan

HISTORICAL AWARDS

All historical awards that were granted under any current or
previous share schemes operated by the Company, and which
remain cutstanding, remain eligible to vest on the basis of ther
onginal award terms

DIFFERENCES IN PAY POLICY FOR EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS COMPARED TO OTHER EASYJET
EMPLOYEES

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors s more
heavily weighted towards variable and share-based pay than
for other employees, to make a greater part of therr pay
conditional on the successful delivery of business strategy
This airms to create a clear ink between the value created for
shareholders and the remuneration receved by the Executive
Directors However, In Iine with the Group's policy to keep
remuneration simple and performance-based, the benefit and
pension arrangements for the current Executive Directors are
on the same terms as those offered to eligible employees n
the wider workfarce Al employees have the cpportunity to
participate In the tax-advantaged share plans



ILLUSTRATION OF HOW MUCH THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS COULD EARN UNDER THE
REMUNERATION POLICY

A significant proportion of remuneration 1s inked to
performance, particularly at maximum performance levels The
charts below show how much the Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer could earn under easyJel’'s remuneration
polcy under different performance scenanos in the 2018
financial year The following assumptions have been made

o Minimum {performance below threshold) — Fixed pay only
with no vesting under any of easylJet's incentive plans

» In ine with expectations - Fixed pay plus a bonus at the
mid-point of the range (giving 50% of the maximum
opportunity} and vesting of 50% of the maximurn under
the LTIP

+«  Maximum (performance meets or exceeds maximum) —
Fixed pay plus maximum bonus and maximum vesting
under the LTIP

Fixed pay comprises
» salares — salary effective as at 1 October 2017 (or on
appontment for the Chief Executive),

+  benefits — amount receved In the 2017 financial year
(estimated for the new Chief Executive),

*«  pension — employer contributions or cash-equivalent
payments receved in the 2017 financial year (the level on
appontment for the Chief Executive), and

+ Free and Matching Shares under the all-employee share
incentive plan

CHIEF EXECUTIVE (JOHAN LUNDGREN)

Graph removed

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (ANDREW FINDLAY)

Graph removed

The scenanos do not include any share price growth or
dividend assumptions

It should be noted that since the analysis above shows what
could be earned by tha Executive Directors based on the
remuneration policy described above {(ignonng the potential
impact ot share price growth), the numbers will be different to
the values included in the table on page 77 detaling what was
actually earned by the Executive Directors in relation to the
financial year ended 30 Septernber 2017, since these values
are basad on the actual levels of performance achieved to

30 September 2017 and include the impact of share price
growth i relation to share awards

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' TERMS OF
EMPLOYMENT

The Group's policy 1s for Executive Directors to have

service contracts which may be terminated with no more than
12 months' notice from erther party

The Executive Directors’ service contracts are available for
nspection by shareholders at the Company's registered office

APPROACH TO LEAVERS

If notice s served by either party, the Executive Director can
continue to receive basic salary, benefits and pension for the
duiation of their notice period dunng which time the Business
may require the individual to continue to fulfil ther current
duties or may assign a perod of garden leave

A payment in lieu of notice may be made and, in this event,
the Committee’s normal pohcy is to make the payrment in up
to 12 monthly instalments which may be reduced f alternative
employment wag taken up durmg this pericd

Ronus payments may be made, payable in cash, on a
pro-rata basis, but only for the penod of time served from
the start of the financial year to the date of termination and
not for any penod in lieu of notice Any bonus paid would be
subyect to the normal bonus targets, tested at the end of the
financial year

In relation to a termination of employment, the Committee
may make any statutory entitiements or payments to settle
or compramise claims n connection with a termination of
any existing or future Executive Director as necessary

The Committee also retains the discretion to remburse
reascnable legal expenses incurred in relation to a terminaticn
of employment and to meet any outplacerment costs if
deerned necessary

The rules of our share glans set out what happens to awards
if a participant ceases to be an employee or Director of
casylet before the end of the vesting penod Generally, any
outstanding share awards will lapse on such cessation, except
N certain crcumstances

If an Cxecutive Director ceasas to be an emplovee or Director
of easy.Jet as a result of death, inury, retirement, the sale of
the business or company that employs the individual, or any
other reason at the discretion of the Committee, then they will
be treated as a 'good leaver’ under the relevant plan's rules
Under the deferred bonus, the shares for a good leaver will
normally vest in full on the normal vesting date (or on
cessation of employment in the case of death) and If the
award 15 1in the torm of an option, there 1s a 12-month window
i which the award can be exercised Awards structured as
ophons which have vested pnior to cessation can be exercised
wihin 12 months of cessation of office or employment
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

Under the LTIP, a good leaver's unvested awards will vest
(aither on the normal vesting date or the relevant date of
cessation, as determined by the Committee) subject to
achievernent of any relevant performance conditions, with a
pro-rata reduction to reflect the proportion of the vesting
penod served The Commuitiee has the discretion to disapply
time pro-rating If it considers it appropriate to do so A good
leaver may exercise ther vested awards structured as options
for a penod of 12 months following the indwvidual s cessation
of office or employment, whereas unvested awargs may be
exercised within 12 months of vesting

In determining whether an Executive Director should be
treated as a good leaver, and the extent to which therr award
may vest, the Committee will take nto account the
circumstances of an indiwvidual's departure

In the event of a takeover or winding-up of easylet plc {which
15 not part of an internal recrganisation of the easyJet Group,
I circumstances where equivalent replacement awards are
not granted) all awards will vest subject to, in the case of LTIP
awards, the achievernent of any relevant performance
conditions with a pro-rata reduction to reflect the proportion
of the vesting penod served The Committee has discretion to
disapply time pro-rating if it considers it appropnate to do so
In the event of a takeover, the Committee may determineg,
with the agreement of the acquinng company, that awards
will be exchanged for equivalent awards in another company

POLICY ON EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

Executive Directors are permitted to accept appropriate
outside Non-Executive Director appointments so long as the
overall commitment 15 compatible with therr duties as Executive
Directors and 1s not thought to interfere with the business of
the Group Any fees recewved in respect of these appointments
are retaned drrectly by the relevant Executive Director

APPROACH TO DETERMINING REMUNERATION
ON RECRUITMENT

Base salary levals will be set in accordance with easyJet’s
remuneration policy, taking nto account the experence and
calbre of the indwvidual Where it 1s considered appropnate to
offer a lower salary initially, a series of increases to acheve the
desired salary positioning may be given over the following few
years to reflect progression in the role, subject to individual
performance Benefits will normally be provided in line wath
those offered to other employees The Committee rmay prowde
an allowance and/or reimbursernent of any reasonable
expenses in relation to the relocation of an Executive Director
easyJet may also offer a cash amount on recrutment. payment
of which rmay be staggered, to reflect the value of benefits a
new recruit may have received fror a former employer

Should 1t be appropriate to recruit a Director from overseas,
flexibility is retained to provide henefits that take account of
those typically prowvided in therr country of residence (e g it
may be appropriate to provide henefits that are tailored to the
unique circumstances of such an appomrtrment)

The maximum level of vanable pay that may be offered on an
ongoing basis and the structure of remuneration will be in
accordance with the approved policy detaled above, 1e at an
aggregate maximum of up to 450% of salary (200% annual
bonus and 250% Performance Shares under the LTIP), taking
ntc account annual and long-term vanable pay This imit does
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not include the value of any buy-out arrangements Any
incentive offered above this Imit would be contingent on the
Company receving shareholder approval for an amendment to
its approved policy Different performance measures may be
set initially for the annual bonus, taking Into account the
responsibihities of the ndvidual, and the paint in the financial
year that they joined LTIP awards can be made shortly
following an appaintment (assuming the Company 15 not in

a closed pencd)

The above policy apples to both an internal promotion to the
Board or an external hire

in the case of an external hure, If It 1s necessary to buy out
incentive pay or benefit arrangements (which would be
forfaited on leaving the previous employer), this would be
provided for taking inte accourit the form (cash or shares),
tming and expected value (1 e Iikelhood of meeting any
existing performance criteria) of the remuneration being
forfeited Replacement share awards, if used, will be granted
using easyJet’s share plans to the extent possible, although
awards may also be granted outside these schemes |f
necessary and as permitted under the Listing Ruies

In the case of an internal promotion, any outstanding variable
pay awarded in relation to the previous role will be paid
according tots terms of grant (adusted as relevant to take
inte account the Board appontment)

On the appontment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive
Director, fees will be set taking into account the expenence
and calbre of the indwvidual Where specific cash or share
arrangements are delivered to Non-Executive Directors,
thase will not include share options or other performance-
related elements

The Board evaluation and succession planning processes in
place are designed to ensure there is the correct balance of
skills, experience and knowledge on the Board The activities of
the Nominations Committee overseeing these matters are
disciosed in the Nominations Committee repcrt

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FEES

The Non-Executive Directors receve an annual fee (normally
paid in monthly nstalments) The fee for the Non-Executive
Chairman is set by the Remuneration Commuttee and the fees
for the other Non-Executive Directors are approved by the
Board, on the recommendation of the Charman and

Chief Executive

TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF THE
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the Charrman and the other
Non-Executive Directors are recorded in letters of
appointment The required notice from the Company 1s three
months The Non-Executive Directors are not entitled to any
compensation on loss of office

The Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are
avallable for nspection by shareholders at the Company’'s
reqistered office



Element Purpose and Ink to strategy

Operation (including maxirmum levels where applcable)

To attract and retain a
righ calibre Charman,
Deputy Chairman

and Non-Executive
Directors by offering
market-competitive
fee levels

Fees

The Charman s paid an al-inclusive fee for all Board responsibilities

The other Non-Executive Directors receive a basic Board fee, with supplementary fees
payable for additional Board Committee responsibilities

The Charman and Non-Executive Directors do not participate in any of the Group's
incentive arrangements

Fee levels are reviewed on a regular basis, and may be increased, taking into account
factors such as the time commitment of the role and market levels in companies of
comparable size and complexity

Flexibility 1s retained to exceed current fee levels If it 15 necessary to do so in order to
appoint a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director of an appropriate calibre

In excephional circumstances, if there s a temporary vet matenal increase In the time
commitments for Non-Executive Directors, the Board may pay extra fees to recognise
the additional workload

JONYNYIAOD

Necessary expenses incurred undertaking Group business will be reimbursed so that the

Charman and Non-Executive Directors are not worse off, on a net of tax basis, for
fulfilling Company duties

No other benefits or remuneration are provided to the Chairman or Non-Executive Directors

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
Membership of the Remuneration Committee
As at 30 September 2017, the members of the
Committee were

+  Charles Gurassa {Chair)
«  Adele Anderson

+  Moya Greene (apponted to the Committee effective
20 September 2017)

»  Andy Martin

Frangois Rutichon stepped down from the Board and the
Committee on 22 July 2017

The responsibilities of the Committee are set out In the
Corporate Governance section of the Annual report on
page 64

The Charrman and the Chief Executive attend meetings by
invitation and assist the Committee in its deliberations as
approprnate The Committee also receives assistance from the
Group Peopie Director and the Group Head of Reward The
Company Secretary and the Group General Counsel acts as
secretary to the Cormmittee No Directors are involved in
determining therr own remuneration

APPLICATION OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY
FOR THE 2018 FINANCIAL YEAR

There will be no matenal changes to the remunerathon policy
or its implementation for the 2018 financial year easyletl’s
remuneration policy has received consistently high levels of
investor support over time and the Committee considers that
it remains aligned with the best practice expectations of
instituticnal Investors

Base salary
The current and proposed salanes of the Executive
Directors are

| January 1 January
2018 salary 2017 salary Change
Johan Lundgren £740,000 £740,000 -
Carolyn McCalt nfa  £705600 n/a
Andrew Findiay £500,000  £462 500 8%

{1 or onappontment If later

Johan Lundgren's salary has been set at £740,000 from
appointment on 1 December 2017 The salary will not be
reviewed before 1 January 2019 Andrew Findlay's base salary
was set at £425.000 when he joined the Board in October
2075 The salary was set at a significant discount to the market
level with the intention that it would be brought up to the
mid-rmarket level (£500,000) over time to reflect progression
in the role The increase effective 1 January 2018, to £500,000
15 Llhe finai stage In this process and was subject to an
assessment of indmdual and Business performance

For comparison, the typical rates of salary increase to be
awarded to employees in Group functions 1s 1% to 3%

ANNUAL BONUS IN RESPECT OF PERFORMANCE
IN THE 2018 FINANCIAL YEAR

The maximum bonus opportunity remains at 200% of salary
for the new Chief Executive (Carolyn McCall will not participate
in the annual bonus for the 2018 financial year) and at 175% for
the Chief Financial Officer The measures have been selected
to reflect a range of financial and operational goals that
support the key strategic objectives of the Group
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

The performance rmeasures and weightings will be as follows

As a percentage of maarmurn
bonus opportunity

Measure CEO CFOQ
Headline profit before tax

(at budgeted constant currency) 60% 0%
On-time performance 0% 0%
Customer satisfaction 10% 10%
Headline costs per seat excluding

fuel at budgeted constant currency 10% 0%
Personal and departmental

objectives 0% 0%

The proposed target levels for the 20718 financial year have
been set to be challenging relative to the business plan

The Committee 1s comfortable that the bonus targets for both
Executive Directors are appropriately demanding in ight of
ther respective bonus opportunities

The targets themselves, as they relate to the 2018 financial
year, are commercially sensitive However, retrospective
disclosure of the targets and performance against them will e
provided in next year's remuneration report unless they reman
commercially sensitive at that tirme The safety of our
customers and people underpins all of the operational activihes
of the Group and the bonus plan includes a provision that
enables the Remuneration Commitiee to scale back the bonus
awarded 1n the event that a safety event has occurred, which
it considers warrants the use of such discretion One-third of
the pre-tax bonus earned will be deferred into shares for a
penod of three years and will be subject

to continued employrment

The annual bonus includes provisions which enable the
Remuneration Committee Lo recover or withhold value from
any recipient of a cash or deferred bonus share award in the
event of a matenal rmisstatement of results for the financial
year to which the awards related, or an error in determining
the size of a bonus, within three years of the payment of the
cash bonus or the vesting of the deferred bonus shares The
Remuneration Committee may also recover or withhold value
from any recipient of an award of deferred bonus shares in
situations where the individual s considered to have
contributed to any safety failure which could result in
reputational damage for the Business

LTIP AWARDS IN RELATION TO THE 2018
FINANCIAL YEAR

We intend to make an award to the Chief Executive of 250%
of salary and to the Chief Financial Officer of 200% of salary in
respect of the 2078 financial year Carolyn McCall will not
participate in the LTIP for the 2018 financial year

In order to provide a balance between growth and returmns that
reflects our financial goals the Committee 1s seeking feedback
from major shareholders and shareholder advisory groups on
the ntroduction of an EPS measure to operate alongside the
current ROCE and TSR measures i the LTIP The finalsed
targets wili be fully disclosed at the earliest opportunity

A post-vesting holding penod reguinng the Executive Directors
to retain the after tax value of any shares for two years from
the vesting date will continue tc apply to awards made in the
2018 financia! year
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The LTIP ncludes prowisions which enable the Committee to
recover or withhold value in certain events withun three years
of the vesting These include misstaterment of results or a
calculation error used in assessing the number of shares under
an award or the extent to which any performance condition
was met or in situations where the individual 1s considered to
have contnibuted to any safety failure which could result in
reputational damage for the Business

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FEES
The fees for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors wali be
as fallows

Charman £300,000
Basic fee for other Non-Executive Directors £60.000
Fees for Deputy Chairman and Senior

Independent Director rolet® £25000
Chalr of the Audit, Safety and

Remuneration Cornrmittees™ £15,000
Char of the Finance Committee” £10,000

(1) Supplementary fees

The Board has agreed that there will be no increase to the
basic fees for the 2018 financial year, these are reviewed
regularly and were last increased on 1 October 2013



DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2017
The table below sets out the amounts earned by the Directors (£'000) (Audited)

2017 2016
Fees and Fees and Buy

E'0O00 Salary Benefits® Bonus®™ LTIP™ Pension™  Total Salary out'” Benefits Bonus  LIIPYY Pension Total
Executive
Carolyn McCall DBE 706 2 - - 49 757 704 - 5 189 506 49 1,453
Andrew Findlay 453 2 528 84 28 1,095 423 612 42 155 - 30 1262
Non-Executive
John Barton 300 - - - - 300 300 — - — - — 300
Charles Gurassa 100 - - - - 100 100 — - — — — 100
Adele Anderson 75 o - - - 75 77 - - - — - 77
Or Andreas Bierwirth 75 - - - - 75 60 - - - - - 60
John Browett!? - - - - - - 15 — - - — _ 15
Chris Browne OBE! - - - - - - 54 — - — — _ 54
Kerth Hamill OBE 60 - - - - 60 60 - - - - - 60
Andy Martin 70 - - - - 70 68 — - — - — 68
Moya Greene™® 2 - - - - 12 — - - — - _ _
Francois Rubichont® 48 - - - - 48 60 - - - — - 60
Total 1,899 4 528 84 77 2592 1,921 612 47 344 506 79 3,509

1} Left the Board on 31 Cecernber 2015
2) Left the Board on 30 September 2016
3) Appointed to the Board on 19 July 2017
(4} Left the Board on 22 tuly 2017

{5) Benefits relate *o the cost to the Business of personal accident and hfe assurance ¢ over and the value of shares donng the year under the Company's
Share Incentive Plan Andrew Findlay’s financial year 206 benefits also included a one-off relocation alowance payment of £40,000

(
(
(

@
7

One-third of the bonus will be compulsonly deferred into shares for thiee years and sugiect to forfeiture

[his relates to the LTIF awards granted on recrutment in November 2015 which vest in December 20°7 based on performance measured to
30 September 2017 For the purposes of this table, the award has been valued using the average share price over the three months 1o
30 September 2017 of £12695 This compares to £1714 at grant

Carolyn McCall has reached her lifetime pension imit and recerved a cash alternative of £49,392 0 leu of pension contributions

Performance rela*ed buy-out arrangerments were agreed to compensate Andrew Findlay tor bonus and LTIP forteted trom his previous employer The
buy-out comprised a E311.837 cash pay-out as well as vancus share awards (see page 80 for details) Of these share awards, 22,762 (plus 1,248 dwvidend
equvalent awards) vested on 7 August 2016, the share price at the vesting date was £10 35 A further 4680 awards (plus 257 dividend equivalent
awards) vested on 17 Decermber 2016 based on performance measured to 30 September 2006 For the purposes of the table i last year's report, the
award was valued using the average share price over the three manths to 30 September 2016 of £10 781 The value has been updated in this table to
reflect using the share price at the date of vesting of £10 43 This compares to £17 14 at grant

{10} This relates o the L1IP awards granted in December 2013 which vested in December 2016 based an performance measured to 30 September 2016 For
the purposes of the table in last year's report, the awards were valued using the average share price over the three months to 30 September 206 of
£10 781 The value has been updated 10 this table to reflect using the share price at the date of vesting of £10 43 This compares to £14 99 at grant

ANNUAL BONUS OUTTURN FOR PERFORMANCE IN THE 2017 FINANCIAL YEAR (AUDITED)

8
9

e

Measure CEQ CFO Threshold On-Target Maxirnum Actual Payout
Headne profit before tax (Em)™ 70% 60% 359 298 457 433 80%
On-time performancet? 10% 10% T7% 78 5% 80% 76% 0%
Customer satisfaction targetst™ 10% 10% 7% 735% 5% 71% 0%
Headline cost per seat (ex fuel)() 10% 0% £4088 £40 6] £4007 £40 20 8%
Departmentat objecthves!® — 0% n/a  Successful Quistanding  Qutstanding 100%

() At budgetad constant currency

{2} On-time performance measures the percentage of armivals within 15 minutes of scheduled time, subject to fliying 99 5% of programme {excluding
cancellations made 14 days n advance which do not attract LU compensation and thase which aftect the whole arline sector e g terronst disruption)

(3) Customer satisfaction measures the percentage of our passengers that are Quite satrflied  Very satisfied or Completely satisfied at last contact

{4) An outstanding performance assessment has been awarded 1o Andrew Findlay te recogrise his performance aganst the departmental objectives set at
the outset of the year Specifically, these relate to a number of projects designed to mraintan the strength of the balance sheet and progress on vanous
strategic, M&A, cammeraal and organistabianal change proects The payout awarded was therefore ot the maxrmum for this element of bonus (17 5%
of salary)
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

A shding scale of financial and operational targets for each objective was set at the start of the 2017 financial year 0% of each
element 15 payable for achieving the threshold target. increasing to 50% for on-target performance and 100% for achieving
maximum performance Achievernents between these points are calculated on a straight-ine basis

Despite continued challenging business conditions during the year financial performance (headline profit before tax and headiine
cost per seat) was ahead of target but below the maximum level of performance set by the Committee at the outset of the
year In contrast, given a number of external factors including rising congestion in key airports, OTP and CSAT performance dd
not achieve the threshold required to trigger a bonus In recognition of the performance of the Chief Financial Officer aganst a
range of personal and departmental obhjectives, the Committee decided to make a maximum payment to the Chief Financial
Oftficer for this element of bonus In total, therefore, 67% of the maxmurm bonus was awarded to the Chief Financial Officer in
respect of performance for the year ended 30 September 2017 resulting in a bonus payment of £528,344 One-third of the
bonus 1s compulsorily deferred into shares for three vears and subject to continued employment As noted earlier 1n this report
Carolyr McCall will no longer be eligible to receve a bonus In respect of the 2017 financial year or the 2018 financial year

The Committee is satishied with the overall payments in ight of the level of performance achieved

LTIP (AUDITED})

The awards vesting in respect of the performance period to 30 September 2017 were subject to @ combination of average ROCE
{including lease adjustrments} and relative TSR compared to FTSE 31-130 companies performance conditions measured over the
three financial years ended 30 September 2017 The percentage which could be earned was determined using the following
vesting schedule

Below threshold Threshold On Target Maximum
{0% vesting) {25% vesting) {(A0% vesting) (100% vesting)
ROCE awards
(50% of total awards) Below 15% 15% 182% 20% or above
TSR awards
(50% of total awards) Below median Median Upper Quartile

Three-year average ROCE (including lease adjustments) to 30 September 2017 was 16 2% and the Company did not meet the
threshold TSR performance target in the case of the Chief Financial Officer, this will result in 15 3% of the maximurn LTIP award
vesting In December 2017, subject to continued service The LTIP awards made to Carolyn McCall in December 2014 have lapsed

PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE AND PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS (AUDITED)
No payments for loss of office or to past Directors have been made dunng the year
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' SHARE AWARDS OUTSTANDING AT THE FINANCIAL YEAR END (AUDITED)

Details of share options and share awards outstanding at the financial year end are shawn in the following tables

CAROLYN MCCALL DBE

Mo of shares/  Shares/ Sharaes/ Shares/ No, of shares/ Market price from w?\?gﬁ
options at  ophions options options, options at Exercise  on exercse exercisable
30 September  granted lapsed  exercised 30 September Date price date {or date of
Scheme 20181 N year In year I year 2017 of grant (£) {E} wvesting for SIP} Expiry Date
A 180,461 - - {180,461) — 18 Dec 20121 - 978 18 Dec 2005 18 Dec 2022
A 90,517 —  (56426) (34,091} — 17 Dec 20030 - 978 17 Dec 206 1/ Dec 2023
A 84,987 - (84.987) - — 19 Dec 20142 — — 19 Dec 2017 19 Dec 2024
A 1025977 - (102877) - — 17 Dec 20150 - — 17 Dec 2018 17 Dec 2025
A - 189127 (169127) — — 19 Dec 2016 — — 18 Dec 2019 19 Dec 2026
B 86,438 - - (86438) — 18 Dec 2012\ - G678 18 Dec 2015 18 Dec 2022
B 38,283 -~ (23865) (14.48) — 17 Dec 20134 - 978 17 Dec 206 17 Dec 2023
B 31,441 - (31,447) — — 19 Dec 2014 — — 19 Dec 2017 19 Dec 2024
C 807 - - - 807 1 May 2011 — —  1May 2014 n/a
C 617/ - - - B17 18 Apr 2012 — — 18 Apr 2015 n‘a
C 265 - - - 265 30 Apr 2013 — — 30 Apr 2016 n/a
C 176 — — - 76 25 Apr 2014 - — 25 Apr 2017 n'a
c 122 - (122 - — 24 Apr 2015 - — 24 Apr 20718 n/a
C 199 — (199) - — 28 Apr 2006 - — 28 Apr 2019 n/a
D 1.094 134 {310} - 918 - - Note 10 n/a
E 947 — - - 847 12 Jun 2014 1330 - 1Aug 2017 1Feb 2018
£ 408 — (408) - — 10 Jun 2015 1323 - 1 Aug 2018 1 Feb 2019
ANDREW FINDLAY
MNo of shares/  Shares/ Shares/ Shares/ No, of shares/ Market price from w%?éﬁ
optons at - options aptions options, aptions at Exercise  onexercise exercisable
30 September  granted lapsed exercised 30 September once date (or date of
Scheme 2016+ N year " year N year 20770 Date of grant (£) {E} wvesting for SIP} Expiry Date
A 22,762 - - (22762} — 20 Nov 20151 - 1024 7 Aug 2016 20 Nov 2025
A 14,625 - (2,945) (4.680) — 20 Nov 2015® - 1024 17 Dec 2016 20 Nov 2025
A 39923 - - - 39,923 20 MNov 20154 - — 19 Dec 2017 20 Nov 2025
A 49620 - - - 49,620 17 Dec 2015 - — 17 Dec 2018 17 Dec 2025
A — BB8eBe - - 88,686 19 Dec 2016 — — 19 Dec 2019 19 Dec 2026
D 91 133 - - 224 - - Note 10 - n/a
E 1,051 - - - 1,051 10 Jun 2016 ns8 -  TAug 2019 1Feb 2020
E — 557 — — 857 15 Jun 2017 969 - 1Aug 2020 1 Feb 2021

The closing share price of the Company's ordinary shares at 30 September 2017 was £12 17 and the closing price range during
the year ended 30 September 2017 was £8 74 to £14 31

Key:

A Long Term Incentive Plan — Pertormance Shares
B Long Tarm Incentive Plan — Matching Shares

C Share Incentive Plan — Performance (Free) Shares
0 Share Incentive Plan — Matching Shares

E Save As You Earn Awards (SAYL)

Note 1 The number of shares s calculated according to the scheme rules of indmacdual glans based on the middle-market closing share price of the day pnor
to grant As s usual market practice, the option pnce for SAYE awards 15 determined by “he Comenittee iy advance of the award by reference to the share
pice following announcement of the half year resulws

Note 2 For LTIP awards made in December 2012, 50% of vesting was based on three-year average ROCL (incliding lease adustment ) performance for the
three hnancial years ending 30 September 2015 This was the frst gward where ROCE cai ulsmons included operating leases and this s the basis for all
subsequen: awards 50% of vesting was based on relatve 1SR perfaorman: e compared to comparies ranked FISL 51150 Three year average ROCE
(ncluding lease adustments) was 20 0% and the Company was ranked at the 94th perc entile versus FISL 51150 companies n terms of 13R,
correspondngly 100% of these awards vested m Decermber 20 5 The tollowing “argets appled tor these awards
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

Below
threshold I hreshold Maximum
(0% vesung)  (25% vesting) {100% vesting)
ROCE awards (50% of total award) <120% 12 0% 16 0%
Upper
TSR awards (50% of total award) < Median Median quartile

Note 3 L1IP awards made i Becember 2013

50% of vesting s based on three-year average ROCE {(including lease adiustment) performance for the three financial years ending 30 September 2016 and
50% of vesting 15 based on relative TSR performance compared to campanies ranked FTSE 51-150 Three year average ROCE (includhng lease adustments)
was 19 1% and the Company did not meet the TSR performance metric The following targets apply for these awards

threBs?'v‘g!VC\; Threshaold Target Maximum

(0% vesting)  (25% vesting) {(40% vesting) (100% vesting)

ROCE awards (50% of total award) <150% 15 0% 185% 200%
Upper

TSR awards (50% of total award) < Median Median n/a quartile

MNote 4 LTIP awards made in December 2014

50% of vesting 1s based on three-year average ROCL {(including lease adjustment) performance for the three financial years ending 30 September 2017 and
50% of vesting 15 based on relative TSR performance compared to companies ranked FTSE 31-130 Three yoar average ROCE (including lease adjustments)
was 16 2% and the Company cid not meet the 15R perfarmance metnc  The tollowing targets apply for these awards

thrgsi:gm Ihresheld Target Maximum

(0% vestng)  {25% vesting} {40% vesting} (100% vesting)

ROCE awards (50% of total award) <150% 15 0% 18 2% 20 0%
Upper

TSR awards (50% of total award) < Median Median n/a quartile

Note 5 LTIP awards made in Decernber 2015

70% of vesting 1s based on three-year average ROCL (ncluding lease adustment) performance for the three financial years ending 30 September 2018 and
30% of vesting 15 based on relative TSR perfermance compared to companies ranked FTSE 311130 The following targets apply for these awards

thrgsﬂgl\g 1hreshold Target Maximum

(0% vesting) (25% vestng) (40% vesting) (100% vesting)

ROCE awards (70% of total award) < 150% 15 0% 180% 200%
Upper

TSR awards (30% of total award) < Median Median n/a quartile

Note & LTIP awards made in December 2016

70% of vesting is based on three-year average ROCE (Including lease adustment) performance for the three financial years ending 30 Septernber 2018 and
30% of vesting I1s based on relative TSR performance compared to companies ranked 1St 54150 1he following targets apply for these awards

thrggg\g Threshold Target Maximum

vesting in Decermber 2019 (0% vesting)  (25% vesting) {50% vesting) (100% vesting)
ROCE awards (70% of total award) <9 0% 90% 2% 120%
Upper

TSR awards (30% of total award) < Median Median n/a quartile

In addition, the 1SR awards will not vest unless there has been positive 15R over the performance penod [ he face value of the awards granted was
£1,763,995 (250% of salary) to Carctyn McCall and £924 995 (200% of salary) to Andrew kindlay

MNote 7 An award of 22,762 easyJet shares was made to compensate Andrew bindlay for the forfeiture of the LTIP award he was awarded in August 2013
from his previous employer Snce around two-thirds of the vesting penod for this award had already run its course. the Comrmittee assessed the extent to
which the performance targets were likely to be met {based on current market forecasts) in respect of the shares comprising two-thirds of the award and
converted this number of shares into an equivalent value of easy let shares on joinng  These vested on 7 August 2016, so 83 to rmirror the anginal time
honzon of the award

Note 8 An award of 11,625 easyJet shares relating to the forfeiture of the LTIP Andreny Findlay was awarded in August 2073 from hus previous employer
This award was colculated based on the value of one-third of the award at the time of joining easyJet but these shares will only vest to the extent that the
performance targets set for the 2013 easyJet LTIP award (as provided in Note 3 abave) are met and continued employment to 17 Decernber 2016 This
compensation replicated the assessed value of the awards forteit and also n part switched nto easyJet performance on a pro-rata basis for part

of the award

Note 9 An award of 39,923 easyJet shares was made to compensate for the forferture of the award granted to Andrew Findlay in August 2074 from his
previous ermployer This award comprised an exchange of the maximum number of shares that could vest under his previous employer's award which were
then converted to easyJet shares on joining These shares will only vest based on the extent to which the performance targets applying to the 2014 easyJet
LTIP award (as provided in Note 4 above) are met and Andrew remaning 1n employrment untih 19 December 2017, being the ordinary vesting date for the
aasy et award and later than the vesting date of the original award at his former employer

Note 10 Participants buy Partnarstup Shares monthly under the Share incentive Plan The Company provides one Matching Share for each Partnership Share
purchased, up to the first £1.500 per year These Matching Shares are first avallable for vesting three years after purchase
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SHAREHOLDING GUIDELINES IN THE 2018 FINANCIAL YEAR

The shareholding guidelines will continue to operate on broadly the same basis as last year, 1¢ the Chiet Executive and Chief
Financial Officer are expected to buld up a shareholding of 200% and 175% of salary, respectively over the first five years from
appointment to the Board Until the guideline 1s met Executive Directors are required to retain 50% of net vested shares from the
LTIP and 100% of net vested deferred bonus shares Similarly, the Non-Executive Directars, including the Charrman of the Board,
are required to buld up a shareholding of 100% of annual fees over a penod of three years from appointment

DIRECTORS’' CURRENT SHAREHOLDINGS AND INTERESTS IN SHARES
The following table provides detalls on the Directors’ shareholdings and interests in shares as at 30 Septernber 2017, or on leaving
the Board f earlier (Audited)

Unconditionally  Shareholding Interests in share schemes
owned quidelnes Deferred

shares: achieved-* Donus:? SAYEW LTIP™ Sip Total

John Barton 34,000 100% - - - - -
Charles Gurassa 18,198 100% - - - - -
Carolyn McCalt DBE! 511,559 100% 20,860 947 - - 21907
Andrew Findlay 16,848 30% 4885 1,608 178,228 224 185046
Adele Anderson 514 100% - - — — -
Dr Andreas Bierwirth 5,251 100% - - - - -
Keith Harmull OBE 4,560 100% - —- - - -
Andy Martin 7,000 100% - - - - -
Moya Greene 7,407 100% — - - - —
Francois Rubichont” 3,465 100% — — — — -

(1) Left the Board on 22 July 2017 100% of the shareholding guideline had been achieved on the date Frangos Rubichon left the Board

(2} includes SIP Partnership Shares, vested SIP Performance (Free) Shares, vested SIP Matching Shares, LTIF iInvestment Shares, and any shares owned by
connacted persons regardless of changes n share price

(3} Based on unconditionally owned shares and post tax value of share interests under the deferred bonus plan as per the Committee's policy on
shareholding guidelines
(4) Ouistanding awards under the LTIP, deferred bonus plan and SIP have lapsed following the Chief Executive s resignation in July 2017

(5) Deferred bonus shares outstanding beyond the Chief Executive s departure date have lapsed due to her resignation in July 2017 Andrew Findlay s
deferred bonus figure includes 4,985 awards granted in the year

(6) LTIP shares are granted in the form of nif cost options subject to performance Andrew Findlay s L1IP figure includes 88,6086 awards granted in the year
(7) Consists of unvested SIP Performange (Free) Shares and unvested SIP Matching Shares
(8) Carolyn McCall has 947 SAYE options which are currently exercisable up untl 3+ January 2018 at an ophon price of £13 30

As at 20 November 2017, the uncondihionally owned shares of Carolyn McCall had increased by 40 shares since 30 Septernber
2017 to 501,599 shares and the unconditionally owned shares of Andrew Findlay had increased by M6 shares since 30 September
2017 to 16,994 shares

Changes made throughout the year may be found on our corporate website, http //corporate easyJet com

Executive Directors are deemed to be interested in the unvested shares held by the easydet Share Incentive Plan and the
easylet plc Employee Benefit Trust At 30 September 2017, ordinary shares held in the Trusts were as follows

Number
easyJet Share Incentive Plan Trust 1,322,662
easyJet plc Employee Benefit Trust 101,466
Total 1,424,128

POSITION AGAINST DILUTION LIMITS

easyJtet complies with the Investrment Association's Principles of Remuneration with regard to dilution imits These principles
require that commitments under all of the Company s share incentive schemes must not excead 10% of the 1ssued share capital
in any roling 10 year period Share awards under all current share incentive schemes (| TIP, Save As you Earn and Share Incentive
Plan) will be satisfied with share purchases on the market and the Company's current position against its dilution irmit 1s within the
maximurm 10% it

EMPLOYEE SHARE PLAN PARTICIPATION

A key component of easylet's reward philosophy 1s to provide share ownearship opporturuties throughout the Group by making
annual awards of performance-related shares to all eligible ernployees In addition, easyJet operates a voluntary discounted share
purchase arrangament for all employees via a Save As You Earn scheme and a Buy As Your Earn arrangement with matching
shares in the UK under the tax approved Share Incentive Plan
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Directors’ remuneration report / continued

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
Deatalls of the service contracts and letters of appointment in place as at 30 September 2017 for Directors are as follows

Unexpired term at

Date of appoinzment Date of current service contract 30 September 2017
John Barton 1May 2013 1May 2016 Letters of appointment
Charles Gurassa 27 June 207 19 June 2017 for the Non-Executive Directors
Carolyn McCall DBE 1 July 2010 1 July 2010 de net contain fixed term periods,
Andrew Findlay 2 Cetober 2015 10 Apnil 2015 nowever, they are appointed in

the expectation that they will serve

Adéle Anderson 1 September 2011 19 July 2017 For a maximumm of nine years,
Dr Andreas Bierwirth 22 July 2014 19 July 2017 subject to satisfactory
Moya Greene 19 July 2017 19 July 2077 performance and re-election
Andy Martin 1 September 20N 19 July 2017 at AGMs
Keith Hamill OBE 1 March 2009 3 March 2015 Stepping down

REVIEW OF PAST PERFORMANCE
The chart below sets out the TSR performance of the Company relative to the FTSE 250, FTSE 100 and a group of European
arlnes" stnce 2008 The FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 were chosen as easyJet has been a member of both indices during the penod

TOTAL SHAREHOQLDER RETURN

Graph removed

This graph shows the value, by 30 Septermber 2017, of F100 invested in easyJet on 30 September 2008, compared with the
value of £100 nvested in the FTSE 100 and FTSE 250 Indices or a comparator group of arrines an the same date

The other points plotted are the values at intervening financal year ends (overseas companies have been tracked in therr local
currency, 1e ignoring exchange rate movements since 30 September 2008)

(1) Briish Arrways, Lufthansa, Ryanarr, Arr France-KLM and Ibena have all been included in the comparstive European Arlines group British Airways and
Ibena have been tracked forward from 201 onwards as 1AG

SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION
The table below shows the total remuneration figure for the Chief Executive over the same ten year period The total
remuneration figure includes the annual bonus and LTIP awards which vested based on performance in those years

The annual bonus and LTIP vesting percentages show the payout for each year as a percentage of the maximum

2008 2009 2010 201 2012 2013 2004 2015 206 2017
Single total figure of
rernuneration (£000) 1.075 1686 2741 1552 3,694 7777 9209%  §2412 1,4530 757
Annual bonus (%) 23% 89% 0% 63% 96% 87% 76% 66% 13% 0%
LTIP vesting (%) 67% 0% 0% 0% 92% 100% 100% 100% 32% 0%

(1} Includes 48,509 LTIP shares {inclusive of divdend eguivalents) at the vesting date share price of £10 43, a decrease of 30% on the share price at grant
of £1499

{2) Includes 266,899 L11P shares vesting tor the period, share price s £1715 (the actual share price at vesting) an increase of 133% on the share price at
grant of £7 37

{3) Includes 445,575 LTIP shares vesting for the period, share price was £16 71 (the actual share price at vesting) an increase of 325% on the share price
at grant of £3928
(4) Includes rermuneration for the current Chief Lxecutive Carolyn McCall, of £178,000 and for the former Chief Executive of £2 563,000
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CHANGE IN CHIEF EXECUTIVE PAY FOR THE YEAR IN COMPARISON TO THAT FOR EASYJET
EMPLOYEES

The table below shows the percentage year-on-year change m salary, benetits and annual bonus earned between the year ended
30 September 2017 and the year ended 30 September 2016 for the Chief Executive, compared to the average earnings of all
other easyldet UK employees

Annual
% Salary Benefits bonusy
Chief Executive 0% (63%) n/a
Average pay based on all easyJet's UK employeest” 1% (67%) 215%

(1) UK emnployees are presented as the comparator as therr salanes and benefits regresent the most appropnate comparnson Note that UK employees
comprise over 60% of total employees

(2) Benefits receved in the year to 30 September 2017 fell against prior vear levels as no SIP Performance (Free} Share award was granted in the
current year

(3} The Chief Cxecutive will nat receve a bonus in respect of the year to 30 Seprember 2017 UK employee bonuses increased by 215% compared with last
year as a result of easylet's performance aganst its financial targets in the current year

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The table below shows the total pay for alf of easylet's employees compared to other key financial Indicators

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2017

2006 Change

{resated) %

Emplayee costs (£m) 717 604 19%
Ordinary dividend (£rm) 62 214 (24%)
Average number of employees 1,628 10,273 13%
Revenue {Em) 5047 4,669 8%
Headline profit before tax (Em) 408 494 (17%)

Additional information on the number of errployees, tatal revenue and profit has been provided for context The maonty of easylet’s employees (arcund
94%) perform fight and ground operations, with the rest performing admmnistrative and managenal roles

EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

Carolyn McCall DBE recewved feas of £80,000 in the year to 30 September 2017 for her role as Non-Executive Director of
Burberry Group plc Andrew Findlay recewved fees of £16,667 1n the year to 30 September 2017 for his role as Non-Executive
Director of Rightmove plc

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' VOTING AT THE 2017 AGM
Votes cast at the AGM in February 2017 in respect of the Company's Annual Statement by the Chairman of the Remuneration
Comimittee and Annual Report on Remuneration are given in the table below

Policy Annual Report on Rermuneration
Votes cast in favour 169,944,424 97 59% 144,374 816 92 06%
Votes cast against 4205137 241% 12444182 7 94%
Total votes cast in favour or against 174154561 100% 156818538 100%
Votes withheld 354 559 16,426,543

The remuneration policy was last voted on at the February 2015 AGM The next vote 1s scheduled for February 2018
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Drirectors’ remuneration report / continued

SHAREHOLDERS' AGM VOTING HISTORY (%)

Graph removed

ADVISORS TO THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee 1s advised by New Bridge Street (NBS), (a2 trading name of Aon plc) NBS was appointed by the
Cormmmittee In 2004 following a tender process NBS advises the Committes on developments in executive pay and on the
operation of easyJet’s ncentive plans Other than to the Commuttee, NBS also prowdes some associeted advice fo easylet in
relation to, for example, legal implementation and the fees of the Non-Executive Directors Other than the provision of these
services, NBS has no other connection with the Company However, a sister company n the Aon group also provides pension
and flexible benefits administration services to the Company Tota! fees (excluding VAT) paid to NBS in respect of services to
the Cormnmittee during the 2017 financial yvear were £136,490, charged on a hme and matenals basis NBS 1s a signatory to the
Remuneration Consultants Group Code of Conduct and any advice recewved 1s governed by that code The Committee has
reviewed the operating processes in place at NBS and 1s satished that the adwice it receives 15 independent and objective
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Directors’ report

The Directors present the Directors' report, together with
the audited accounts for the year ended 30 September
2017 The Directors' report comprises pages 85 to 88,
and the sections of the Annual report mcorporated by
reference are set out below

Membership of Board during
2017 financial year

Financial instruments and
financial nsk managernent

Greenhouse gas emissions
Corporate governance report
future developments of the

See pages 48 to 49

See pages 118 to 123
See page 45
See pages 47 to 64

business of the Group See page 17
Employee equalty and diversity See page 44
Employee involvernent See page 43

In accordance with the UK Financial Conduct Authority's
Listing Rules (LR 9 8 4C}, the nformation to be included
in the Annual report and accounts, where applicable,
under LR 8 8 4, 1s set out In this Directors' report, with the
exception of detalls of transactions with controling
shareholders which are set cut on page 125 (note 27 to
the accounts)

The Annual report and accounts have been drawn up and
presented In accordance with UK company law and the
labilities of the Directors in connection with the report shall be
subject to the imitations and restrictions provided by such law

easyJet plc s incorporated as a public imited company and
15 registered in England with the registered number 3959649
easyJet plc's registered office 1s Hangar 89, London Luten
Arrport, Luton, Bedfordshire, LU2 9PF The Company's
registrars are Equiniti Limited who are situated at Aspect
House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex, BNY9 6DA

POLITICAL DONATIONS AND EXPENDITURE
easyJet works constructively with all levels of government
across its network, regardless of poltical affllation easyJet
beleves in the nghts of ndmduals to engage In the
demaocratic process, however it 1s easyJet’s policy not

to rmake political donations

There were no political donations made or political expenditure
incurred during the 2017 financia! year (2016 £2,056) The
expenditure incurred In 2016 was i relation to a wisit by David
Cameron to easylet’s headquarters This constituted political
expenditure under the Companies Act 2006, as it involved the
prime minister carnpaigning for the EU referendum

DIVIDEND

The Directors are recommending an ordinary dvidend, with a
pay-out ratio of 50% of headline profit after tax, resulting In a
dwvidend of £162 millon or 40 9 pence per share The ordinary
dvidend 1s subject to shareholder approval at the Company's
Annual General Meeting to be held on 8 February 2018

APPOINTMENT AND RETIREMENT OF DIRECTORS
Subject to applicable law, a Director may be appainted by

an ordinary resolution of shareholders In a general meeting
following nomination by the Board or a member (or members)
entitled to vote at such meeting, or following retrement by
rotation iIf the Cirector chooses to seek re-election at a general

meeting In addition, the Directors may appoint a Director to
fill a vacancy or as an additional Director, prowded that the
indivicual retires at the next Annuat General Meeting A
[Director may be removed by the Company as provided for by
applcable law, In certain circumstances set out In the
Company's Articles of Assoclation (for example bankruptcy or
rasignation), or by an ordinary resolution of the Company in a
general meeting All Directors stand for election at the Annual
General Meeting following therr appointrent, and stand for
re-election on an annual basis

POWERS CONFERRED ON THE DIRECTORS IN
RELATION TO ISSUING OR BUYING BACK SHARES
Subject to applicable law and the Company's Articles of
Association the Directors may exercise all powers of the
Cormpany, ncluding the power to authonse the 1ssue and/or
market purchase of the Company's shares (subject to an
approprate authonty being given to the Directors by
shareholders in a general meeting and any conditions
attaching to such authonty) The shareholders delegated the
following powers in relation to the 1ssuing or market purchase
by the Company of its shares at the Company's 2017 Annual
General Meeting

I authonty to allot equity secunties with a nominal value of
up to approximatety 10% of its 1ssued share capital,

o authonty to allot equity secunties, without first offering
them to existing shareholders in proportion to ther
holdings, with a norminal value of up to approximately 5%
of its 1ssued share capital, and

1 authonty to make market purchases of its own shares, up
to a maximum of approximately 10% of the Company's
1ssued share capital

These standard authonities will expire on 9 May 2018, or at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting in 2018, whichever 1s
the earlier The Directors will seek to renew the authorties at
the Annual General Meeting In 208 As at 20 November 2017,
none of these authormes had been exercised

Dunng the 2017 financial year, no ordinary shares in the
Company were issued

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Directors and officers’ insurance cover has been established
for all Directors to provide cover against their reasonable
actions on behalf of the Company A deed was executed in
2007 indemnifying each of the Directors of the Company and/
or 1ts subsidianes as a supplement to the Directors’ and
officers insurance cover The ndemnities, which constitute a
qualifying third party indemnity prowision as defined by section
224 of the Companies Act 2006, were in force during the 2017
financial year and remain in force for all current and past
Directors of the Company

DIRECTORS' CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Directors have a statutory duty to aveid situations in which
they have, or may have, Interests that conflict with those of
aasylel, unless that conflict 1s first authornsed by the Board
The Company has in place procedures for managing conthcts
of interest The Company's Articles of Asscoiation also contain
provisions to allow the Directors to authonse potential conflicts
of interest so that a Director 1s not in breach of hus/her duty
under company law Should a Director become aware that he/
she has an nterest, directly or indrectly, in an existing or
proposed transaction with easyJet, he/she should notify the
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Directors' report / continued

Board in line with the Company's Articles of Association
Directors have a continuing duty to update any changes to
ther conflicts of interest

SHARE CAPITAL AND RIGHTS ATTACHING TO
SHARES

Detals of the authorised and 1ssued share capital durnng the
year are provided in note 18 to the accounts on page N5

On 30 September 2017, there was a single class of 337,208,133
ordinary shares of 27 2/7 pence in issue, each with ane vote
There were no shares held in treasury at that date

The nghts and obligations attaching to the Cornpany s ordinary
shares are set out in its Articles of Association Holders of
ordinary shares are enfitied, subject to any applcable law and
the Cormpany's Articles of Association, to

« have sharehoider documents made available to them,
ncluding notice of any general meeting,

« attend, speak and exercise voting rights at general
meetings, either In person or by proxy, and

= participate N any distribution of Income or capital

VOTING RIGHTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON
TRANSFER OF SHARES

None of the ordinary shares carry any special rights with
regard to control of the Company There are no restnctions
on transfers of shares other than

= certan restrctions which may from time to time be
imposed by laws or regulations such as those relating to
nsider dealing,

* pursuant to the Company's Share Dealing Code, whereby
the Directors and designated employees require approval
to deal in the Company's shares,

= where a person with an interest in the Company's shares
has been served with a disclosure notice and has faled to
provide the Company with information concerning interests
in those shares,

« where a proposed transferee of the Company's shares has
faled to furmsh to the Directors a declaration of nationality
(together with such evidence as the Oirectors may requre}
as required by the Company's Articles of Association, and

= the powers given to the Directors by the Company's
Articles of Association to imit the ownership of the
Company's shares by non-UK nationals and powers to
enforce this mitabion incluging the nght to force a sale
of any affected shares

There are no restnichions on exercising voting rights save n
situations where the Company s legally entitled to impose
such a restniction {for example under the Articles of
Association where amaounts reman unpaid in the shares after
request, or the holder 15 otherwise In default of an abligation to
the Company)} The Company 1s not aware of any
arrangements between shareholders that may result in
restrictions on the transfer of secunties or voting rahts

EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES — RIGHTS OF
CONTROL

The trustee of the easyJet UK Share Incentive Plan (the Plan)
will, on receipt of any offer, compromise, arrangement or
scheme which affects ordinary shares held in the Plan, or in
relation to any resolutions proposed at a general meeting
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(ncluding the Annual General Meeting), nvite participants to
direct the trustee on the exercise of any voling nghts
attaching to the ordinary shares held by the trustee on their
behalf and/or direct how the trustee shall act in relation to
those ordinary shares The trustee shall take no action in
respect of ordinary shares for which it has received no
direction to vote, or ordinary shares which are unallocated On
a poll. the trustee shall vote in accordance with directions
gwven by participants in the absence of directions, o o a
show of hands, the trustee shall not vote

The trustee of the easy et plc Employee Benefit Trust (the
Trust), which 1s used to acguire and hold shares in the
Company for the benefit of employees, Including in connection
with the easyJet Long Term incentive Plan, the Internationa!
Share Incentive Plan and Sharesave plans, has the power to
vote or not vote, at its absolute discretion, in respect of any
shares in the Company held unallocated in the Trust However,
n accordance with good practice, the trustee adopts a policy
of not vating n respect of such shares

Both the trustees of the easyJet UK Share Incentive Plan and
the easyJet plc Employee Benefit Trust have a dividend wanver
In place In respect of shares which are the beneficial property
of each of the trusts

AMENDMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF
ASSOCIATICON

The Cormpany's Articles of Association may only be amended
by a special resolution at a general meeting of the shareholders

CHANGE OF CONTROL PROVISIONS

The following significant agreements which were in force at
20 Novernber 2017 take effect, alter or terminate on a change
of control of the Company

The Company does not have agreements with any Director or
employee that would provide compensation for loss of office
or employment resulting from a change of control on takeover,
except that provisions of the Company’s share schemes and
plans may cause options and awards granted to employees
under such schemes and plans to vest on a takeover

Revolving Credit Facility

The Company 15 party to a Revolving Credit Facility (RCF}
which contains change of control provisicns The effect of a
change of contro! would be that unless otherwise agreed by
the Company and the agent of the lenders

= alender would not be obliged to fund a utiisation of
the faciity,

« the commitment of the lenders would be cancelled, and

» all amounts accrued would become immediately due
and payable

As at 20 November 2017 no amounts had been drawn down
under the RCF

EMTN Programme and Eurobond issue

On 7 January 2016, the Group established a Euro Mediurm Term
Note Programme (the 'EMTN Programme”} which provides the
Group with a standardised documentation platform to allow for
senior unsecured debt issuance in the Eurcbond markets The
maximum potential issuance under the EMTN Programme 1s

£3 pillon Under the EMTN Prograrmnime, in February 2018, the
Company issued Eurobonds consisting of €500 millon
guaranteed notes paying 175% interest and rmatunng in



2023, and In October 2016 Eurobonds consisting of €500
milion guaranteed notes paying 1125% interast and raturing
in October 2023 were also 1ssued (the "Notes™) Pursuant to
the final terms attaching to the Notes, the Company will be
required to make an offer to redeem or purchase its Notes at
its principal amount plus interest up to the date of redemption
or repurchase If there 1s a change of control of the Company
which results in & downgrade of the credit rating of the notes
to a non-investrment grade rating or withdrawal of the rating
by both Moody's and Standard & Poor's

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS

In accordance with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules DTR 5, the Company, as at 30 September 2017, has
been notified of the following disclosable interests in its 1ssued
ordinary shares

% of
Numnber of 1ssued share
shares as capital as at
notitied to the 30 Seprember
Company 2007
The Haj-loannou family 133977772 3373%
concert party shareholding,
consisting of easyGroup
Holdings Limited (holding
vehicle for Sir Stelios Hap-
loannou and Cleliz Haj-loannou)
and Polys Haj-loannou (through
his holding vehicle Polys
Holdings Limited
Invesco Lid 39814678 W0 02%
BlackRock, Inc * 25,206 537 6 34%

*  Note Since 30 September 2017, Blackrock, Inc has made further
notifications to the Company, the latest beng a disclosure of a
decrease in holding to 6 27% (24 933,610 ordinary shares) No other
changes t¢ the above have been disclosed to the Company in
accordance with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules D1
5, bewween 30 September 2017 and 20 Novernber 207 All iInterests
disclosed to the Company in accordance with DI1R 5 that have occurred
since 30 September 2017 can be found at easyJet s corporate website
hittp //corporate easyJet com/investars

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

A resolution to reappomnt PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as
auditors of the Company will be put to shareholders at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

RELATIONSHIP AGREEMENT WITH
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Any person who exercises or controls on therr own or together
wath any person with whomn they are acting in concert, 30%
or more of the votes able to be cast on all or substantially

all matters at generai meetings of a Company are known as
‘controling sharsholders The Financial Conduct Authority's
Listing Rules reguire companies with controfling shareholders
to enter into a written and legally binding agreement which 1s
intended to ensure that the controlling shareholder complies
with certain independence provisions The agreement must
contain undertakings that

a transactions and arrangements with the controlling
shareholder (and/or any of its associates) will be
conducted at arm’s length and on normal
commercial terms,

b naither the controling shareholder nor any of Its associates
will take any action that would have the effect of
preventing the isted company from complying with
its obhgations under the Listing Rules, and

¢ neither the controling shareholder nor any of its associates
will propose or procure the proposal of a shareholder
resolution which 1s intended or appears to be intended
to circumvent the proper application of the Listing Rules

FONVYNYIAQD

The Board confirms that, in accordance with the Listing Rules,
on 14 Novermber 2014, the Company entered into such an
agreerment with Sir Stelios Hay-loannou (easyJet's founder) and
easyGroup Holdings Limited, an entity in which Sir Stelios holds
a beneficial interest and which holds shares in the Company on
behalf of Sir Stelios (the ‘Relationship Agreement’) Under the
terms of the Relationship Agreement, Sir Stelios and
easySroup Holdings Limited have agreed to procure the
comphance of Polys and Clelia Haj-loannou with the
ndependence obligations contaned in the Relationship
Agreement Sir Stelios, easyGroup, Polys and Clelia Haj-
loannou together comprise controling sharehclders of the
Company who have a combined total holding of approximately
33% of the Company's voting rights

The Board confirms that, since the entry into the Relationship
Agreement on 14 November 2014 until 20 November 2017,
being the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of this
Annual report and accounts

i the Company has complied with the independence
provisions included in the Relationship Agreement,

1 so far as the Company s aware, the independence
prowvisions included in the Relationship Agreement have
heen complied with by Sir Stelos, easyGroup, and Clelia
and Polys Haji-loannou and ther associates, and

o so far as the Company i1s aware, the procurement
obligation included in the Relationship Agreement has
been complied with by Sir Stelos and easyGroup
Holdings Limited

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFFECTING THE GROUP
SINCE 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

On 27 Qctober easviet signed an agreement with Arr Berlin's
adrministrators, as part of which it will enter Into leases for up
to 25 A320 arcraft at Berlin Tegel arrport, offer employrment
to former Arr Berhin flying crews and take over other assets
inciuding slots for a purchase consideration of €4C million
Completion of the transaction s subject to regulatory
approvals and the transaction 1s expected to close in
December 2017 For more informaticn on the transaction
please refer to page 17

On 10 Novernber 2017 the Board announced the appointment
of Johan Lundgren as ts new Chief Executive as replacement
to Carolyn McCall Johan was previously Group Deputy Chief
Executive of TUI Group He will be joining the Company on

1 December 2017, with Carclyn stepping down as Chief
Executive on 30 November Carolyn will rermnain wath the
Company to assist with the transition until 21 Decemiber 2017
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparng the Annual report,
the Directors remuneration report and the accounts in
accordance with applcable law and regulations

Company law reguires the Cirectors to prepare accounts for
each financial vear Under that law the Directors have prepared
the Group and Company accounts in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Umion (EU) Under company law the Directors
must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that
they give a true and far wew of the state of affars of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group
and the Company for that period In preparing these accounts,
the Directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently,

+«  make Judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the FiJ have
been followed. subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explaned In the accounts, and

* prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it
1s Inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue
N business

The Drrectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and
the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonahle
accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the Group and
the Company and enable them to ensure that the accounts
and the Directors' remuneration report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Groug accounts,
Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Campany and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities

The Drectors are responsible for the mantenance and
integrity of, amongst other things, the financial and corporat
governance Information provided on the easylet wehsite
(http //corporate easylJet com) Legislation in the United
Kingdorn governing the preparation and dissemination of
accounts may differ from legislabion in other unscictions
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The Directors consider that the Annual report and accounts,
taken as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group's and the Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy

Each of the Drrectors, whose names and functions are listed
on pages 48 and 49, confirm that, to the best of ther
knowledge

« the Group and Company accounts, which have been
prepared In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,
gwve a true and fair view of the assets, hablities, financial
position and profit of the Group and Cempany, and

= the Strategic report, ncluded in the Annual report, includes
a fair review of the developrnent and performance of the
business and the position of the Group, together with a
description of the principal nsks and uncertainties that
it faces

In accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006,
each Director in office at the date the Directors report 1s
approved, confirms that

» so far as the Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditors are unaware,
and

» he/she has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware
of any relevant audit nformaticn and to establish that the
Cornpany s auditors are aware of that information

The Annual report on pages 1to 88 was approved by the
Board of Directors and authorised for 1ssue on 20 November
2017 and signed on its behalf by

CARQOLY] CCALL DBE ANDREW FINDLAY
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer



Independent auditors’ report to the members of easyJet plc

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

I our opinicn, easyJet plc's consolidated Group financiat
statements and Company financial statements (the
‘financial statements”

= give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of
the Company's affars as at 30 September 2017 and of the
Group's profit and the Group's and the Company's cash
flows for the year then ended,

= have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union and, as regards the
Company's financial statements, as applied in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

» have been prepared N accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group
financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation

What we have audited

We have audited the financial staterments, iIncluded within the
Annual report, which cormpnse the Group and Company
statements of financial pesition as at 30 September 2017, the
Group income statement and statement of comprehensive
income, the Group and Company statements of cash flows,
and the Group and Company statements of changes in eguity
for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial
stataments, which include a description of the significant
accounting policies

Cur opinion 1s consistent with our reporting to the
Audit Committee

Overview Materiality
Audit scope
Diagram
removed

Key audit matters

«  EU 261 provision (Group)

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

As part of designing our audit, we determined matenalty and
assessed the nsks of matenal misstatement in the financial
statements In particular, we looked at where the Directors
rmade subjective judgements, for example in respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assurmptions and considering future events that are inherently
uncertan As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of
ranagernent overnde of internal controls, including evaluating
whether there was evidence of hias by the Directors that
represented a risk of matenal misstatement due to fraud

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with international
Standards on Auditing (UK) {154s (UK)) and applicable law
Our responsibilities under 15As (UK) are further described in
the Auditors responsibihities for the audit of the financial
staterments section of our report We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion

FINYNHIACD

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financiat statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical
Standard, as applicable to listed public interest entities, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements

To the hest of our knowledge and belief, we declare that
non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard
were not provided to the Group or the Company

Other than those disclosed in the Corporate governance
report, we have provided no non-audit services to the Group
or the Company n the period from 1 October 2016 to

30 Septermnber 2017

Qur audit approach

The Group cperates through the Company and its nine
subsidiary undertakings, of which six are trading, as set out
on page 129 and the Group financial statements are a
consolidation of these entities The accounting for these
entities 15 largely centrahsed in the UK and our audit scope
compnses an audt of the financial information for four of the
tracing subsidanes These procedures gave us the evidence
that we needed for our opinion on the Group's financial
statements as a whole

Overall Group matenality £19 3 millon (2016 £24 7 millon), based on 5% of profit before tax
Overall Company matenalty Would amount to £25 millon (20%6 £21 million), based on 1% of total
assets, however, this has been capped at £19 2 miion i ine with the Group matenalty level above

The Group operates through the Company and ds nine subsidiaries, and the Group financial staternents
are a consolidation of these entities The accounting for these entities, along with the Group
consoldation, is largely centralised m the UK Our audit scope comprises an audit of the financial
information of four of the trading subsicianes and the Company

»  Arcraft maintenance provision (Group)
¢ Far value of dervative instruments (Group and Company)

«  Goodwil and landing nghts imparment assessment (Group)

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those rmatters that, in the auditors’
professional jJudgement, were of most significance In the audit
of the financial statements of the current penod and Include
the most significant assessed nisks of matenial misstatement
twhether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including
those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit
strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit, and directing
the efforts of the engagement team These matters, and any
comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon,
were addressed in the cantext of our audit of the financial
staternents as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters
This 1s not a complete st of alt nisks identified by our audit
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independent auditors’ report to the members of easyJet ple / continued

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Aircraft maintenance provision (Group)

The Group operates arrcraft which are owned or held under
finance or operating lease arrangerments and incurs fiabiities for
mantenance costs in respect of arcraft leased under operating
leases during the term of the lease These anse from legal and
contractual obligations relating to the required condition of the
arrcraft when it 1s returned to the lessor

Maintenance provisions of £284 milion for arcralt mantenance
costs in respect of arcraft leased under operating ieases were
recorded in the accounts at 30 September 2017

At each balance sheet date, the calculation of the mantenance
provision includes a number of vanable factors and assumptions
including likely utiisat:ion of the arcraft, the expected cost of the
heavy maintenance check at the time it 1s expected to occur, the
condition of the arcraft, and the Ifespan of Iife-mited parts

We focus on this area because of the nherent level of
managaement judgement required in calculating the amount

of provision needed as a result of the complex and subjective
elements around these vanable factors and assumptions

We evaluated the maintenance provision model and tested
calculations therein This iIncluded assessing the process by which
the vanable factors within the provision are estimated, evaluating
the reasonableness of the assumptions, testing the Input data
and re-performing calculations

In particular, we challenged the kay assumptions using the
Group's internal data, such as business plans and maintenance
contract terms and previously settled invoices We also
performed sensitivity analysis around the key drivers of the
maodel We found no matenal exceptions from these assessments
and comparnsons

Hawving ascertained the magnitude of movernents in those key
assurmptions, that etther individually or collectively would be
required for the provision to be misstated, we considered the
Ikelhood of such movements ansing and any impact on the
overall level of arrcraft mantenance provisions recorded i the
accounts Our assessment as to kelhood and magritude did
not identify any materal exceptions

Fair value of dervative instruments (Group and Company)

Given the nature of the business, the Group and the Cormpany
make use of dernvative financial Instruments Forward contracts
are used to hedge transaction currency nsk {comprsing fuel,
leasing and maintenance US dollar payrments), jet fuel price risk,
and Euro and Swiss franc revenue receipts

At 30 September 2017, the Group's denvative financial assets
amounted to £2'8 millon and denvative financial labilities were
£126 milion

We focus on these balances because of ther matenalty to the
financial position of the Group and the Company, the voluime of
transactions passing through the respective accounts and the
number of counterparties involved

wWe evaluated and assessed the processes, procedures and
controls N resgect of treasury and other management functions
which directly rmpact the relevant account balances and
transactions We tested management's year end account
reconcaihation process The results of this work allowed us to focus
on substantiating the year end positions recorded in the financial
staterments We did not identify any maternal exceptions

wWe independently obtaned third party confirmations from
counterparties of the year end positions We assessed the
appropnateness of hedge accounting for the dervative financial
nstrurments and tested, using independent data-feeds, the far
values being ascribed to those instruments at the year end These
procedures did not identify any matenal exceptions

We also assessed the appropriateness of the disclosures in the
financal statements in respect of both non-dernvative and
dervative financial nstruments Based on our work, we
considered the disclosures to be appropnate

EU 261 provisicn (Group)

The Group records a provision for EU 261 compensation payable
wt respect of fight delays and cancellabions At 30 Septermber
2017 this provision was £259 milicn

Ve focus on this area because of the inherent level of jJudgement
required estimating this provision

We tested and challenged the reasonableness of the key
assumphions underlying the EU 261 provision which included
« passenger claim history,

» current levels of passenger claims,

o fhght disruptions, and

« tme periods over which the assessment 15 made

We tested the input data of the EU 261 provision, reperformed
the underlying calculations, traced settled clams to cash
payments and performed sensitivity analysis over the key
drvers of the provision We found nc matenal exceptions from
thase procedures

Having ascertained the magnitude of movements in those key
assumptions that, ether ndividually or collectively, would be
required for the provision to be materizlly misstated, we
considerad the ikelihood of such movements arsng and any
mpact on the overall level of judgemental provisions recorded
in the financial statements Our assessment as to lkelhood and
maagnitude cid not identify any matenal exceptions
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill and landing nghts impairment assessment
(Group)

Goodwill anses from acquisitions In previous years and has an
ndefinite expected useful Ife Landing nghts (which are an
intangible asset) are considered by management to have an
indefinite useful Ife as they will remain avallable for use for the
foreseeable future Goodwill and landing nights are tested for
impairment at least annually at the cash-generating unit {{CGU")
fevel The Group has one CGU, baing its route network As at 30
September 2017, they amounted, in aggregate, to £459 million
{refer to notes 1and 9 to the accounts)

We focus on this assessment as the imparment test nvolves a
number of subjective jJudgements and estimates by management,
rmany of which are forward-looking These estimates include key
assumptions surrounding the strategic plan, fuel prices, exchange
rates, long-term economic growth rates and discount rates

JFONVYNUIAOD

We evaluated and challenged the future cash flow forecasts of
the CGU, and the process by which they were drawn up, and
tested the underlying value n use calculations In doing this, we
compared the forecast to the latest Board approved plans

We alsc challenged the key assumptions for fuel prices, exchange
rates and long-term growth rates in the forecasts by comparing
thern to economic and industry forecasts, and the discount rate
by assessing the Group’s cost of capital We found no matenal
exceptions from our work

We performed sensitivity analysis around the key assumptions
above to ascertan the extent of change In those assurnptions
that, either indwvidualy or collectvely, would be required for the
goodwill and landing nghts to be mparred

We found no matenal exceptions from this analysis

How we tailored the audit scope
We tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed e

nough work to be able to give an opinion on the financal

statements as & whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Coimpany, the accounting processes and controls,

and the industry in which they operate

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by cur apphcation of matenality We set certain guantitative thresholds for materiality
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope ot our audit and the nature, tming and extent
of our audit procedures on the indvidual financial statement line items and disclosures and in evaluating the effect of

rmisstatements, both indwvidually and in aggregate on the financial

statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows

Group financial sta

Overall matenality £18 3 millon (2016 £24

tements Company financial statements

7 mihon) £193 millon (2016 £21 million)

How we determined it 5% of profit before tax

1% of total assets, capped at group
rmatenality

Rationale for benchmark appled

be appropriate

We have applied this benchmark,

a generally accepted auditing prachice,
in the absence of ndicators that

an alternative benchmark would

We have appled this benchmark,

a generally accepted auditing practice,
In tha absence of indicators that

an alternative benchrnark would

be approprate

For each component In the scope of our Group audt, we allocated a matenality that is less than our overall Group materality
The range of materality allocated across components was between £930,000 and £19,250,000 Certain components were
audited to a local statutory audit materialty that was less than our overall Group matenalty

We agreed with the Audit Cormmittee that we would report to them misstaternents identified during our audit above
£096 rmillicn {2016 £12 milhon) as well as rmisstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted reporting for

qualtative reasons
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of easylJet plc / continued

Going concern
In accordance with ISAs (UK) we report as follows

Reporting obligation

Qutcome

We are required to report if we have anything material to add or
draw attention to in respect of the Directors’ statement in the
financial statements about whether the Directors considered it
appropriate to adopt the gong concern basis of accounting n

We have nothing matena! to add or to draw attention to
However, because not all future events or conditicns can be
predicted, this statement s not a guarantee as to the Group's
and the Company's abiity to continug as & gong concern

preparng the financial staterments and the Directors’
dentification of any materal uncertainties to the Group's and
the Cormpany’s abiiity to continue as @ going concern over a
period of at least twelve months from the date of approval
of the financial statements

We are required to report if the Directors’ statement relating to we have nothing to report
going concern in accordance with Listing Rule 98 6R(3) 15

matenally nconsistent with our knowledage obtaned In the audit

Reporting on other information

The other information cormprises all of the information in the Annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon The Directors are responsible for the other iInformation Cur opinion on the financial staternents does not cover
the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
this report, any form of assurance thereon

In connection with cur audit of the financial staterments, our responsibility 1s to read the other nformation and, 10 doing so, consider
whiether the other iInformation 1s matenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtaned in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be matenally misstated If we identify an apparent matenal inconsistency or matenal misstatement, we are
required to perfarm procedures to conclude whether there 1s a matenal misstaterment of the financial statements or a matenal
rmusstatement of the other information If, based an the wark we have performed, we conclude that there 15 & mateanal misstaternent
of this other information, we are required to report that fact We have nothing to report based on these responsibiities

With respect to the Strategic Report, Directors Report and Corporate Governance Statement, we also considered whether the
disciosures reguired by the UK Companies Act 2006 {CAO6) have bheen included

Based on the responsibiities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, CAO0B, 1ISAs (UK) and the
Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty (FCA) require us also to report certan opimions and matters as described below
(required by ISAs (UK} unless otherwise stated)

STRATEGIC REPORT AND DIRECTORS REPORT

In our opinion, based an the work undertaken n the course of the audit the information given in the Strategic report and
Directors' report for the year endead 30 Septernber 2017 1s consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accardance with applicable legal requirements (CAQ6G)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Company and therr environment obtaned in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any rmateral misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ report (CAOB)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the nformation given In the Corporate Governance
Statement (on pages 47 to 64) about internal controls and nsk management systems in relation to financial reporting processes
and about share capital structures in compliance with rules 7 25 and 7 2 € of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules
sourcebook of the FCA (DTR) is consistent with the financial staterments and has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements (CAQB)

In hght of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and ther environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we did not identify any matenal misstatements in this information (CAQOE)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information gven in the Corporate Governance
Staterment {on pages 47 to 64} with respect to the Company's Corporate Governance Code and practices and about its
administrative, managernent and supervisory bodies and ther committees complies with rules 722,723 and 7 27 of the
DTR (CAQG)

We have nothing to report ansing fram our responsibiity to report if a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared
by the Company (CAQE)

THE DIRECTORS ASSESSMENT OF THE PROSPECTS OF THE GROUP AND OF THE PRINCIPAL RISKS THAT WOULD THREATEN
THE SOLVENCY OR LIQUIDITY OF THE GROUP
We have nothing materal te add or draw attention to regarding

The Drrectors’ confirmation on page 88 of the Annual report that they have carmied out a robust assessment of the principal nisks
facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business maodel, future performance, solvency or liquidity
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The disclosures in the Annual report that describe those nisks
and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

The Directors explanation on page 31 of the Annual report as to
how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
pericd they have done so and why they consider that period to
be appropriate, and therr statement as to whether they have a
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue In
operation and meet its labilities as they fall due over the period
of ther assessment, Including any related disclosures drawing
attention to any necessary gualfications ar assumptions

We have nothing to report having performed a review of the
Directors staternent that they have carmed out a robust
assessment of the prinapal nsks facing the Group and statement
i relation to the longer-term viability of the Group Our review
was substantially less n scope than an audit and only consisted
of making inquines and considering the Directors’ process
supporting therr statements, checking that the statements are
in akgnment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the ‘Code’), and considering whether the
statements are consistent with the knowledge and
understanding of the Group and the Company and therr
environment obtained in the course of the audit (Listing Rules)

OTHER CODE PROVISIONS
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to
report when

The staterment given by the Directors, on page 88, that they
consider the Annual report taken as a whole to be far, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information necessary for
the members to assess the Group's and the Company's position
and performance, business model and strategy 1s matenally
inconsistent with our knowledage of the Group and the Company
obtained In the course af performing our audit

The section of the Annual report on pages 59 to 62 describing
the work of the Audit Committee does not approprately
address matters communicated by us to the Audit Commuitiee

The Directors' statement relating to the Company’s compliance
with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a
relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing
Ruies, for review by the auditors

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ remuneration report
to be audited has been properly prepared In accordance with
the Companies Act 2006 (CACE)

RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND THE AUDIT

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements
As explaned more fully n the Staterment of Directors’
Responsibiibes set out on page 88, the Directors are responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements 1IN accordance
with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they
gwe a true and far view The Directors are also responsible for
such internal control as they deterrmine 1s necessary Lo enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from
matenal misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error

In prepanng the financial staternents, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to
lquidate the Group or the Company or to cease operations,
ar have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the

financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
matenal misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion Reasonable
assurance Is a high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always
detect a rnatenal misstatement when it exists Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material of,
ndividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to Influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the bass of these financial staterments

JONYNHIAOD

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements 1s located on the FRC's website at
www frc org uk/auditorsresponsibiities This description forms
part of our auditors’ report

Use of this report

This report, Including the opimions, has been prepared for and
only for the Company's members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for
no other purpose We do not, in giving these opinicns, accept
or assurne responsibiity for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report I1s shown or Into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent
n writing

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are required to report to
you If, In our opinion

«  we have not receved all the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or

« adeqguate accounting records have not been kept by the
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not visited by us, or

» certan disclosures of Dwectors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made, or

»  the Company's financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not 1n
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report ansing from this responsibility

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Aucit Committee,

we were appeinted by the members on 22 February 2006

to audit the financial staterments for the year ended

30 September 2006 and subsegquent financial penods The
period of total uninterrupted engagement is 12 years, covering
the years ended 30 September 2006 to 30 September 2017

L
Andrew Kemp

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
LLondon

20 Novernber 2017
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Consolidated income statement

Year ended 30 September

2016
2017 2016 [rostated) 206
Non- (restated) Mon-  (restated)
2017 headline 2017 Headling headine Tokal
Headline {note 5) Total (hote 1) {note 5) (note )
Notes £ million £ million £ million £ millon £ millon £ millon
Seat revenue 4,958 ~ 4,958 4587 - 4,587
Non-seat revenue 89 -~ 89 82 - 82
Total revenue 76 5,047 ~ 5,047 4,669 - 4,669
Fuel (1,062) - (1.062) ang) - (,14)
Arports and ground handing (1,465) -~ (1.465) (1.267) - (1.267)
Crew (645} - {645) (542) - (542)
Nawvigation (381 - (381) (336) — (336)
Maintenance (268) (&) (274) (245) 8 (237}
Seling and marketng 122) - (122) (107) — (107)
Other costs 37 18y {389) {294) () (296)
EBITDAR 733 (24) 709 764 ) 770
Adrcraft dry leasing mo) - (][9)] fan - [§=D)]
Depreciation 0 (181) - (181} (157) - (1573
Arnortisation of intanaible assets 9 (14) -~ (14) (12) - (12)
Operating profit 428 (24) 404 504 & 510
Interest recervable and ather financing income 2] 2 o] 7 3 o}
Interest payable and other financing charges (28) 1) (29) (17) 4 (13}
Net finance charges 2 (20) 1 (12 10) 7 [&))
Profit before tax 3 408 (23) 385 494 13 507
Tax (charge)/credit 5] (83) 3 80 (67) (3 (70)
Profit/{loss) for the vear 325 (20) 305 427 0 437
Earnings per share, pence
Basic 7 774 1Mo s
Diluted 7 768 o1
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Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

Year ended

Year ended 30 Septembor

30 September 2016

2007 {restateq)

Notes £ millien £ milhon

Profit for the year 305 437
Other comprehensive Income/(expense)

Cash fiow hedges

Farr value gains in the year 28 10

Losses transferred to Income staternent 97 347

Gains transferred to property, plant and equiprment (07 (28)

Related tax charge 6 (4) (66}

4 263

Total comprehensive income for the year 319 700

For capital expenditure cash flow hedges, the accumulated gains and losses recognised in other comprehensive income will be
transferred to the initial carrying amount of the asset, within property, plant and equipment All other items in ather comprehensive

income will be reclassified to the income statement

Losses/(gains) on cash flow hedges reclassified from other comprehensive Income in Income statement captions are as follows

2017 2006

£ million £ million

Revenue 83 (7}
Fuel 38 375
Maintenance m (8)
Arrcraft dry leasing (15) an
Other costs 2 (23
97 347
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Consolidated statement of financial position

30 Septermber

2016
30 September {restated)
2017 {note 1)
Notes £ million £ milion
Non-current assets
Goadwilt 9 365 365
Other intangible assets 9 179 152
Property, plant and eguipment 10 3,525 3252
Dervative financial instrurments 22 87 154
Restricted cash 13 7 7
Other non-current assets n 74 n2
4,237 4042
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 12 275 205
Dernvative financial instruments 22 131 268
Money market deposits 13 617 255
Cash and cash equivalents 13 h 714
1734 1,442
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 14 (714} (565)
Unearned revenue 727) (568)
Borrowings 15 [¢3))] (92)
Denvative financial instruments 22 {82) (275)
Currenrit tax payable (35} {16)
Provisions for labilities and charges 17 (104) (53)
(1,670) (1.569)
Net current assets/{liabilities) 64 (127)
Non-current iabilities
Borrowings 15 {963) (664)
Dervative finanaial Instruments 22 {44) (49}
Non-current deferred income 6 (25) (36)
Prowisiaons for habiities and charges 7 (218) (235)
Deferred tax & (249) (237)
(1,499) (1,221
Net assets 2,802 2694
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 8 108 08
Share premium 659 659
Hedging reserve 8 24
Translation reserve 1 1
Retained earnings 1,996 1902
2,802 2664

The accounts on pages 94 to 125 were approved by the Board of Direclors and authonsed for issue on 20 Naovemnber 2017 and

signed o behalf of the Board

OLYN MCCALL DBE
Director
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Retained
Share Share Hedging Translation earnings >
capital premium reserve reserve (restated) Total R
£ milllon £ Mifhon E million £ million £ million £ miillion g
ALTOclober 2016 10y 659 24 1 1820 272 Z
Effect of change in accounting policy - - - - (18) 8) @
Restated balance at 1 October 2016 o8 659 24 1 1,902 2,694
Total cormprehensive ncome - - 14 - 305 3.
Dividends paid {note B8) - - - - (214) {(214)
Share ncentive schemes
Value of employee services - - - - 13 13
Purchase of own shares - - - - {10) (10)
At 30 Septemher 2017 08 €59 B 1 193G 2,002
Retaned
Share Share Hedging Translation earmngs
capital oremurm resetve reserve {restated) Total
£ rmullion £ milion £ rrilhon £ rmillion E mihon £ milion
At 10ctober 2015 108 659 (239} 1 1720 2,249
Effect of change in accounting policy - - - - (28) (28)
Restated balance at 1 October 2075 108 659 (239) 1 1,692 2221
Total comprehensive Income - 263 - 437 700
Dividends paid (note 8) — - — - (219) (219)
Share incentive schemes
Value of employee services - - - - 19 19
Related tax (note 6) — — — — 5) (5)
Purchase of own shares - - - - (22) (22)
At 30 September 2016 108 659 24 1 1902 2,694

The hedaing reserve comprises the effective partion of the cumulative net change In fair value of cash flow hedging nstruments
relating to highly probable transactions that are forecast to occur after the year end
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2017 206
Notes £ miltion £ million

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations 20 945 724

Ordinary dividends paid 8 (214) (219)
Interest and other financing charges paid (30) (26)
Interest and other financing INcome receved 9 7
Net tax paid &N (99)
Net cash generated from operating activities 663 387

Cash flows from mvesting activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (586) (549)
Purchase of intangible assets 9 (44) (37)
Net {Increase)/decrease in maney market deposits 21 (363) 45

Net proceeds from sale and operating leaseback of awrcraft ns -

Net cash used by investing activities (878) {541
Cash flows from financing activities

Purchase of own shares for employee share schemes {10) (22)
Proceeds from Eurobond 1ssue 21 451 379

Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings 21 (220) (142}
Repayrment of capital element of finance leases 21 €3] (98)
Net decrease in restrnicted cash - &

Net cash generated from financing activities 214 123

Effect of exchange rate changes (2) 95

Net {(decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents 3) 64

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 74 650

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 13 m 714
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Notes to the accounts

1. Accounting policies, Jdgements and estimates

Statement of compliance

easyJet plc (the ‘Company’) and its subsidianes (‘easyJet’ or the Group’ as applicable) are a low-cost arline carner operating
principally in Europe The Company 1S a public mited company whaose shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange under the
ticker symbol EZJ and 15 incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom The address of its registered office 15 Hangar 83,
London Luten Airport, Luton, Bedfordshire, LUZ 9PF

SLNNODDV

The accounts are prepared in accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European
Uruon, taking into account IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRSIC) interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 2006
applcable to companies reporting under IFRS

Basis of preparation
The accounts are prepared based on the historical cost convention except for certain financial assets and habilities ncluding
denvative financial mstruments that are measured at farr value

The accounting policies set out below have been appled consistently to all years presented in these accounts

easyJet's business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development and performance, are described in the
Strategic report on pages 2 to 46 Principal nsks and uncertainties are descrnbed on pages 34 to 40 Note 23 to the accounts sets
out the Group's objectives, policies and procedures for manaaing its capital and aves detalls of the nsks related to financial
instruments held by the Group

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis Detals on gong concern are provided on page 31

The use of cnbical accounting estimates and management jJudgement 1s required 1IN apphying the accounting policies Areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or where assurnptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
highlighted on pages 105 to 106

Changes in accounting policles

Dunng the year, a change was made to the accounting policy in respect of the presentation of headine and non-headine iterms (see
Critical accounting Judgements and estimates section) This provides a relevant and reliable measure for assessing the underlying
trading performance of the business by identfying material non-recurnng iterns or iterms which are not considered to be reflective of
the trading performance of the busness This presentational change has been made for the first tirne n the current year, and the
comparative financial staternents have been restated

Where an arrcraft 1s sold and leased back, other than when first delvered to easyJet, a lability to undertake future mantenance
actmties, resulting from past flying activity, anses at the point the lease agreement is signed Histoncally this hability has been treated
as part of the surplus or shortfall ansing on the sale and leaseback and recognised in either deferred income or non-current or
current assets as appropriate and amortised in the income statement on a straight-ine basis over the expected lease term

During the year, the accounting policy was changed to recognise the nitial mantenance provision on sale and leasebacks
immediately in the Income statement The new accounting policy will result In an accounting treatment which better reflects the
ecanormics of the lease arrangements

This change regurres a restaternent of previcus financial statements

The following table sets out the adjustments made to certain Ine items of the previously reported comparative amounts as a result
of the change to the nitial maintenance provision catch-up on sale and leascbacks accounting policy
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Notes to the accounts / continued

1. Accounting policies, judgements and esbimates continued

Year ended
30 September 2016
As reported As restated
£ millien £ milion
Impacted lines
Staternent of financial position
Other non-current assets 121 12
Trade and other recewvables 217 205
Trade and other payables (564) (565)
Current tax payable 21 (16}
MNon-current deferred Income (35} (36}
Net assets 2712 2694
Retained earnings 1920 1902
income statement
Aurcraft dry leasing (1G3) N
QOperating profit 498 510
Profit before tax 495 507
Tax charge (68) (7G)
Profit for the period 427 437
Earnings per share {pence)
Basic 084 o9
Diluted 1076 1o
Statement of changes in equity
Retained earnings at 1 October 2015 1720 1692
Resuit for the penod 477 437
Retaned earnings at 30 September 2016 1220 1902

Significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies appled are summansed below They have been apphed consistently to both years presented The
expianations of these policies focus on areas where judgement 1s apphed or which are particularly sanificant in the financial

statements

Basis of consolidation

The consalidated accounts incorporate those of easylet pic and its subsidianes for the years ended 30 September 2016 and 201/

A full st of subsidiaries can be found In the Notes to the Company accounts cn page 129

A subsidiary 1s an entity controlled by easyJet ple Control s achieved when easyJet 1s exposed, or has nghts, to vanable returns
from its invalvement with the investee and has the abiity to affect those returns through its power, directly or indirectly, over

the investee

Intragroup balances, transactions and any unrealised gains and losses arising from intragroup transactions are eiminated in prepanng

the cansolidated accounts

Foreign currencies

The prmary economic environment N which a subsidiary operates determines its functional currency The consclidated accounts
of easyJet are presented In Sterling, rounded to the nearest £million, which is the Company's functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency Certain subsidiaries have operabions that are prirnanly influenced by a currency other than Sterling Exchange
differences ansing cn the translation of these foreign operations are taken to shareholders” equity until all or part of the Interest I1s
sold, when the relevant portion of the accumulated exchange gains or losses s recognised in the iIncormne statement Profits and
losses of foreign operations are translated into Sterling at average rates of exchange during the vear, since this approxirates the

rates on the dates of the transactions

Transactions ansing In foregn currencies are recorded using the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and labilities dencminated In foreign currencies are translated into Sterling using the rate of exchange ruling at the end of a
reporting penod and (except where the asset or llability 1s designated as a cash fiow hedge) the gains or losses on translation are
included in the income statement Non-monetary assets and habilities denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into Sterling

at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the transactions were effected

Revenue recognition

Revenue compnses seat revenue, being the value of arlne services (net of ar passenger duty and similar charges, VAT and

discounts), and non-seat revenue
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Seat revenue anses from the sale of flight seats, including the provision of checked baggage, allocated seating, administration, credit
card and change fees Seat revenue s recognised when the service s provided This 1s generally when the flight takes place but, in
the following cases, this 15 at the tirme of booking

SINNQ22V

« administration and credit card fees as they are contractually non-refundable, and
= change fees as the service provided 1s that of allowing customers to change bookings

Amounts paid by no-show' customers are recognised as seat revenue when the booked service 15 provided as such customers are
not generally entitied to change flights or seek refunds once a fight has departed

Unearned revenue represents flight seats, including the provision of checked baggage and allocated seating, sold but not yet flown
and 15 held in the staterment of financial position until 1t is realised In the income statement when the service 1s provided

Non-seat revenue anses from commissions earmned from services sold on behalf of partners and 1s recognised when the service is
provided This 1s generally when the related flight takes place In the case of commission earned from travel Insurance, revenue 1s
recognised at the time of booking as easyJet acts solely as appointed representative of the nsurance company

Business combinations

Business combinations in prior years were accounted for by applying the purchase method The cost of the acquisition 1s measured
at the aggregate of the far values, at the date of exchange, of assets given and liabilities incurred or assumed plus any costs drrectly
attributable to the business combination The acquree’s identiflable assets and llabilities are recoanised at therr far values at the
acquisition date

Goodwill arising an acquisition is recognised as an asset and inibially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over easyJet's interest N the net fair value of the identifiable assets acqurred and the llabities assumed

Goodwill and other intangible assets
Goodwill s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses It has an ndefinite expected useful Iife and 15 tested for
imparrment at least annually or where there 1s any indication of imparment

Landing rights are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses They are considered to have an indefinite useful Iife as
they will remain avalable for use for the foreseeable future provided minimum utilisation requirernents are observed, and are tested
for imparment at least annually or where there 1s any indication of impairment

Other intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation, which is calculated to write of f therr cost, less estmated
residual value, on a straight-ine basis over therr expected useful ives Expected useful lves and residual values are reviewed annually

Expected useful ife

Computer software 3-7 years
Contractual nghts Over the length of the related contracts

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation 1s calculated to wnte off the cost,
less estimated residual value, of assets, on a straight-ine basis over ther expected useful ives Expected useful lives and residual
values are reviewed annually

Expected useful ife

Aurcraft 23 years

Aurcraft spares 14 years

Arrcraft — prepaid mantenance 7-10 years

Leasehald improvements 5-10 years or the length of lease f shorter

Fixtures, fittings and eguipment 3 years or length of lease of property where equipment 15 used If shorter
Computer hardware 3-5 years

Arrcraft held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and ther expected usefut ves, as
shown above

Residual values, where apphcable, are reviewed annually aganst prevaling market rates at the end of the reporting penod for
equivalently aged assets and depreciation rates are adiusted accordingly on 2 prospective basis The carrying value 1s reviewed for
irnpairment if events or changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable For arcraft, easyJet s
dependent on Arbus as its sole suppler This givas rise to a valuation nsk which crystalises when arcraft ext the fleet, where
easyJet 15 relant on the future demand for second-hand arrcraft

An elerment of the cost of a new arcraft 1s attnbuted on acguisition to prepaid maintenance and 1s depreciated cver a penocd
ranging from seven to ten years from the date of manufacture Subseguent costs incurred which lend enhancernant to future
penods, such as long-term scheduled mantenance and major averhaul of arcraft and engines, are captalsed and depreciated
over the length of penod benefitting from these enhancernents Al other maintenance costs are charged to the incorne statement
as ncurred
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Notes to the accounts / continued

1. Accounting policies, Judgements and estimates continued

Pre-delivery and option payments rmade in respect of arcratt are recorded 1 property, plant and equipment at cost These amounts
are not depreciated Interest attributed to pre-delivery and option payments made in respect of arcraft and other gualifying assets
under construction are capitalised and added to the cost of the asset concerned

Gains and osses on disposals (other than aircraft sale and leaseback transactions) are determined by comparnng the net proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised in the income statement

Other non-current assets

Payments for arcraft and enaine mantenance, as sbipulated n the respective operating lease agreements, have historically been
made to some lessors as securty for the performance of future heavy mantenance works The payments are recorded within
current and non-current assets (as applcable) as recewvables from the lessors untl the respective maintenance event cccurs and the
reimbursement with the lessor is finalised Any payment that s not expected to be rembursed by the lessor s recognised
mmediately within operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive ncome

Impairment of non-current assets

An imparment loss 1s recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the asset’s or cash generating unit's far
value less cost to sell and its value in use Imparrment losses recognised on goodwill are not reversed Imparrment losses recognised
on assets other than goodwil are only reversed where changes in the estimates used result in an Increase N recoverable amount

Leases

easy.Jet enters into sale and leaseback transactions whereby it sells ether new or mid-ife arrcraft to a third party and immedately
leases them back Where sale proceeds receved are judged to reflect the awrcraft's far value, any gain or loss arnsing on disposal Is
recognised immediately in the Income statement Where sale proceeds received da not represent the arcraft's far value, any
shortfall or surplus ansing 15 deferred within non-current assets or labiities respectively, and amortised in the Income statement on
a straight-ne basis over the expected lease term

In some operating sale and leaseback arrangerments, recept of part of the proceeds 15 deferred until the end of the lease, the
amount of which s recorded as deferred consideration within non-current or current assets as approonate

Non-contingent operating lease rentals are charged to the Income statement on a straght-line basis over the Iife of the lease A
number of operating leases require easyJet to make contingent rental payments based on vanable interest rates, these are
expensed as incurred

Finance leases, which transter to easyJet substantially all the nsks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
recognised at the inception of the lease at the far value of the leased asset, or, f lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments Any directly attnibutable costs of enterng into financing sale and leasebacks are ncluded in the value of the asset
recognised Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and the reduction of the lease lability so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaning balance of the llablity Finance charges are included in interest payable and other
financing charges

Financial instruments
Financial nstruments are recognised when easyJet becomes a party to the contractual prowisions of the relevant instrument and
derecognised when it ceases to be a party to such provisions

Where market values are not avalable, the far value of financial nstruments 1s calculated by discounting cash flows at prevailing
nterest rates and by applying year end exchange rates

Non-derwvative financial assets
Non-dervative financial assets are recorded at amortised cost and include trade recevables, cash and money market deposits

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held in bank accounts with no access restrictions and bank deposits and tn-party
repos repayable on demand or maturing wathin three months of iInception Interest income on cash and money market deposits 1s
recogrised using the effective interest method Restricted cash comprises cash deposits which have restrictions governing their
use and 15 classified as a current or non-current asset based on the estimated remaining length of the restriction

imparment losses are recognised on financial assets carmed at amortised cost where there is objective evidence that an imparrment
loss has been ncurred The armeunt of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of future cash flows. discounted at the onginal effectve interest rate

If, subsequently, the amount of the imparment loss decreases, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event that
occurred after the imparment was recognised, the appropriate portion of the loss 1s reversed Both imparment losses and reversals
are recognised In the Income statement as components of net finance charges

Non-dervative financial habilities

Non-dervative financial lablities are initially recorded at far value less directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently at
amortised cost, and include trade and other pavables, borrowings and provisions Interest expense on borrowings 1s recognised
using the effective interest method

Borrowings are classified as current habilibies unless there 1s an unconditional nght to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting penod date
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Derwvative financial instruments and hedging activities

easyJet uses foreign currency forward exchange contracts to hedge foreign currency nsks on transactions denominated in US
dollars, Euros, Swiss francs and South African rand These transactions pnimanly affect revenue, fuel and arrcraft dry leasing costs,
and the carrying value of owned arcraft easyJet also uses cross-currency interest rate swaps to hedge currency and interest rate
nsk on certain borrowings, and jet fuel forward contracts to hedge fuel price risks

Dervative financial instruments are measured at farr value Hedge accounting is apphed to those denvative financial instrurnents that
are designated as cash flow hedges or far value hedges

Farr value hedges
Changes in the far values of denvatives that are designated and qualfy as far value hedges are recorded in the income statement,
together wath any changes in the farr values of the hedged assets or labilities that are attributable to the hedged risk

Cash flow hedoes

Gains and losses ansing from changes in the far value of forward contracts are recognised in other comprehensive ncome and
deferred In the hedging reserve to the extent that the hedges are determined to be effective All other changes in fair value are
recognised immediately In the income statement

wWhen the hedged forecast transaction relates to an item of property, plant and eguipment, the relevant accumulated gains and
losses are transferred from the hedaing reserve and ncluded i the intal carrying amount of that purchased asset Otherwise they
are recognised in the income statement in the same penod in which the hedged transaction affects the income statement

In the event that a hedged forecast transaction 15 no longer considered highly probable, any related gains and losses are
immedately transferred from the hedaing reserve and recognised in the income statement

Hedge accounting s discontinued when a hedging instrument 1s derecognised (e g through expiry or disposal), or no lenger qualfies
for hedge accounbng Where the hedged iterm rermains a highly probable forecast transaction, the related gains and losses remam
deferred in the hedging reserve until the transaction takes place

Financial guarantees

I a clarm on a financial guarantee given 1o a third party becomes probable, the obligation i1s recogrised at farr value For subsequent
rmeasurement, the carrying amount 15 the higher of intial measurement and best estimate of the expenditure reguired to settle the
chhgation at the reporting date

Tax

Tax expense In the Income staternent consists of current and deferred tax Tax s recognised in the ncome statement except when
it relates to items credited or charged directly to other comprehensive mcome or shareholders” eguity, In which case it 1s recogrised
in other comprehensive iIncome or sharehoiders equity The charge for current tax 1s based on the resuits for the year as adusted
for income that s exempt and expenses that are not deductible using tax rates that are apphcable to the taxable income

Deferred tax I1s provided in full on temporary differences relating to the carrying amount of assets and habilities, where 1t s
probable that the recovery or settlerment will result in an obligation to pay more, or a nght to pay less, tax in the future, with the
following exceptions

+ where the temporary dfference anses from goodwill or from the nitial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and habilihes in a transaction that affects neither taxable Income nor accounting prefit, and

« deferred tax ansing on investments in subsidiaries 1s not recognised where easyJet 1s able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply In the periods in which recovery of assets and settlement of
liabilities are expected to take place, based on tax rates or laws enacted or substantively enacted at the date of the statement of
financial position

Deferred tax assets represent amounts recoverable in future penods in respect ot deductible temporary differences, losses and tax
credits carmed forwards Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it s probable that there will be suitable taxable profits
from which they can be deducted

Deferred tax habilities represent the amount of ncome taxes payable in future penods in respect of taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax assets and habiliies are offset when there is a legslly enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and 1t 15 the Intention to settle these on a net basis

Arrcraft maintenance provisicns
The accounting for the cost of providing maor arrframe and certain engine mdntenance checks for owned and finance-leased
arrcraft 15 descrnbed in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment

easyJet has contractual obligations to mantam arcraft held under operating leases Provisions are created over the term of the
lease based on the estimated future costs of major arfrarme checks, engine shop visits and end of lease habilities These costs are
discounted to present value
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Notes to the accounts / continued

1. Accounting policies, judgements and estimates continued

Where an arrcraft 1s sold and leased back, othear than whean first delvered to easyJet, a maintenance catch-up liability resulting from
past flying activity anses at the pont the lease agreement s signed and a corresponding ramntenance provision catch-up 1s
recognised mmeadiately In the iIncome statement

A number of leases also reguire easylet to pay recoverable supplemental rent to the lessor The purpose of these payments is to

provide the lessor with collateral shoutd an arcraft be returned in a condition that does not meet the requirements of the lease |
This recoverable supplemental rent 1s included in trade and other receivables within current assets and other non-current assets, as '
applcable, and s refunded when gualfying heavy maintenance 15 performed, or 15 offset against the costs incurred at the end of

the lease

Other provisions

Provisions are recognised when a present legal or constructive obhgation anses as a result of a past event, it 15 probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation and a relable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation Amounts
provided for represent the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obiigaticn at the balance sheet date,
taking into account all reiated nsks and uncertaintes

Provision 1s made for passenger compensation clarms when the Group has an obligation to recompense customers under Flight
Compensation Regulation 26172004 Provisions are measured based on known elgible events, passengers impacted and histoncal
claim rates

Employee benefits

easyJet contnbutes to defined contribution pension schermes for the benefit of employees easyJet has no further payment
abligations once the contributions have been paid The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of easyJet n
independently admimstered funds easyJet's contnbutions are charged to the income staterment in the year it which they
are incurred

The expected cost of compensated holidays 1s recognised at the time that the related employees’ services are prowvided

Share capital and dividend distribution
Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new ordinary shares or options are \
shown in eguity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company or employee benefit trust purchases the Company’'s eguity shares, the consideration paid and any
directly attributable incremental costs are deducted from retained earnings until the shares are cancelled or reissued Proceeds
from re-issue are shown as a credit to retained earnings

easy et settles share awards under the Long Term Incentive, the Save As You Earmn scheme, Restrncted Share Plan and Share
Incentive Plans by purchasing its own shares on the market through employee benefit trusts The cost of such purchases 15
deducted from retaned earnings in the penod that the transaction occurs

Dhvidend distributions to the Company's sharehaolders are recogrised as a lability in the penod in which the dvidends are approved
by the Company’s shareholders

Share-based payments

easyJet has a number of equity-settled share incentive schemes The farr value of share opticns granted under the Save As You
Earn scheme 1s measured at the date of grant using the Binomial Lattice option pnicing model The far value of grants under the
Long Term Incentive Plar 1s measured at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model for awards based on ROCE performance
targets, and the Stochastic model {also known as the Monte Carlo model) for awards based on TSR performance targets The farr
value of all other awards is the share price at the date of grant

The fair vaiue of the estimated number of options and awards that are expected to vest s expensed to the Income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period that employees’ services are rendered, with a corresponding Incréase in sharehaolders’ equity
Where non-market performance cntena (such as ROCE) attached to the share options and awards are not met, any cumulative
expense previously recognised 1s reversed For awards with market-related performance ¢nteria (such as TSR), an expense is
recognised Irrespective of whether the market condibicn is satisfied

The social secunty cbligations payable in connection with grant of the share options are an integral part of the grant itself and the
charge 1s treated as a cash-settled transaction

Segmental disclosures

easylet has one cperating segment, beng its route network, based on management nformation provided to the Executive
Management Team, which 1s easy Jet's chief operating decision maker Resource allocation decisions are made for the benefit of the
route network as a whole, rather than for individual routes within the network Performance of the network 1s assessed based on the
consolidated profit or Joss before tax for the year

Revenue 15 allocated to geographic segments on the following bases

= revenue earned from passengers s allocated accaording to the location of the first departure arport on each booking, and
= commission revenue earned from partners is allocated according to the domicile of each partner
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Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of accounts in conformity with generally accepted accounting pinciples reguires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilibies at the date of the accounts and the reported amounts of
income and expenses dunng the reporting penod Although these amounts are based on management’s best estimates, events or
actions may mean that actual results ultimately differ from those estimates, and these differences may be matenal The estimates
and the underlying assumplions are reviewed regularly

SLNNODJDY

The following are the crtical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with separately belows}, that the
Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
armounts recognised and presented in the financial staternents

Classification of operating and financing leases (Notes 10 and 24)

Management exercises udgernent in determining the classification of leases as either finance or operating leases in nature at
inception of the lease Managerment considers the lkelhood of exercising break clauses or extension options in determining the lease
term Where the lease term canstitutes substantially all of the econormic Ife of the assel, or where the present value of minimum
lease payments amount to substantially all of the far value of the arcraft, the lease s classified as a finance lease All other leases
are classified as operating leases

Classfication of income or expenses between headline and non-headline tems (Note 5)

The Groug seeks to present a measure of underlying performance which 1s not impacted by matenal non-recurring iterns or iterns
which are not considerad to be reflective of the trading performance of the business This measure of profit 15 described as ‘headline’
and 1s used by the Directors tc measure and monitor performance The excluded tems are referred to as ‘non-headlne’ items

Nen-headlne iterns may include jmparments, amounts relating to acquisiions and disposals, expenditure on major restructuring
programmes, ihgation and nsurance settlements, balance sheet exchange gains or losses, the Income or expense resulting from the
initial recognition of sale and lease back transactions, far value adiustments on financial instrumeants and other particularly significant
or unusual non-recurning terms Items relating to the normal trading performance of the business will always be included within the
headline performance

Judgement i1s required In determining the classification of items between headhne and non-headiine

Consoldation of easyJet Switzerland

Judgement has been apphed in consaldating easyJet Swatzerland S A as a subsidiary on the basis that the Company exercises a
dorminant influence over the undertaking A non-controling interest has not been reflected In the consolidated accounts on the basis
that holders of the remaining 51% of the shares have no entitlernent to any dividends from that holding and the Cormpany has an
option to acgure those shares for a pre-deterrmined minimal consideration

The following three cntical accounting estimates involve a higher degree of jJudgement or complexity, or are areas where
assurnptions are significant to the financial statements

Arrcraft maintenance provisions — £284 million (Note 17)

easyJet incurs labilities for maintenance costs in respect of arcraft leased under operating leases durng the term of the lease
These arise from legal and constructive contractual obligations relating to the condition of the arcraft when it 1s returned to the
lessor To discharge these obligations, easyJet will also normally need to carry out one heavy mantenance check on each of the
engines and the arframe dunng the lease term

A charge 1s made in the Income statement, based on hours or cycles tlown, to provide for the cost of these obligations The most
critical estimates required are considered to be the utiisation of the arcraft, the expected costs of the heavy mantenance checks at
the time which they are expected to occur, the condition of the arcraft, the ifespan of Iife-lmited parts and the rate used to
discount the provision

The bases of all estimates are reviewed annually, and also when information becomes avalable that 1s capable of causing a matenal
change to an estimate, such as renegotiation of end of lease return conditions, iIncreased or decreased utilsaticn, or changes in the
cost of heavy mantenance services

Other provisions ~ £38 million (Note 17)

easyJet incurs liahilities for amounts payable to customers who make claims in respect of fight delays and cancellations, and

refunds of ar passenger duty or smilar charges Estimates include passenger clairm rates, the value of clams made and the period of
time over which clairns will be made The bases of all estimates are reviewed at least annually and also when information becomes
avallable that s capable of causing a matenal change to the estimate

Goodwill and landing nghts — £459 mullior (Note 9)

Goodwilt and landing nghts are tested for impairment at least annually easyJel has one cash-generating unit, being its route
network In making this assessment, easyJet has considered the manner in which the business s managed including the centralised
nature of its operations and the ability 1o open or close routes and redeptay arcraft and crew across the whole route network
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Notes to the accounts / continued

1. Accounting policies, judgements and estimates continued

The value n use of the cash-generating unit 1s determined by discounting future cash flows to therr present value When applying
this method, easyJlet relles on a number of key estimates nciuding its ability to meet its strateqic plans, future fuel prices and
exchange rates, long-term economic growth rates for the principal countnies in which it operates, and its pre-tax weighted average
cost of capital Both fuel price and exchange rates are volatile in nature, and the assumptions used are sensitive to significant
changes in these rates

New and revised standards and interpretations not applied '
The following new or revised standards and interpretations ssued by the International Accounting Standards Beard (JASB) have not

been appled In preparing these accounts as ther effective dates fall in perods beainning on or after 1 October 2017 (and in some

cases have not been endorsed by the EU)

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers' — effective for the year ending 30 September 2019
easyJet will adopt IFRS 15 on 1 October 2018 and anticipates apphing the cumulabive catch-up (modified?) transition method

The standard prowdes a single model for measurning and recognisng revenue arsing from contracts with customers It supersedes all
existing revenue requirements in IFRS Under IFRS 15, revenue 15 recagnised when customers obtain control of goods or services and
so are able to drect the use, and obtain the benefits, of those goods or services

easyJet has reviewed all revenue streams as part of its IFRS 15 impact assessment Whilst the majonty of revenues are already
recoanised In ine with the requirements of the new standard, revenue recognition from certain ancillary strearms will be delayed from
the date of booking to the date of flight

This change 1s expected to result In a higher proportion of annual revenues being recognised n the second half of the financial year
More specifically, under IAS 18, administration fees ansing on bookings in the first half of the financial year for flights in the second
half would be recogrised in the first half of the year, under IFRS 15 these revenues will be recognised in the second half

The anticipated full year impact on adoption of the standard 1s expected to be immaterial

IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' — effective for the year ending 30 September 2019
easylJet will adopt IFRS @ on 1 October 2018 and anticipates applying the standard prospectively wath no retrospective adjustments
required

The standard removes the multipie classification and measurement models for financial assets required by IAS 39 and instead
ntroduces a model that has three classification categones amortised cost, farr value through the Incormne Statement and farr value
through Other Comprehensive Income Classification of a debt asset instrument s dnven by its cash flow charactenstics and the
business model in which the asset 1s held Accounting for financial labilities and for derecognising financial Instruments under IFRS 9
15 matenally conmistent with that required by 1AS 39 IFRS 9 adds new reguirements to address the imparrment of financial assets and
hedge accounting

easyJet does not anticipate any material change In the ciassification or measurement of its financial nstrurments or in 1ts hedging
actvities on adoption of the standard

IFRS 16 'Leases’ — effective for the year ending 30 September 2020 :
easyJet is currently planning to early adopt IFRS 16 on 1 QOctober 2018, bringing the tming of adoption in ine wath that of IFRS 9 and
IFRS 15 easyJet anticipates applying the cumulative catch-up ("modfied’) transiion method

The standard prowides a single lessee accounting model, specifying how leases are recognised, measured, presented and disclosed
Under IFRS 16, easyJet will capitalise all arcraft and properties currently held under operating leases Operating leasg expenses will be
replaced by a depreciation expense on Right of Use assets recogrised and an interest expense as the interest rate implicit n
easyJet’s lease labilities unwinds

At 30 September 2017 (excluding the impact of the post balance sheet Ar Berlin transaction {see note 28) which has not yet been
evaluated) easyJet anticipates that on adoption of IFRS 16 on 1 October 2018, 1t will recognise approximately £0 3 bilion of lease
llabiities and approximately £0 3 billon of Right of Use Assets Annual operating lease expenses of £01billien, which would have
been recognised under the existing leases standard, will be replaced by anticipated similar levels of degreciation and interest
expense such that no matenal impact on profit before tax 1s expected in the year of transition

Retamned earnings are expected to decrease shghtly on adophon of IFRS 16, reflecting the difference in carrying value between Right
of Use assets and Lease Liabilities intially recognised
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Key assumptions used to calculate the impacts cuthned above

« easylet anticipates the continuation of its arcraft sale and leaseback programme prior to the date of transition,
« 3 USD/GBP foreign exchange rate of 1271 at the date of inthal application and throughout year of inihial applicaton, and

¢ based on current arrcraft financing Incremental borrowing rate estimates, calculations at the date of initial application use a

discount rate of 2 per cent

Effective for the year ending 30 September 2018 (not yet EU endorsed)

IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash flows — Amendments refating to the 1ASB's Disclosure Inbative intended to provide information to help

investors better understand changes in a company's debt

A5 12 Income Taxes — Amendments relating to the accounting far deferred tax assets for unrealised losses on debt instruments

measured at far value

Effective for the year ending 30 September 2019 (not yet EU endorsed)

IFRS 2 ‘Share-based Payment — Amendments clarfying how to account for certain types of share-based payment transactions

2 Net finance charges

2017 2006
£ million £ mitlon
Interest recevable and other financng ncome
Interest income &) (4)
Dividend ncome (2) (3)
Net exchange gains on manetary assets and liabilities (2) (3}
(10} (10}
Interest payable and other financing charges
Interest payable on bank and other borrowings 20
Interest payable on finance lease obligations 4 4
Other interest payable 5 1
29 13
Net finance charges 19 3
3 Profit before tax
The following have been included in arriving at profit before tax
2006
Emiion \Ermihon
Depreciation of property, plant and egupment
Owned assets 177 150
Assets held under finance leases 4 7
Loss on disposal of intangbles, property, plant and equipment 4 3
Loss on sale and leaseback 10
Operating lease rentals
Arrcraft 124 101
Other assets 7 5

Auditors’ remuneration

During the year easyJet incurred fees payable for the audit of the Group and indwvidual accounts from easyJet's auditors and therr
associates totaling £0 4 milkon (2076 £0 4 millon) In addition, easyJet incurred non-audit services fees of £32000 (2076 audit

related fees of £38,000) from its auditors
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Notes to the accounts / continued

4. Employees
The average monthly number of pecple employed by easy Jet was
2017 2018
Number Number
Flght and ground operations 10,932 9,571
Sales, marketing and administration 723 702
1,655 10,273
Employee costs for easvlet were
2007 2016
£ million £ milhon
Wages and salanes 570 474
Social secunty costs 73 63
Pension costs 61 48
Share-based payments 13 9
7 604
Key managemerit compensation was
2017 2016
£ mitlion £ million
Short-term employee benefits 8 7
Share-based payments - 4
8 n

Share-based payment charges ansing during the vear in respect of grants to key management personnel are offset by credits
recognised on certain forfaitures ansing from bad leavers and from downward revisions to some LTIP forecast vesting percentages

The Drirectors of easyJet ple and the other members of the Executive Management Teamn are easyJet's key management as they
have collective authonty and responsibility for planning, diecting and controling the business

Ernoluments paid or payable to the Directors of easyJet plc were

2017 2006
£ million £ million
Remuneration 3 3
Gains made on the exercise of Long Term Incentive Plan and Buy Cut awards 3 -
6 3
Detalls of Directors’ remuneration are disclosed in the Directors remuneration report on pages 65 to 84
5. Non-headline items
An analysis of the amounts presented as non-headling 1s given below
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Septernber
2017 2018
£ million £ milkon
Sale and leaseback charge 18 ~
Organisational review & 1
Alr Cperator Certificate (AQC) 2 1
Maintenance reserves discounting - 8)
Recognised in operating profit 24 (6)
Balance sheet foraign exchange gan (2) (3
Far value adustment 1 4
Taotal non-headline charge/{credit) before tax 23 13
Tax on non-headline items (3} 3
Total non-headline charge/{credit) after tax 20 (1)
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Sale and leaseback charge

The sale and leaseback of the Group's 10 cldest A319 arcraft resulted in a loss on disposal of the assets of £10 milhon, recognised
within other costs in the income statement, and a £6 millon mantenance provision catch-up, charged immediately to the income
statermnent upon entenng the lease, within maintenance costs

SINNODIV

Organisational review

The implementation of an organisational review has resulted in costs of £6 millon, which have been recognised in other costs within
the income statement This programme, which involves redundancy costs and associated third party adviser fees, 1s considered a
rmatenal non-recurnng item by virtue of the estimated size of the whole programme

Arr Operator Certificate (AQC)

Following the UK's referendum vote ta leave the European Union (LU, easylet 15 in the process of establishing a multi-AOC post-
Brext structure, which included the set-up of an European ACC, based in Austnia, in July 2017 The European AQC helps secure
future flying nghts for the 30% of easyJel's network which remains wholly within and between EU member states In the year ended
30 Septernber 2017 the Group incurred £2 millan, primanly compnsing set up costs, which have been recognised in other costs
within the ncome statement

Maintenance reserves discounting

In the year ended 30Q September 2016 the mantenance provision was discounted for the first tme, reflecting the time value of
money The discount applied generated a cumulative one-off non-headline income statement credit of £8 millon In the year ended
30 September 2017 and for future periods the impact of discounting will be reflected as a headline item

Balance sheet foreign exchange gain
Foreign exchange gains or losses ansing from the retranslation of foreign currency monetary assets and labilities held in the
staternent of finanoial position resulted in a gain of £2 millen, recognised within interest i the ncome statement

Fair value adjustment
A £l milion charge was recognised relating to far value adustments associated with the cross-currency nterest rate swaps put in
place to hedge the bond issued in February 2076, recognised within interest in the incorme statement

6. Tax charge
Tax on profit on ordinary activibies

2006
207 (restated)
£ million £ milon
Current tax
United Kingdom corporation tax 67 79
Foreign tax 5 4
Prior year adjustments - (2)
Total current tax charge 72 81
Deferred tax
Temporary differences relating to property, plant and equipment & 23
Other tempoerary differences - m
Prior year adjustments 3 3
Change in tax rate from financial year 2017 to 19% (2016 20%) - (14)
Change In tax rate from financial year 2020 to 7% - (22)
Attributable to rates other than the standard UK rate Q)] -
Total deferred tax charge/(credit) 8 ()
80 70
Effective tax rate 20.8% 138%
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Notes to the accounts / continued

6. Tax charge continued

Reconcihation of the total tax charge

The tax for the year is higher than (2016 lower than) the standard rate of corporation tax it the UK as set out below

2017 2016
£ million £ rmilion
Profit before tax 385 507
Tax charge at 19 5% (2016 20%) 75 ji9)]
Attributable to rates other than standard UK rate - 1
Expenses not deduchble for tax purposes z -
Share-based payments 1 3
Adjustrnents in respect of prior years - current tax - (2)
Adustments in respect of prior years — deferred tax 3 3
Change n tax rate frorm financial year 2017 to 19% (2016 20%) - (14)
Change in tax rate from financial year 2020 to 17% - (22)
Attributable to rates other than the standard UK rate (1} -
80 70
Current tax payable at 30 September 2017 amounted to £35 rmillon (2016 {restated) £16 millon See note 1) This related to
£38 million (2016 (restated) £19 rmillion} of tax payable n the UK and £3 million (2016 £3 million) to tax recoverable in other
European countries
During the year ended 30 September 2017, net cash tax paid amounted to £51 millon (206 £93 milion)
Tax on itermns recognised directly In other comprehensive income or shareholders’ equity
£ mi?l?:; £ mﬁl?clg
Charge to cther comprehensive iIncome
Deferred tax on change in farr value of cash flow hedges (4) (66)
Credit/(charge) to shareholders’ equity
Current tax credit on share-based payments - 1
Deferred tax charge on share-based payments - 6)
- (5)
Deferred tax
The net deferred tax hability in the statement of financial position 1s as follows
Accelerated Short-term
capital timing Fair value  Share-based
allowances differences gains/(losses) payments Total
£ million £ million £ miltion £ million £ million
At 1 October 20% 191 33 9 (6) 237
Charged to income staternent 8 - - - 8
Charged to other comprehensive income - - 4 - 4
Charged to shareholders’ equity - - - - -
At 30 September 2017 199 33 23 (6) 249
Accelerated Short-term
caprtal timing Far value Share-bascd
allowances differences  gains/(losses) payments Total
£ million £ rmilhon £ mitlion £ milion £ milion
At 1 October 2015 199 37 (46) {14} 176
{Credited)/Charged to income staternent (8) (4) n 2 (m
Charged to other comprehensive income - - 66 - 66
Charged to shareholders’ equity - - ~ 6 [
At 30 September 2016 el 33 9 6) 237

It 15 eshmated that deferred tax habilibes of approxmately £15 milhon (2016 deferred tax assets of £1 milion) will reverse dunng the

next financial year

Deferred tax assets and habiities have been offset where they relate to taxes levied by the same taxation authorty As a result the
net UK deferred tax labiity 1s £249 milion (20168 £237 milion) The net overseas deferred tax asset 1s E£nil (2016 Enii)
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No deferred tax hability has been recognised on the unremitted earnings of overseas subsidianes as no tax I1s expected to be
pavable in the foreseeable future based on the current repatriation policy of the Group

7. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share has been calculated by dividing the total profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares in
1ssue during the vear after adusting for shares held in employee benefit trusts

To calculate diuted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 15 adusted to assume conversion
of all diutive potential shares Share options granted to employees where the exercise price s less than the average market pnice of
the Company's ordinary shares durnng the year are considered to be dilutive potential shares Where share cptions are exercisable
based on performance critena and those performance crtena have been met during the year, these options are included in the
calculation of diutive potential shares

Headlne basic and diluted earnings per share are alse presented, based on headline profit for the year

Earnings per share 1s based on

2017 2016

(restated)

£ million £ milion

Headline profit for the yvear 325 427
Total profit for the vear 305 437
2017 2016

million rmilhon

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate basic earmings per share 384 394
Weghted average number of dilutive potential shares 3 3
Weighted average nurnber of ordinary shares used to calculate diuted earnings per share 397 397
2017 2016

(restated)

Earnings per share pence pence
Basic 774 Nnos
Diluted 76.8 N0
2017 2016

Headline earnings per share pence pence
Basic 825 108 4
Diluted 819 1076

8. Dividends

An ordinary dividend in respect of the vear ended 30 September 2017 of 409 pence per share, or £162 milion, based on headline
profit after tax, 15 to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting These accounts do not reflect this proposed dividend

An ordinary dividend of 53 8 pence per share, or £214 millon, in respect of the year ended 30 September 2016 was paid in the year
ending 30 September 2017 An ordinary dwvidend of 55 2 pence per share, or £219 milhon, in respect of the year ended 30
September 2015 was paid in the year ended 320 September 2016

9, Goodwill and other intangible assets
Other intangible assets

Landing Computer

Goodwill rights software Total

£ million £ million £ million £ million
Cost
At | Uctober 201k 365 94 75 169
Additions - - 44 44
Disposals - - 4) (4)
At 30 September 2017 365 94 ns 209
Arnartisation
At 1Cctober 2076 - - 7 17
Charge for the year - - 4 14
Disposals - - {1} U]
At 30 September 2017 - - 30 30
Net book value
At 30 September 2017 365 94 85 179
Al 1 Cctober 2016 265 94 58 152
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Notes to the accounts / continued

9. Goodwill and other intangible assets continued
Other intangible assets

Landing Computer

Goodwill rights software Total

£ milion £ milion £ rmilhon £ milhon
Cost
At 1 October 2015 365 94 60 154
Additions — - 37 37
Disposals - - (22} (22}
At 30 September 2016 365 94 75 169
Arnortisation
At 10October 2015 - - 27 27
Charge for the year - - 12 12
Disposals - — (22) (22)
At 30 September 2016 — — 17 17
Net book value
At 30 Septernber 2016 365 4 &8 152
AL Cctober 2015 365 94 33 127

easyJet has one cash-generating unit, being its route network The recoverable amount of goodwill and other assets with indefinite
expected useful ves has been determined based on value in use calculations of the route network

Pre-tax cash flow projections have been derved from the forecast cash flows presented to the Board for the penod up to 2022,
using the following key assumptions

Pre-tax discount rate (derived from weighted average cost of capital) 0%
Fuel price (US doliars per metric tonne) 550 - 600
Exchange rates

US doliar 127
Euro 110
Swass franc 125

Both fuel price and exchange rates are volatile in nature, and the assumptions used represent management’s view of reasonable
average rates Operating margins are sensitive to significant changes in these rates

Cash flow projections beyond the forecast penod have been extrapolated using growth rate scenarios ranging from zero up to
an estimated average of long-term econarrne growth rates for the principal countnes in which easyJet operates NG imparment
resulted from any of these scenanos

The impairrment model 1s sensitive to a sustained aignificant adverse movernent in foreign currency exchange rates

No reasonably possible combination of changes to the key assumptions abave would result in the carrying vaiue of the cash-
generating unit exceeding its recoverable amount

10. Property, plant and equipment

Aircraft and spares Other Total
£ million £ million £ milion

Cost
At 1 Qctober 2016 3,97 63 4,034
Addrtions 584 2 586
Arcraft sold and ieased back under cperating leases (186) - {186)
Transfer to rmantenance provision (8) - (6)
Disposals {18) {5) (23)
At 30 September 2077 4,345 &80 4,405
Deprectation
At 1October 2016 763 19 782
Charge for the year 176 5 181
Arrcraft sold and leased back under operating leases (61) - (61)
Disposals {17) {5) (22)
At 30 September 2017 861 19 880
Net book value
At 30 September 2017 3484 41 3,525
At 1 October 2016 3208 44 3252
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Arcraft ana spares Other Total
£ million £ milion £ million F-;

Cost 3
At 1 October 2015 3.485 a3 3528 g
Additions 526 23 549 @
Transfer to maintenance provision () - ()
Disposals {26} (3 {29)
At 30 September 2016 397 63 4,034
Depreciation
At 10ctober 2015 636 15 651
Charge for the year 152 5 157
Disposals {(25) M (26)
At 30 September 2016 763 9 782
Net book value
At 30 September 2076 3,208 44 3252
At 1Octcber 2015 2,849 28 2877

The net book value of arcraft mcludes £300 million (2016 £280 million) relating to advance and option payrments for future
deliveries This amount 15 not depreciated

Arrcraft with a net book value of Enil millon (2016 £381 millon) are mortgaged to lenders as [oan secunty
Arrcraft with a net book value of £77 millon (2016 £76 mithon) are heid under finance leases

easyJet 1s contractually committed to the acausition of 143 (2016 166) Arrbus A320 family arcraft, with a total st price of US$140
billion (2016 US$14 8 billion) befare escalations and discounts for delivery in financial years 2018 (36 arcraft), in 2019 (21 arcraft), n
2020 (23 arcraft), n 2021 (35 arcraft} and in 2022 (28 arcraft)

The ‘Other category manly compnses leasehold improvemnents, computer hardware, and fixtures, fittings and equipment

11. Other non-current assets

2016
2017 {restated)
£ million £ miflion
Deferred consideration and deposits held by arcraft lessars 66 a5
Leased arcraft — shortfall on sale and leaseback - 6
Recoverable supplemental rent (pledged as collateral) 6 7
Other 2 4
74 nz

12. Trade and other recewvables
2016
2007 {restated)
£ million £ rrulhion
Trade recevables a5 62
Less prowvision for impairment 4 (5)
a1 57
Prepayments and accrued income ns 97
Leased arcraft — shortfall on sale and leaseback 5 8
Recoverable supplemental rent (pledged as collateral) 28 5
Other recevables 33 38
275 205

Trade and other receivables of £19 millon (2016 £24 million) are up to three months past due but not mpaired

wWith respect to trade recevables that are naither mparred nor past due, there are no indications at the reporting date that the
payment obligations will not be met Amounts due from trade recevables are short-term in nature and largely cormpnse credit card
recevables due from financial institutions with credit ratings of al least A and, accordingly, the possibility of sigrificant default s

considered to be unlikely
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Notes to the accounts / continued

13. Cash and money market deposits

2077 2016

£ million £ milkon

Cash and cash eqguivalents (onginal matunty less than three months) m 74
Money market deposits (angnal maturty more than three months) 617 255
Non-current restricted cash 7 7
1335 a76

Interest rates on money market deposits and restncted cash are repnced within 185 days based on prevaling market rates of
interest Carrying value s not significantly different from fair value

Restricted cash comprises

2017 2016
E million £ million
Pledged as colateral to third parties
Avrcraft operating lease deposits 7 7
14. Trade and other payables
2:7 (restaztgée)
£ million £ milion
Trade payables 201 126
Accruals 412 350
Leased arcraft — surplus on sale and leaseback ] 12
Taxes and social securnty , 20 15
Other payables 72 54
714 565
15. Borrowings
Curremt  Non-current Total
£ miflion £ mitlion £ miflion
At 30 September 2017
Furobond - 870 870
Finance lease obligations 8 93 101
8 963 a7t
Current Non-current Total
£ milion £ milion £ milhon
At 30 September 2016
Eurchond - 435 435
Bank loans 84 126 210
Finance lease obligations 8 103 m
2 664 756

Finance lease obligations relate to arcraft and bear interest partly at fixed rates and partly at varable rates tnked to USD LIBOR
The matunty profile of berrowings is set out 1IN note 23

On 7 January 20716, the UK Listing Authonty approved a prospectus relating to the establishrment of a £3,000 millon Euro Medium
Terrn Note Programme of easyJet plc Under this programme, in February 2016 easyJet plc 1ssued notes amounting to €500 million
for a seven year term with a fixed annual coupon rate of 1750% and in October 2016 easyJet plc 1ssued notes amounting to €500
mifion for @ seven year term wath a fixed annual coupon rate of 1125%

The €500 millon Eurobond issued in February 2016 was designated as the hedged itern in an effective fair value hedging
relationship The Group used cross-currency interest rate swaps to convert the fixed rate Eurobond to a Sterling floating rate
exposure The cross-currency interest rate swaps have the same maturity and common terms as the Eurobond that they are
hedging The carrying value of the fixed rate Eurcbond net of cross-currency interest rate swaps at 30 September 2017 was £377
milicn See nete 22 for additional detalls

The €500 millon Eurcbond issued in October 2016 was designated as the hedged item In an effective cash flow value hedging
relationship The Group used cross-currency interest rate swaps to convert the fixed rate Eurobond to a Sterling fixed rate exposure
The cross-curreéncy Interest rate swaps have the same matunty and common terms as the Furobond that they are hedging The
carrying value of the fixed rate Eurobond net of cross-currency nterest rate swaps at 30 September 2017 was £448 millon See
note 22 for addiional details

On 10 February 2015 easyJet signed a $500 millan revolving credit facility with a minirmum five-year term The facility s currently due
to mature In February 2022
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16. Non-current deferred income

The balance principally comprises the non-current surplus of sale proceeds over the far value of arcraft that have been sold and
leased back under operating leases This balance will be realised in the ncome statement within the next six years

17. Prowssions for habilities and charges

Maintenarnce Other Total

provisions Provisions ProvIsSIons

£ roullion £ milion £ rmilion

At 1October 2016 259 29 288
Exchange adustments (8) - 8)
Charged to income staternent 5l 125 176
Related to arcraft sold and leased back & — 6
Transferred frorm property, plant and equipment {6) — (6)
Utiised (18} (me) (134)
At 30 September 2017 284 38 322

Amgounts transferred from property, plant and equipment relate to arrcraft Iife-imited parts used in engine restoration in the year

Other provisions comprise liabilities for amounts payable to customers who make claims in respect of fight delays and cancellations,
refunds of air passenger duty or similar charges and other provisions

2017 206

£ miillion £ million

Current 104 53
Non-current 218 235
322 288

Maintenance provisions are expacted to be utiised within six years Other provisions are expected to be utlised within one year

18. Share capital

Numer Nominal valus
2077 2016 207 2016
£ million £ rmillion £ miillion £ million
Authorised
At 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2016
Ordinary shares of 27 2/7 pence each 458 458 125 125
Allotted, called up and fully paid
At 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2016 397 397 108 108
There was no new share capital 1ssued i the year
easyJet's employee benefit trusts hold the following shares The cost of these has been deducted from retained earnings
2017 2016
Number of shares (million) 1 2
Cost (£ million) 21 25
Market value at year end (£ millien) 17 6
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Notes to the accounts / continued

19. Share incentive schemes
easyJet operates the followang share incentive schemes, all ot which are eguity settled The change in the number of awards
outstancing and weighted average exercise pnces dunng the year, and the number exercisable at each year end were as follows

30 September
1 October 2016 Granted Forfeited Excrcised 2017
Grant date milion milhon millon mifhon million
Long Term Incentive Plan
18 December 2012 C3 — — (03 -
17 December 2013 a5 — {03 cn 0.1
19 December 2014 o7 — 02) — 05
18 December 2015 Q7 - (02) - 05
19 December 2016 - 10 {02} — 08
Restricted Share Plan
19 December 2016 - 01 - - 0.1
Save As You Earn scheme
1 July 2013 03 - (©2) (©n -~
1 July 2014 06 - (02} — c4
1 July 2015 08 - {05) — 0.4
1 July 2016 12 - {05) - 07
1 July 2017 - 24 — — 2.4
Share Incentive Plans 43 o4 (O3} (08} 36
a5 39 (26) (13 9.5
Weighted average exercise prices are as follows
1 October 30 September
2016 Granted Forfeited Exercised 2017
£ £ £ £
Save As You Earn scheme 1239 969 1229 969 10.83
The exercise price of all awards save those disclosed in the above table s £nil
The number of awards exercisable at each year end and therr weighted average exercise price are as follows
Price Nurnber
£ million
2017 2016 2017 2016
Long Term incentive Plan - — 01 c3
Restrcted Share Plan - - - -
Save As You Earn scheme 13.30 969 04 03
0.5 06
The weighted average remaining contractual ife for each class of share award at 30 September 2017 15 as folows
Years
Long Term Incentive Plan 83
Restncted Share Plan 92
Save As You Earn scherme 26

Long Term Incentive Plan

The plan s open, by Invitation, to Executive Directors and senior management, and provides for annual awards of Performance
Shares worth up to 250% (200% up to 31 Decernber 201 of salary each year For awards granted from the 2015 financial year
onwards, the vesting of these shares 15 dependent on return on capital employed (ROCE} targets and total shareholder return (TSR)
targets compared to FTSE ranked companies at the start of the performance penod All awards have a three-year vesting perod,
2017 awards are assessed on performance conditions measured over the three financial years ended 30 September 2019

Restricted Share Plan
Granted for the first time in Decermber 2016, the plan 1s open by invitation to certain senior managers, and provides for an annual
award of Performance Shares The vesting of these shares 15 dependent on remaning in employment for a pernod of two years

Save As You Earn scheme

The scheme 1s open to all employees on the UK payroll Particpants may elect to save up to £500 per month under & three-year
savings contract An ophion is granted by the Cormpany to buy shares at a discount of 20% frem market price at the hime of the
grant At the end of the savings penod, the option becomes exercisable for a period of six months Employees who are not paid
through the UK payroll may particioate in the scheme under similar terms and conditions, albeit without the same tax benefits
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Share Incentive Plan

The plan s open to all employees on the UK payroll Participants may invest up to £1800 of their pre-tax salary each year to
purchase partnership shares in easylet For each partnership share acquired, easyJet purchases a matching share up to a maximum
value of £1.500 per annum Employees must remain with easyJet for three years from the date of purchase of each partnership

share in order to qualfy for the matching share, and for five years for the shares to be transferred to them tax free The employee 15

entitled to dividends on shares purchased, and to vote at shareholder meetings

Subject to Company performance, easyJet also 1ssues free shares to UK employees under an approved share incentive plan of up to

£3.000 per annum In value There 1s a similar unappraved free shares scheme for international employees

The farr value of grants under the Save As You Eamn scheme are calculated by applying the Binormaal Lathice option pricing model
The farr value of grants under the TSR based Long Term Incentive Plan is estimated under the Stochastic model (also known as the
Monte Carlo model) The far value of grants under all other schemes 1s the share price on the date of grant The following

assumptions are used

Share Excroise Expected Option Risk-free Far

price price volatility Ife interest rate vatue
Grant date £ £ % years % £
Long Term Incentive Plan
18 December 2012 — ROCE 737 - — — — 692
18 December 2012 — TSR 737 - 33 30 Q44 516
17 December 2013 ~ ROCE 1499 - - — — 1499
17 Decernber 2013 - TSR 1499 - 31 30 G776 983
19 December 2014 — ROCE 1652 - — — - B 52
19 December 2014 — TSR 652 - 29 30 078 nes
18 December 2015 — ROCE 1713 - - - - 1713
18 December 2015 — TSR 1713 - 29 30 08l 969
19 Decembper 2016 — ROCE 1043 - — - 1043
19 Decernper 2016 — TSR 1043 - 35 30 140 521
Restricted Share Plan
19 Decernber 2016 1043 - - - — 1043
Save As You Earn scheme
1 July 2013 121 969 34 35 032 354
1 July 2014 662 1330 33 35 164 503
1 July 2015 16 54 1323 31 35 0895 442
1 July 2016 1498 ne8 35 35 020 428
1 July 2017 12N 969 31 35 042 284

Share price for LTIPs is the closing share price from the last working day prior to the date of grant

Exercise price for the Save As You Earn scherne 1s set at a 20% discount from the share price at grant date

Expected volabiity 1s based on histoncal volatiity over a penod comparable to the expected Iife of each type of eption

Levels of early exercises and forfeitures are estimated using histoncal averages

The waighted average far value of matching shares granted under the Share Incentive Plan during the year was £1123

(2016 £1504)

For grants under the Save As You Eamn scheme, the dvidend yield assumption is calculated based on the actual yeld at the date of
grant For the options granted in 2012 to 2014, the dvidend yvield assumption was 2% and this ncreased to 2 75% in 2015, to 35% In

2016 and to 4 2% in 2017

wiww easyJet com
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Notes to the accounts / continued

20. Reconcilation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

206
207 (restated)
£ million £ milion
Operating profit 404 510
Adjustments for non-cash items
Depreciation 181 157
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 3
Loss on sale and feaseback 10 -
Amorbisation of ntangible assets 14 2
Share-based payments 3 19
Other 2) -
Changes in working capital and other items of an operating nature
{Increase)/decrease In trade and cther receivables 74 8
Increase N trade and other payables 147 44
Increase/(decrease) in unearned revenus 159 (5N
Increase in provisions 44 44
Decrease/(iIncrease) in other non-current assets 38 (3
Increase/{decrease) In dervative financial instruments 22 (7}
Decrease In non-current deferred income m 12)
Cash generated from operations 949 724
21. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net cash
Faw value and Loan issue Loan 155U 30
1 October foroign costs costs Net September
2006 exchange capitabsed amortised cash flow 2017
£ mullion £ millon £ milion £ milhion £ milion £ million
Cash and cash equivalents 714 (2) - — M m
Money market deposits 255 m - - 363 617
969 (3) - - 362 1328
Eurobond (435) 10 8 (2) (4510 (870)
Bank loans (210} {1 - - 220 -
Fimance iease obligations (1 3 - — 7 (101)
(756} 3 8 (2) (224) (971}
Net cash 213 - 8 (2) 138 357
22. Financial instruments
Carrying value and fair value of financial assets and habilities
The farr values of financial assets and labilhes, together with the carrying value at each reporting date, are as follows
Amortised cost Held at fair value
Loans and Financial Fair valug] Cash 1% Carrying Fair
At 30 September 2017 e ey oiney Wwaeon  "Tmilion  £omlion  Emplon Emylion
Other non-current assets 72 - - - 2 74 74
Trade and other recevables 77 - - - =12} 275 275
Trade and other payables - (61%) - - (1on (N4 (714)
Dernvative financial Instruments - - 61 3 - 92 92
Restricted cash 7 - - - - 7 7
Money market deposits 617 - - - - 617 617
Cash and cash eguivalents m - - - - m m
Furobonds® - {870) - - -~ (87C) (909)
Fmance lease oblgations - (101} - - - (101) (105)
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Armorbsed cost Held at farr value

Loans and Financial Fa value Cash flow Other Carrying Fair §
At 30 September 2016 o Emion Eohon crnton ' rmivon £ o £ miton o
Other non-current assets 102 - - - 10 2 2 5
Trade and other recevables 145 - - 60 205 205
Trade and other payables - (468) - - (97 {565) (565)
Dervative financial nstruments — - 61 37 - 98 o8B
Restricted cash 7 - - - - 7 7
Money market deposits 255 - - - - 255 255
Cash and cash equivalents 714 - — - — 714 714
Eurcbond™ - (435) - - - (435) (453)
Bank loans - (210) - - - (210) (210)
Finance lease obligations — (mm - - — my 7z

0}

(2)

(3}

In Feruary 2016, easyJet pk issued a £500 millon bond under the €3000 milkon Eure Meaium Term Note Programme guaranteed by easyJet Arlne
Company Limited The Euroband pays an annual fixed coupon of 1750% At the same tirme the Group entored into three cross-curmency nterest rate swaps
to convert the eritre €500 millon fixed rate Eurcbond to a Sterling floating rate expasure All three swaps pay floating nterest (3 month LIBOR plus a
margin) quarterly, receive fixed interest annually and have matunties matching the Eurobond The Grouo designated all three cross-currency interest rate
swaps as a far value hedge of the interest rate and currency nsks on the €500 millon Eurobond The swaos are measured at fair value through profit or loss
with any gans or losses peng taken immediately to the incorme statement The carryng value of the Eurobond 1s adusted for changes in fair valug
attnbutable to the risks being hedged This net carrying velue differs to the swaps far value depending on movements in the Group's credit nsk and cross-
currency basis The fav value of the Eurobond represents the quoted market once of the Eurobhona as at 30 Septernber 2017 The carrying value of the fixed
rate Eurobond net of the cross-currency interest rate swap at 30 Septernber 2017 was £377 millien

In Cctober 2016 easyJet ol issued a £500 millon bend under the €3 000 million Euro Medium Term hote Programime guaranteed by easyJet Arrline
Company Limiteo The Eurcbond pays an annual fisen coupon of 1125% Shortly after theissuance of the €500 millon oond the Group entered into three
cross-currency interest rate swaps to convert the entire €500 millon fixed rate Euronond to a Sterling fixed rate exposure The cross-currency interest rate
swaps were executed on 8 Novernbor 2016 with settlement ana notional exchango occurnng on 14 Novermber 2016 Al three swaps pay fixed interest semi-
annually, recernve fixed interest annually, and have matunties matching the Eurcnond The Group designated all thiee cross-currency interest rate swaps as a
cash flow hedge of the currency nisk on the £500 millon Eurobond The cross currency interest rate swaps are measured at fair value with the effective
portion taken through the statement of comprehensive income The element of the far value generated by the changa in the spot rate 15 recycled to the
income statement from the staternent of comprehensive Income to offset the revaluation of the Eurobond The carnang value of the fixed rate Eurobond
net of the cross-currency Interest rate swap at 30 Septermber 2017 was £448 millon

On 21 and 22 Septernber 2017 foreign exchange forward contracts were de-designated fram cash flow hedge relationships when the far value of these
trades was a kabilty of £46 milion This amount is held in other comprehensive ncome to be recycled to the mcome statement once the hedged item
impacts the profit and loss Foraign exchange forward contracts designated at fan value through profit or loss offsetting these dervatives were entered nto
at the point of de-gdesignation and as such dervatives held at far value through profit and loss on the balance sheet total a net iabilty of £4 6 millon as at
30 September 2017,

The farr value of the Eurcbonds are classified as level 1 of the IFRS 13 Faw Value Measurement’ far value hierarchy. The remaining
financial nstruments for which fair value 1s disclosed n the table above, and denvative financial instruments, are classified as level 2

The far velue measurement hierarchy levels have been defined as follows

Level 1, far value of financial Instruments based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or llabilities

Level 2, far value of financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over the counter denvatives),
which are determined using valuation techriques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates

Level 3, farr value of financial Instruments that are not based on observable imarket data

Amounts disclosed in the 'Other’ column are items that do not meet the definiton of a financial nstrurment They are disclosed to
facilitate reconciliation of the carrying values of financial instruments to Iine iterms presented in the statement of financial posiicn

Fair value calculation methodology

The far values of dervatives and financial Instruments have heen deterrnined by reference to observable market prices where the
instruments are traded, where avalable Where market prices are not avalable, the far value has been estimated by discounting
expected future cash flows at prevailing interest rates and by applying year end exchange rates
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Notes to the accounts / continued

22. Financial instruments continued
Fair value of denvative financial instruments

) Non-current Current .an:ent Non'—cu_rre;nt
At 30 September 2017 Q::Ii“il::: £ :\?isli?:tﬁ £ ;ﬁ?i?:rs\ Iéar?:illiltii:: 'éarl::illitlilcfrsu £ m}iﬁ::
Designated as cash flow hedges
US dollar 2,537 - 50 (25) (29) (4)
Euro 2,185 2 22 (49) 5) (30)
Swiss franc 389 5 3 6) - 2
South Afnican rand 335 3 i - - 4
Jet fuel 3 16 55 (2) 2) 67
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 445 - - - 8) (8)
Designated as far value hedges
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 379 &1 - - - 61
87 hxy| 82) (44) 92
Non-current Current Current Non-current
Quantity assets assets lianiities liabihties Total
At 30 September 2016 milion £ rrulhon £ million £ rillion £ rnilicn £ million
Designated as cash flow hedges
US dollar 23N 56 152 - - 208
Euro 1700 4 107 67) (29) 25
Swiss franc 356 - - (19) m (30)
South African rand 428 3 1 — - 4
Jet fuel 3 20 8 (189) ) 170)
Designated as fair value hedges
Cross-currency interest rate swaps 379 6l - — — 61
154 268 (275) (49) a8

For foreign currency forward exchange contracts, quantity represents the nominal value of currency contracts held, disclosed in the
contract currency The cross-currency interest rate swap contracts are represented at the Sterling noticnal value For jet fuel forward
contracts, quantity represents contracted metric tonnes

The rmajonty of hedged foreign exchange and et fuel transactions are expected to occur on vanous dates within the next 24
months The foreign exchange and jet fuel contracts are designated as cash flow hedges and the accumulated gains or losses
deferred in the hedging reserve will be recognised in the ncome statement in the pernods that the hedged transaction affects the
income statement Where the gain or loss 1s iIncluded in the initial amount recognised for the purchase of an arrcraft, recognition in
the income statement will be over a penod of up to 23 years in the form of depreciation of the purchased asset

The Group mantains cross-currency Interest rate swap contracts on fixed rate debt issuance as part of its approach to currency and
interest rate sk management The cross-currency interest rate swap contracts are designated and quahfy as either far value or
cash flow hedges to minimise valatility in the incorme statement

The foliowing denvative financial instruments are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting agreements

Gross Amount Net

At 30 September 2017 Sron  "Caon S
Derwvative financial instruments

Assets 218 {99) 1o

Liabilities (126) j2 2] (27)

92 - 92

Gross Arnount Net

At 30 September 2016 e Eeion & o
Derivative financial nstruments

Assets 422 (264) 58

Liabiiities (324) 264 (B60)

98 — 98

All financial assets and labilities are presented gross on the face of the statement of financial position as the conditions for netting
specified In 1AS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation’ are not met
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23. Financial risk and capital management

easyJet s exposed to financial nsks Including fluctuations In exchange rates, jet fuel prices and Interest rates Financial nsk
management ams to Iimit these market nsks with selected denvative hedaing instruments being used for this purpose easyJet's
policy 1s not to trade N dervatives but to use the INnstruments to hedge anticipated exposure As such, easyJet 1s not exposed to
market nsk by using dernvatives as any gains and losses ansing are offset by the outcome of the underlying exposure being hedged
in addition to market rsks, easyJet 15 exposed to crecht and hquidity rsk

The Board 1s responsible for setting financial nsk and capital managerment policies and objectives which are implemented by the
treasury function on a day-to-day basis The policy cutlines the approach to risk management and also states the instruments and
tire periods which the treasury function s authonsed to use in manaaing financial nsks The policy 1s regularly reviewed to ensure
best practice, however there have been no signficant changes durng the current year

Capital employed

Capital employed compnises shareholders’ equity, borrowings, cash and money market deposits (excluding restricted cash) and an
adustrment for the capital mphcit in arrcraft operating lease arrangements The adiustment 1s calculated by multiplying the annual
charge for arcraft dry leasing by a factor of seven, in ine with accepted practice for the arline industry

Normalised operating profit 1s adjusted for the implied interest incorporated in the charge for arcraft dry leasing

Conseguently, the capital employed at the end of the current and prior year and the return earned dunng those years were
as follows

2m7 2016

(restated)

E million E million

Shareholders eguity 2,802 2694
Borrowings a7 756
Cash and maoney market deposits (excluding restricted cash) (1,328) (969)
Reported capital employed 2,445 2,481
Operating lease adjustment 770 637
Capital ernployed including operating lease adjustment 3215 308
Headlne operating profit — reported 428 504
implied interest n operating lease costs 37 3G
Headline operating profit — adjusted 465 534
Headline operating profit after tax — adjusted 376 427
Headline return on capital employed 1.9% 15 0%
Total return on capital employed N.3% 152%

Return on capital employed 15 calculated by dviding the adiusted operating profit after tax by the average of the opening and
closing capital employed, ncluding the operating lease adustment

The percentage of operating leased arcraft at 30 Septernber 2017 was 26% (2016 25%)

Capital management

The objective of capital management s to ensure that easyJet 5 able to continue as a going concern whilst delivering shareholder
expectations of a strong capital base as well as returning benefits for other stakeholders

easyJet manages (ts capital structure N response to changes in both economic conditions and strategic objectives The cash and
net debt position, together with the matunty profile of existing delbt, 1s rmonitored to ensure the conbinuity of funding

On 30 September 2017, easyJet held long-term corporate credit ratings frorm both Standard & Poor's (BBB+) and Moody's (Baal)

In February 2016, easyJet plc issued notes under the £3.000 millon Curo Medium Terrn Prograrnme guaranteed by easyJet Arrline
Company Limited, amounting tc €500 millon for a seven-year term with a fixed annual coupon rate of 1750% At the same time
easylet Arrline Company Limited entered into three cross-currency interest rate swaps converting the £500 millon notes issued at a
fixed rate of 1750% to £37% millon at a floating rate of three maonth LIBOR plus a marain, with principal exchanges of €500 milion
and £379 million at inception and matunty of the bond In Oclober 2016, easyJet plc issued notes under the £3,000 millon Euro
Medium Term Programme guaranteed by easyJet Arrine Company Hmited, amounting to €500 rilhon for a seven-year term with a
fixed annual coupon rate of 1125% Subsequent to the issuance of the €500 million fixed rate notes, easyJet Arrline Company
Limited entered into three cross-currency interest rate swaps converting the €500 millon notes issued at a fixed rate of 1125% to
£455 millon at a fixed rate paid semi-annually, with principal exchanges of €500 mithon and £445 millon on 14 Novernber 2076 and
rmatunty of the hond
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Notes to the accounts / continued

23. Finanaial nisk and capital management continued
Liguidity nsk management
The objective of easy et's hquidity risk managerent 1s to ensure sufficient cash is availlable to meet future labiities as they fall due

easy.et continues to hold significant cash and hauid funds to mitigate the iImpact of potential business disruption events easyJet
also has a $500 milllon revolving credit faclity supported by a group of 12 banks The reveolving credit facility was agreed on 10
February 2015 and was undrawn at 30 September 2017 easylet has a target minimum ligudity requirement of a minimum of £2 6
milion per 100 seats in the fleet and the revolving credit facility 1s taken into account when managing this metnc Total cash
(excluding restricted cash) and money market deposits at 30 Septermber 2017 was £1.328 milhon (2016 £969 milhon) Surplus funds
are nvested in high quality short-term hguid instruments, mainly money market funds, bank deposits and tr-party repos

The maturity profile of financial labilihes based on undiscounted cash fiows and contractual matunties 1s as follows

At 30 Septenber 2017 A ion P T T
Borrowings 25 25 127 899
Trade and other payables 613 - - -
Foreign exchange and jet denvative contracts — receipts {2,969) (1,096) {66) -
Foreign exchange and jet dervative contracts — payments 2973 1105 62 -
Cross-currency swap contracts — receipts (13 (13) (38) (899)
Cross-currency swap contracts - payments 20 20 60 845
At 30 September 2016 M s Fien CEdhes R
Borrowings 06 38 186 443
Trade and other payables 468 - — -
Foreign exchange and jet denvative contracts — receipts {2.384) (1123) (67 —
Foreign exchange and jet dernvative contracts - payments 2394 1,086 54 —
Cross-currency swap contracts — receists 8) 8) (23) [443)
Cross-currency swap coniracts — payments 10 0 3i 394

The matunty profile has been calculated based on spot rates for the US dollar, Euro, Swiss franc, South Afncan rand and jet fuel at
close of business on 30 September each year

Credit nsk management

easyJet 15 exposed to credit sk ansing from cash and money market deposits, dervative financial nstruments and trade and other
receivables Credit rsk management aims to reduce the nisk of default by setting imits on credit exposure to counterparties based
an therr respective credit ratings Credit ratings also determine the maximum penod of nvestment when placing funds on deposit
Credit nsk s mited to the carrying amount in the statement of financial position at each year end

Counterparties for cash investrents, currency forward contracts, cross-currency interest rate swap contracts, foreign currency swap
contracts and jet fuel forward contracts are required ta have a long-term credit rating of A- or better at contract nception
Exposures to these counterparties are regularly reviewed and, f the long-term credit rating falls below A- management will take
remedial action

Disclosure relating to the credht qualty of trade and other recenables 1s given in note 12

Foreign currency risk management

The majonty of easylets exposure to currency anses from fluctuations in the US daollar, Furo and Swiss franc exchange rates which
can signthicanthy impact easyJdet's financial results and cash flows The aimn of the foreign currency nisk managernent is te reduce the
impact of these exchange rate fluctuations

Significant currency exposures in the income statement are managed through the use of currency forward contracts, in line with the
Board approved polcy The policy states that easyJet hedges between 65% and 85% of the next 12 months forecast surplus cash
flows on a roling basis, and between 45% and 65% of the following 12 months forecast surplus cash flows on a roling basis

Significant currency expaosures relating to the acguisihon cost or sale proceeds of aircraft s also managed through the use of
currency forward contracts where up to 90% of the next 24 months committed forecast requirement 1s hedged In addition, easy et
has substantial borrowings and other llabiities denorminated i US dollars and Eures, which are largely offset by holding US dollar and
Euro cash and money market deposits

Significant currency exposures relabing to foreign currency denominated debt issuances are managed through the use of
cross-currency interest rate swap contracts, where deemed appropnate These hedges are designated as either far value hedges or
cash flow hedges

Management may take achon o hedge other currency exposures as deemed appropriate

Financing and interest rate nsk management
Interest rate cash flow nsk arnises on floating rate borrowings and cash investments
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Interest rate nsk management policy ams to provide certanty in a propertion of financing while retaning the opportunity to benefit
from interest rate reductions Borrowings are 1ssued at aither fixed or floating interest rates repncing every three to six months A
significant proportion of the US dollar debt labilibes are matched with US dollar cash assets by value Operating leases are a mix of
fixed and floating rates Of the 72 operating feases in place at 30 September 2017 (2016 63), 79% were based on fixed interest rates
and 21% were based on floating interest rates (2016 73% fixed, 27% floating)

On 7 January 2018 easyJet ple published a £3,000 millon Eurcpean Medium Term Note Programme Under this programme, i
February 2016 easyJet plc 1ssued notes amounting to £500 millon for a seven-year term with a fixed annual coupen rate of 1750%
In October 2016 easyJet plc issued a second Eurobond under this program, amounting to €500 million for a seven-year term with a
fixed annual coupon of 1125% The proceeds from these issuances were used for general corporate purposes

Fuel price risk management

easyJet 1s exposed to fuel price sk The chjective of the fuel price nsk management policy 1s to provide protecton against sudden
and significant increases in et fuel prices, thus mitigating volatility 1 the income statement In the short-term In order to manage
the nsk exposure, forward contracts are used in ine with Board approved paolicy to hedge between 65% and 85% of estimated
exposures up to 12 months in advance, which 1s hedged on a roling basis, and to hedge between 45% and 65% of estimated
axposures from 13 up to 24 months in advance, which s hedged on a rolling basis Specific decisions may require consideration

of a longer-term approach Treasury strategies and actions are dnven by the need to meet treasury, financial and

corporate objectives

Market nsk sensitivity analysis

Financial assets and kabihities affected by market nsk include baorrowings, deposits, trade and other recevables, trade and other
payables and denvative financial nstruments The following analysis lllustrates the sensitvity of chanages in relevant foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and fuel prices It should be noted that the analysis reflects the impact on profit or ioss after tax for the year and
other comprehensive ncome on financial instruments in & cash flow hedge relationship held at the reporting date The sensitivities
are calculated based on all other variakles rermmaining constant The analysis 1s considered representative of easylet’s exposure over
the next 12-month perod

The sensitvity analysis 1s based on easylet’s finanoial assets and habidities and financial instruments held as at 30 Septernber 2017
The currency exchange rate analysis assumes a +/-10% change in both US dollar and Furo exchange rates
The interest rate analysis assumes a 1% increase In interest rates over the next 12 months

The fuel price analysis assumes a 10% ncrease In fuel pnce aver the next 12 months

Currency rates
US doliar US dollar Euro Euro  Interest rates Fuel price 10%
+H10%M -10%@ +10%" -10% ! 1% increase increase
At 30 September 2017 £ million £ miliien £ million £ mithon £ million £ million
Income statement impact gan/(loss) 25 21 3 3 7 -
Impact on other comprehensive mcome
ncrease/ldecrease) 28 t105) 40 {32) - a8
Currency rates
US dollar US dollar Euro Euro Interest rates  Fuel price 10%
0% -10% +10% W -10% % increase ncrease
At 30 September 2016 £ million £ rrulhon £ miien £ rrullion £ rrulion £ rmilbon
Income statement iImpact gan/loss) 25 {20 5 (4) 3 -
Impact on other comprehensive iIncome
ncrease/{decrease) 139 {(113) — - — 83
{1 GBP weakencd

{2) GBP strengthenea

The market nsk sensitivity analysis has been calculated based on spot rates for the US dollar, Euro and jet fuel at close of busmess
on 30 Septerber each year
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Notes to the accounts / continued

24, L easing commitments
Commitments under operating leases

Aircraft Other
2017 2016 2017 2006
£ million £ million £ million £ milhon

Total commitments under non-cancellable operating leases due
Not later than one year 108 no 3 2
Later than one year and not later than five years 229 223 8 &
Later than five years 1 n 2 2
339 344 13 10

easyJet holds 72 awrcraft (2016 63 arcraft) under operating leases, with initial lease terms ranging from five to sixteen years easylet
1s contractually obliged to carry out maintenance on these aircraft, and the cost of this s provided based on the number of flying
hours and cycles operated Further details are given in the significant accounting policies section of note 1

Commitments under finance leases

2087 20016
£ million £ milhon

Present value of minimum lease payments fall due as follows
Not later than one year 12 12
Later than one year and not later than five years j[ole} T4
nz 126
Future finance charges {m (15
101 m

easyJet holds five arrcraft (2016 five arcraft) under finance leases with ten year intial terms Further details are given in notes 10 and 15

25. Contingent habilities
easylet 1s nvolved In a8 number of disputes and Iitigation which arose In the normal course of business The likely outcome of these
disputes and itrgation cannot be predicted, and in compiex cases reliable estimates of any potental cbligation may not be possible

Having reviewed the information currently available, management considers that the ultimate resolution of these disputes and
Ihigation s unlikely to have a materal adverse effect on easyJet's results, cash flows or financial position

As at 30 September 2017 easyJet had agreements wath third parties for which fees were contingent upon the completion of
acguisition activities totalling £4 milicn (2016 £nil)

At 30 September 2017 easyJet had outstanding letters of credit and performance bonds totaling £44 millon (206 £49 milion), of
which £21 million (2016 £38 millon) expires wathin one year The fair value of these instruments at each year end was neglaible

No amount 1s recognised on the statement of financial position in respect of any of these financial Instruments as T 1s not probable
that there will be an outflow of resources

26. Geographical revenue analysis

2017 2016

£ million £ million

United Kingdom 2257 2,243
Southern Europe 1,568 1376
Northern Europe 1,148 984
Other 74 66
5,047 4669

Southern Eurcpe comprises countrnies lyving wholly or mamnly south of the border between ltaly and Switzerland, plus France

easyJet’s non-current assets principally comprise 1ts fleet of 202 owned and five finance leased arrcraft A further 72 arrcraft are heid
under operating leases, giving a total fleet of 279 at 30 September 2017 24 aircraft (2018 23) are registered in Switzerland, ane 1s
registered in Austrna and the remaining 254 are registered in the United Kingdom
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27. Related party transactions

easyJet icenses the easyJet brand from easyGroup Limited (easyGroup’). @ wholly owned subsidiary of easyGroup Holdings Limited,
an entity in which easyJet’s founder, Sir Stelios Hayp-loannou, hoids a beneficial contraling nterest The Hap-loannou family concert
party shareholding (being easyGroup Holdings Limited and Polys Holding Limited) holds, in total, approximately 33% of the issued
share capital of easyJet plc as at 30 September 2017

Under the Amended Brand Licence signed in October 2010 and approved by the shareholders of easyJet plc in Becember 2010, an
annual royalty of O 25% of total revenue 15 payable by easyJet to easyGroup for a minimum term of 10 years The full term of the
agreement 1s 50 years

easylet and easyGroup established a fund to meet the annual costs of protecting the ‘easy’ {and related marks} and the ‘easyJet’
brands easyJet contributes up ta £1 millon per annum to this fund and easyGroup contnbutes £100,000 per annum Beyond the
first £11 million of costs, easyJet can commit up to an aggregate £55 millon annually to meet brand protection costs, with
easyGroup continung to meet its share of costs on a 101 ratio easyJet must meet 100% of any brand protecticn costs it wishes to
incur above this hmit

A side letter to the Brand Licence was entered with easyGroup, dated 29 September 2016, under which, in return for easyGroup
consenting to easyJet acauinng a portion of the eguity share capital in Founders Factory Limited, easyJet made a payment of £1

The armounts ncluded in the Income statement, within other costs, for these items were as follows

2017 2016
£ million £ million

Annual royalty 13 12
Brand protection (legal fees paid through easyGroup to third parties) 1 i
4 13

At 30 September 2017, £1 millon (2006 £nil millon) of the above agaregate amount was included in trade and other payables

28. Events after the reporting pericd

On 27 October easyJet signed an agreement with Arr Berlim's administrators, as part of which it will enter into leases for up to 25
A320 arcraft at Berln Tegel arport, offer employment to former Ar Berbn flying crews and take over other assets including slots for
a purchase consideration of €40 milicn Completion of the transaction 1s subject to regulatory approvals and the transaction 1s
expected to close n December 2017

easylet completed the sale and leaseback of 10 A31S arrcraft in Novermnber 2017 Cash proceeds were $137 millon, due to the age of
the selected arrcraft at the time of this transaction and easyJet’s mantenance proviston accounting policy, 8 one-off, non-cash
charge of approximately £20 rmillian (of which £12 million relates to the loss on disposal and £8 million relates to the maintenance
provision catch-up} will be recognised in the first half of the 2018 financial vear as a non-headline tem
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Company statement of financial position

30 September 30 September
2017 2016

Notes £ millien £ million
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiary undertakings c 910 897
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 1,582 1152
Current tax assets 2 -
Dernwvative financial instruments wath subsiciary undertakings d 54 &l
1,638 1213
Current habilities
Amounts due to subsdiary undertakings (2) m
Current tax payable - 12)
2) (13)
Net current assets 1636 1200
Non-current habilities
Baorrowings e (870) (435)
Net assets 1,676 1662
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 108 108
Share premium 652 659
Hedging reserve 3 -
Retained earnings 912 595
1676 1662

The accounts on pages 126 to 130 were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for ssue on 20 Novernber 2017 and
signed on behalf of the Board

in accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company 1s exempt from the requirement to present its own
ncome statement and staterment of comprehensive ncome The Company's profit for the year was £218 million (2016 £307 millon)
Included In this amount are dividends receved of £226 milhon (2016 £259 millan), which are recognised when the nght to receve
payment 1s established The Company recognised no other incorne or expenses in either the current or prior year, other than the
profit for each year ’

CARQLYN MCCALL DBE ANDREW FINDLAY

Cirector
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Company statement of changes in

Share

Share

equity

Hedging Retained

capital premium Reserve earnings Total ?5
£ million £ million £ million £ million £ million o
ALTOCLuber 2006 108 659 - 895 1.662 g
Total comprehensive income - - 3) 218 215 a
Dividends paid - - - (214) (214)
Share incentive schemes
Movement n reserves for employee share schames - - - 13 13
At 30 Seplember 2017 108 659 &3] 912 1,676
Share Share Hedging Retaneo
cagital premium Reserve earnings Total
£ million £ mithon £ milon £ millon £ millon
At 10ctober 2015 108 659 — 788 1555
Total comprehensive income - - 307 307
Dividends paicd - — - (219) (219}
Share incentive schermas
Movement in reserves far employee share schemes - - - 19 19
At 30 September 2016 108 659 - 8a5 1662

An ordinary dvidend in respect of the year ended 30 Septermber 2017 of 40 9 pence per share or £162 millon, based on headline
profit after tax, 1s to be proposed af the forthcoming Annual General Meeting These accounts do not reflect this proposed dividend

An ardinary dividend of 53 8 pence per share, or £214 millon, in respect of the vear ended 30 September 2016 was paid m the year
ended 30 September 2017 An ordinary dividend of 55 2 pence per share, or £219 millon, in respect of the year ended 30 September

2015 was paid In the year ended 30 September 2016

The disclosures required mn respect of share capital are shown in note 18 to the consolidated accounts
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Company statement of cash flows

Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Scptember
2017 20i6
Notes £ million £ milhon
Cash flows from cperating activities
Cash used by operations (exclucng dvidencls} f U] (54}
Interest recerved 20 19
Interest pad 21 (5}
Dividends recewved 226 259
Dividends pad {214} (219
Net cash used by operating activities - -
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from drawdown of bank loans and other borrowings 451 379

Mavernent Inloans with subsidiary undertakings (451) (379)
Net cash generated from financng activities - -

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents - —

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning and end of year - -
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Notes to the Company accounts

a) Significant accounting policies
The significant accounting pohcies applied 1IN the preparabion of these Company accounts are the same as those set cut innote 1
to the consclidated accounts with the addition of the following

Investments

Investments in subsidianas are stated at cost, less any provision for impairment Where subsidiary undertakings incur charges for
share-based payments in respect of share options and awards granted by the Company, a capital contribution in the same amount
15 recognised as an investrnent In subsidiary undertakings with & cerresponding credit to shareholders' equity

b) Income statement and statement of total comprehensive income

In accordance with Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company 15 exempt from the requirement to present its own
Income statement and statement of comprehensive ncome The Company's profit for the year was £218 milion (2016 £307 million}
Included in this amount are dividends receved of £226 millon (2016 £259 millon), which are recogrised when the nght to receve
payment 1s estabhshed The Company recognised no other incaome or expenses in either the current or prior year, other than the
profit for each year

The Company has seven employees at 30 September 2017 (2016 eight) These employees are the Non-Executive Directors of
easyJet plc, ther remuneration s pad by easyJet Airline Cormpany Limited The Executive Directors of easyJet plc are employed and
pad by easyJet Arlne Company Limited Details of Directors’ remuneration are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated accounts and
in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 65 (o 84

¢) Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings were as follows

2017 2016

£ million £ millicn

At 10ctober 897 8/8
Capital contributions to subsidianes 13 19
At 30 September 910 897

A full ist of Group companies I1s detalled below, Includng addresses in the footnotes

Percentage of

Country of ncorporation Principal actraty ordinary shares held
easyJet Arline Company Limited!?! England and Wales Airine operator 100
easyJet Switzerland S A Switzerland Arrbne operator 49
Dawn Licensing Holdings Limnited Malta Holding company G0
Dawn Licensing Limitedi4? Malta Graphic design 100
easyJet Stering LinitedM™ Cayman Islands Aircraft tfrading and leasing 100
easyJet Leasing Limited™¥s Cayman Islands Arrcraft trading and leasing 100
Kiyoka Lirmted(2) England and YWales Air transport 100
easyJet Europe Arrline GrbH(E! Austria Awrline operator 100
SALEM Beteligungsverwaltung
achtundachtzigste GrnbH® Austna A transport 100

(1) Although these companics are Cayman Islands incorporated they have always been and continue to e UK tax resident

{2) Hangar 89, London Luton Arrport, Luton, Bedfordshire, LUZ 9PF

{3) 5 Route de lAcroport Meyrnin, CH-215 Genave 15, Switzerlanc

{4) Sterlng Buldings, The Penthouse, Ennico Mizzi Street, Ta Xbiex, XBX 1453, Malta

{5) Governor's Square, West Bay Road Lime Tree Bay Roaod UNIT # 2-105 | PO Box 1982 Grang Cayrnan KY1-104, Cayman Islands
{6) Wagramaor Strafe 19, 11 Stock 1ZD Tower 1220 Wien, Austra

The Company has a 49% nterest In easyJet Switzerland § A with an option to acquire the remaining 51% The option 1s
automatically extended for a further year on a rolling basis, unless the option 1s terminated by wntten agreernent pricr to the
automatic renewal date easylet Switzerand S A 15 a subsidiary on the basis that the Company exercises a dominant influence
over the undertaking A non-controling nterest has not been reflected In the consohdated accounts on the basis that holders of
the remaining 51% of the shares have no entitlerment to any dradends from that holding and the Company has an option to acquire
those shares for a predetermined minimal consideration

d) Financial mstruments

In October 2016 easyJet plc ssued notes amounting to €500 millon for a seven-year term with a fixed annual coupon rate of 1125%
under the £3,000 millon Euro Medium Term Note programme  The Group subsecuently entered inte cross-currency interest rate
swaps on 8 Novernber 2016 to convert the €500 milion fixed rate burcbond to a £445 milicn fixed rate Sterling exposure For
further details please refer to note 22 of the consolidated accounts
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Notes to the company accounts / continued

e) Borrowings

Current Mon-current Total
£ miillion £ miillion E million
At 30 September 2017
Furcbond - 870 870
Current Non-curreat Total
£ million £ million £ millicn
At 30 September 2016
Eurobond - 435 435
For further detalls please see the disclosures shown in note 15 of the consolidated accounts
f) Reconciliation of profit for the year to cash used by operations
2017 2016
£ million £ millon
Profit for the year 218 307
Adjustments for.
Finance and other similar INcome (5) (16)
Unrealised foreign exchange differences 15 (45)
Tax (credit)/charge 2) 12
Dwidends received (226) {259)
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital - M
Changes in working capital.
Increase in amounts due from subsidiary undertakings 6) (50)
increase in amounts due to subsidary undertakings 1 -
Increase in dervative financial instrurnents (6} (3)
{1 {54)

@) Guarantees and contingent liabilities

The Company has given a formal undertaking to the Civil Aviation Authonty to guarantee the payrment and discharge of all labilities
of easyJet Arline Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company The guarantee is required for that company to mantain its
operating licence under Regulation 3 of the Licensing of Air Carners Regulations 1992

The Company has issued a guarantee in favour of easyJet Arlne Company Limited, a subsidiary undertaking, 10 relation to the
processing of credit card transactions, and alse n respect of hedging transactions camed out according to treasury policy

The Company has guaranteed the contractual obligations of easyJet Arlne Company Limited and easyJet Leasing Lirmited, both
subsidiary undertakings, In respect of its contractual obligations to Arbus SAS inrespect of the supply of Arbus A320 family arcraft

The Company has guaranteed the repayment of borrowings that financed the acguisition of aircraft by subsicdiary undertakings The
Company has also guaranteed the payment obligations for the lease of arrcraft by subsidiary undertakings

The Company has guaranteed certan letters of credit issued on behalf of subsidiary undertakings

The Company has guaranteed the contractual obligations of casyJet Arine Company Limited, a subsidiary undertaking, in respect
of a $500 million revolving credit facity The revolving credit facility was agreed during the year ended 30 September 2015, for a
minimurm of five years, and was undrawn at 30 September 2017 and 30 September 2076 The facihity 1s currently due to mature

in February 2022

No amount 1s recognised on the Cormpany statement of financial position in respect to any of these guarantees as it 1s not probable
that there will be an outflow of resources

h) Related party transactions

Transactions with subsidiary undertakings, which principally refate to the prowision of funding within the Group, are carned out on an
arm’s length basis Outstanding balances are placed on intercormpany accounts with no specified credit pencd, are unsecured, and
bear market rates of interest

Dunng the financial year the Company recewved a dividend from easylet Switzerland of £12 millon (206 £40 miiion)

For full detalls of transactions and arrangements with easy.Jet's largest shareholder, see note 27 of the consolidated accounts
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Five-year summary

2017 2016* 2015 2014** 2013+
(restated) (as reporteq) {as reported) (as reported)
£ million £ milion £ milion £ million £ milion
Income statement
Revenue 5,047 4,669 4,686 4527 4258
Total EBITDAR 709 770 240 823 7n
Headline EBITDAR 733 764
Total operating profit 404 510 688 581 497
Headline cperating profit 428 504
Total profit before tax 385 507 686 581 478
Headline profit before tax 408 494
Total profit after tax 305 4357 548 450 398
Headlne profit after tax 325 427
Basic total earnings per share — pence 774 109 1391 nas 1013
Basic headline earmings per share — pence 825 108 4
Diluted total earnings per share — pence 76.8 o 138 ns2 1000
Diluted headiine earmings per share — pence 819 076
Ordinary didend per share —~ pence 40.9 538 552 454 335
Special dvidend per share — pence - - - - 441
Statement of financial position
Non-current assets 4,237 4042 3549 3221 2964
Current assets 1,734 1442 1279 1,261 1448
Current labilities (1.670) (1,562} (1,768) (1,420) (1.379)
Non-current hiabilities 1,499) {1221 (81 {890) (1.016)
Net assets 2,802 2,694 2249 2072 2017
Net cash
Operating activities 663 387 609 394 [6119)
Investing activibies (515} (586) (532) (445) (418)
Financing activities (excluding movements in
borrowings and money market deposits) (10) (16) (70) (76) 439
Loan 1ssue costs 33 1 - m {(3)
Exchange gains/(losses) - 8) [ (8) (4)
Net (decrease)/increase in net cash 144 (222) 13 (136) 632
Key performance indicators
Headlne return on capital empioyed 1n.9% 150% 22 2% 20 5% 17 4%
Net cash/(debt) 357 213 435 422 558
Total profit before tax per seat (£) 4.45 635 g5 812 703
Headlne profit before tax per seat (£) 47 518
Revenue per seat (£) 58.23 5846 62 48 6331 6258
Total cost per seat (E) 53.78 521 5333 5519 5555
Headlne cost per seat (£) 5352 5228
Total cost per seat excluding fuel (£) 4153 8% 3755 3770 B/
Headline cost per seat excluding fuel {£) 427 3833
Seats flown: {(millons) 867 799 750 715 680
* See note 1 for change in accounting policies
**  The performance metncs for 2013 to 2015 above have not been restated to retlect the change in accounting policies aetaled in note 1
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Glossary

Adjusted capital employed

Capital employed plus seven times operating lease costs incurred in the year

Adusted net cash/debt

Net cash/debt less seven times operating lease costs incurred in the year

Arrcraft dry/wet leasing

Payments to lessors under dry leasing arrangements relate solely to the provision of an
arcraft Payrments to lessors under wet leasing arrangements relate to the prowvision of
arcraft, crew, rmantenance and nsurance

Arrcraft ownedAeased at end of year

Nurmber of arcraft owned or on lease arrangements of aver one month's duration at the end
of the period

Avalable seat kilometres (ASK)

Seats flown multiplied by the number of kilormetres flown

Average adsted capital emploved

The average of opening and closing capital employed

Block hours

Hours of service for arcraft, measured from the time that the arcraft leaves the terminal at
the departure arport to the birme that it amves at the terminal at the destination arrport

Capttal employed

Shareholders' equity less net cash/debt

Cost per ASK

Revenue less profit before tax, dvided by avalable seat kilometres

Cost per seat

Reovenue less profit before tax, dvided by seats flown

Cost per seat, excluding fuel

Revenue, less profit before tax, plus fuel costs, dmded by seats flown

EBITDAR

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amartisation, arcraft dry leasing costs, and profit
or loss on disposal of arrcraft held for sale

Gearing

Adusted net cash/debt dwided by the sum of shareholders’ equity and adusted net
cash/debit

Load factor

Number of passengers as a percentage of number of seats flown The load factor 1s not
weighted for the effect of varving sector lengths

Net cash/debt

Total cash less borrowings (Cash includes money market deposits but excludes
restricted cash )

Normalsed operating profit after tax

Repaorted operating profit adusted for one-third of operating lease costs incurred in the year,
less tax at the prevailing UK corporation tax rate at the end of the financial year

QOperated arcraft utlhisation

Average number of block hours per day per arrcraft operated

Qther costs

Adrministrative and operational costs not reported elsewhere, including sorme employee costs,
compensation paid to passengers, exchange gains and losses and the profit or loss on the
disposal of property, plant and equipment

Passengers

Number of earned seats flown Eamed seats compnses seats sold to passengers (including
no-shows), seats provided for promotional purposes and seats provided to staff for
business travel

Profit before tax per seat

Profit before tax dvided by seats flown

Revenue

The sum of seat revenue and non-seat revenue

Revenue passenger kilometres {(RPK)

Number of passengers multiphed by the number of kilometres those passengers were flown

Revenue per ASK

Revenue divided by avallable seat kilometres

Revenue per seat

Revenue dvided by seats flown

ROCE

Return on capital employed

ROCE {excluding lease adjustments)

Operating profit less tax at the prevaling UK corporation tax rate at the end of the financial
year, divided by average capital employed

ROCE (including lease adustments)

Normalsed operating profit after tax divided by average adjusted capital employed

Seats flown

Seats availlable for passengers

Sector

A one-way revenue flight

132 easylet plc Annual report and accounts 2077



WE'D LIKE TO THANK
EVERYONE WHO HAS HELPED
TO PRODUCE THIS REPORT:

Paul Ablin, Adéle Anderson, Michael Barker, Mecna Bhatia-Ahir, Mita Bhattacharjee,
Maxwell Bruce, Matthew Callaghan, Louise Cardani, Anna Carter, Phil Chastell,
Peter Duffy, Andrew Findlay, James Fisher, Matt Garner, Bill Gosbee, Mike Hirst,
Sarah Kayser, Nick Kennedy, Matt Landsman, Rosie Lobb, Carolyn McCall DBE,
Tom Minion, Paul Moore, Stuart Morgan, Kyla Mullins, Matthew Newrman,

Mark Ramsden, Natalie Roberts, Sarahjane Robertson, Zarina Sabir, Jade Steele,
Chris Sominka, Ben Souter, Rebecca Waite, Charlotte Warner, Mano Yiannopoulos
and all of our employees across the network.




Logo remaved

Hangar 82

London Luton Airport
Luton

Bedfordshire

LU2 9PF

www.easyJet.com



